
 CITY OF HAYS COMMISSION MEETING 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2013 – 6:30 P.M.  

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Call to order by Chairperson.   
 

2. MINUTES: Consider approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on             
August 22, 2013. (PAGE 1) 

 
3. CITIZEN COMMENTS:  (non-agenda items). 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (Items to be approved by the Commission in one motion, unless 

objections are raised).  
 

Mayoral Appointment Recommendations: Hays Beautification Committee and Hays 
Housing Authority Board (PAGE 5) 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

(No business to review) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

 
5. 2013 UNIFORM PUBLIC OFFENSE CODE: Consider approving Ordinance No. 3870 

adopting the 2013 Uniform Public Offense Code for Kansas Cities. (PAGE 9) 
 

6. 2013 STANDARD TRAFFIC ORDINANCE: Consider approving Ordinance No. 3871 
adopting the 2013 Standard Traffic Ordinance for Kansas Cities. (PAGE 31) 

 
7. GOLDEN BELT ESTATES 5TH ADDITION – RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH BENEFIT 

DISTRICT (DANBY LANE):  Consider approving Resolution No. 2013-021 authorizing 
the creation of a special benefit district for infrastructure improvements for the 
development of 18 lots within the Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition. (PAGE 59) 
 

8. GOLDEN BELT 5TH ADDITION – ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT (DANBY 
LANE): Consider approving the Engineering Services Agreement with Ruder Engineering 
& Surveying, LLC, for the development of Block 2, Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition, to be 
funded out of Capital Projects. (PAGE 67) 

 
9. LEVEE IMPROVEMENTS – ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES AGREEMENT: 

Consider directing the City Manager to execute a contract with Wilson & Company for 
levee engineering services to be funded out of the Stormwater Utility Projects line item. 
(PAGE 77) 
 

10. BIKE HAYS – ON-STREET BIKE ROUTE ENGINEERING DESIGN AGREEMENT:  
Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter an agreement with CFS Engineers for the 
design of the on-street bike routes to be funded out of Capital Projects. (PAGE 103) 



 
11. BIKE HAYS – LEVEE TRAIL ENGINEERING DESIGN AGREEMENT: Consider 

authorizing the City Manager to enter an agreement with Wilson Company for the design 
of the Levee Trail to be funded out of Capital Projects. (PAGE 125) 
 

12. REFUSE TRUCKS LEASE/URCHASE BUYOUT: Consider authorizing City staff to issue 
a 30-day written notice of the City’s intent to exercise its option to purchase the refuse 
trucks and authorize the expenditure to be funded from the Solid Waste reserve fund. 
(PAGE 143) 
 

13. ADDENDUM TO THE MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH THE HAYS SERVICE 
EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION (SEIU) LOCAL 513 FOR 2014: Consider 
authorizing the Mayor, City Manager and the Directors of Parks, Public Works and 
Utilities to sign the 2014 Addendum to the 2013 through 2015 SEIU contract. (PAGE 147) 

 
14. REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER (PAGE 151) 
 
15. COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS   
 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION (IF REQUIRED) 

 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

ANY PERSON WITH A DISABILITY NEEDING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 
SHOULD CONTACT THE CITY MANAGER'S OFFICE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED MEETING 
TIME.  EVERY ATTEMPT WILL BE MADE TO ACCOMMODATE ANY REQUESTS FOR ASSISTANCE. 



MINUTES OF A MEETING  

OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF  

THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS 

HELD ON AUGUST 22, 2013 

 

1.  CALLTO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN:  The Governing Body of the City of Hays, 

Kansas met in regular session on Thursday, August 22, 2013 at 6:30 p.m. 

   Roll Call:  Present:  Kent Steward 

      Henry Schwaller IV 

      Eber Phelps 

      Shaun Musil 

      Ron Mellick 

 Chairperson Steward declared that a quorum was present and called the 

meeting to order. 

2.  MINUTES:  There were no additions or corrections to the minutes of the 

regular session held on August 8, 2013; the minutes stand approved as 

presented. 

3.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT:  Finance Director Kim Rupp reported that month- 

to-date general fund sales tax collections were at $679,311 a very nice rebound 

of $57,863 or 9.31% as compared to last year. This increase takes the YTD 

general fund sales tax collections back to even, up $12,412 or .29%. The six 

month running average on sales tax collections is slightly down at -.19%. 

The Finance/City Clerks office invested $1,000,000 of maturing or 

renewing certificates with a weighted average interest rate of .18%. The portfolio 

of certificates of deposit on July 31, 2013 totaled $52,050,000 with a weighted 

average interest rate of .24%. The total balance of the Money Market account on 

July 31, 2013 was $1,000,000 with a current yield of .20%. Total investments are 

up $3,300,000 when compared to this time last year. 

Ron Mellick moved, Eber Phelps seconded, that the Financial Statement 

for the month of July, 2013 be approved. 

   Vote:  Ayes:  Kent Steward 

1



     Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

4.  CITIZEN COMMENTS:  There were no comments. 

5.  CONSENT AGENDA:  There were no items on the consent agenda. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

6.  ONLINE BILL PAY SYSTEM:  Finance Director Kim Rupp and Information 

Technology Coordinator Chad Ruder presented to the Commissioners the new 

online utility bill pay product called Munis Customer Self Service (CSS).  This 

new product will be available on August 23, 2013.  City of Hays customers will be 

able to pay their utility bills on line, they can view their current and past bills, and 

also view their consumption history.   

7.  2014 BUDGET PRESENTATION AND PUBLIC HEARING:  Chairperson 

Steward called to order the public hearing for the 2014 Budget. 

 Assistant City Manager Paul Briseno gave a formal presentation of the 

2014 Budget.  The 2014 Budget is a balanced budget, contains no new 

employees, adequately funds reserves, and keeps the mill levy at 25 mills for the 

fifth year in a row. 

 There were no comments from the audience.   

 Eber Phelps moved, Henry Schwaller IV seconded, that the public hearing 

be closed. 

   Vote:  Ayes:  Kent Steward 

     Henry Schwaller IV 

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

  

2



8.  2014 BUDGET ORDINANCE:  State statute requires the adoption of an 

ordinance authorizing the increase in total dollars levied in any year it will exceed 

the previous year.  The projected mill levy in dollars will increase for the 2014 

budget over the 2013 amount; however, the total mill rate will remain at 25.00 

mills for 2014. 

Eber Phelps moved, Henry Schwaller IV seconded, that Ordinance No. 

3869 authorizing the City to budget property tax revenues for 2014 in an amount 

exceeding the total dollars levied in the 2013 Budget, be approved. 

Vote:  Ayes:  Kent Steward 

     Henry Schwaller IV  

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

9.  2014 BUDGET APPROVAL:  Ron Mellick moved, Shaun Musil seconded, 

that the 2014 Budget be approved. 

Vote:  Ayes:  Kent Steward 

     Henry Schwaller IV  

     Eber Phelps 

     Shaun Musil 

     Ron Mellick 

10.  REPORT OF THE CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Toby Dougherty stated 

that the Parks Department completed the demonstration garden in front of City 

Hall.  There will be plant identification markers by each grouping to let the public 

know what is planted there and to show the public what drought tolerant 

landscaping can look like.   

 The City Manager also wanted to give credit to Assistant City Manager 

Paul Briseno, Finance Director Kim Rupp, and Executive Assistant Andrea 

Windholz for preparing the 2014 Budget.   

11.  COMMISSION INQUIRIES AND COMMENTS:  Commissioner Mellick 

thanked City staff and Department Heads for putting a good budget together. 

3



 Commissioner Musil added that he is impressed that we have a balanced 

budget and are also planning for the future.   

 Commissioner Phelps complimented Horticulturist Joann Schroller on 

various city gardens throughout the community.  Commissioner Phelps also 

stated he will be attending the Kansas League of Municipalities meeting in 

Emporia.   

 

 The meeting was adjourned 

 

 Submitted by: ______________________________________________ 

     Brenda Kitchen – City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

4



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 4  MEETING DATE: 9-12-13 

 
 
TOPIC:  
 
Mayoral Appointment Recommendations   
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Receive Mayor Steward’s proposed appointments to the Hays Beautification Committee and Hays Housing 
Authority Board. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The following proposed appointments will be presented for approval at the September 26, 2013 City 
Commission meeting. 
 
Hays Beautification Committee 
 
Carolyn Campbell – unexpired term to expire 8-1-14 (1st term) 
Jim Strine – unexpired term to expire 8-1-15 (1st term) 
 
Hays Housing Authority Board 
 
Cathy Van Doren – unexpired term to expire 2-14-16 (1st term) 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Mayor Steward 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
N/A 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Applications Received for these Boards 

 

5



CITY OF HAYS 
APPLICATION FOR SERVING ON A CITY BOARD OR COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
Email: cacampbell4@fhsu.edu  
 
Date: 8/28/2013  
 
Name: Carolyn Ann Campbell  
 
Address: 409 W. 8th St  
 
Day Time Phone Number: (303) 887-4677  
 
Evening Phone Number:  
 
Place of Employment: FHSU Student Government Association  
 
How long have you been a Resident of Hays: Since August 2010  
 
Name of Board(s) you are interested in serving on: Beautification Committee  
 
How much time could you devote per month: As needed when schedule permits  
 
Are you related to anyone who is currently serving on a Board/Committee?: No  
 
If Yes, Explain:  
 
Briefly describe why you are interested in serving on a Board/Committee for the City of 
Hays: I have been involved on the FHSU campus in various organizations since my 
freshman year. While I love serving the students, I believe it is time for me to branch out 
and use my talents around the community instead of focusing solely on the University.  
 
Please list any groups or activities that you participate in, or have previously participated 
in, that demonstrates your involvement in the community: Several activities I have 
participated in include Alpha Gamma Delta sorority/FHSU Greek Life (several 
philanthropy activities); Student Government Association (annual Big Event); and the 
Center for Civic Leadership (civic engagement and community service activities)  
 
 

6



7



CITY OF HAYS 
APPLICATION FOR SERVING ON A CITY BOARD OR COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
Email: vandoren@eaglecom.net  
 
Date: 9/5/2013  
 
Name: Cathy Van Doren  
 
Address: 3305 Country Lane, PO Box 12, Hays, Kansas  
 
Day Time Phone Number: 785-635-7070  
 
Evening Phone Number: 785-635-7070  
 
Place of Employment: FHSU Foundation  
 
How long have you been a Resident of Hays: 43 years  
 
Name of Board(s) you are interested in serving on: Hays Housing Authority  
 
How much time could you devote per month:  
 
Are you related to anyone who is currently serving on a Board/Committee?: No  
 
If Yes, Explain:  
 
Briefly describe why you are interested in serving on a Board/Committee for the City of 
Hays: Providing adequate housing is a concern for every community.  
 
Please list any groups or activities that you participate in, or have previously participated 
in, that demonstrates your involvement in the community: Leadership Hays, Chapter GS 
of PEO, St. Joseph Church council and choir.  
 

8



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 5  MEETING DATE: 9-12-13 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
2013 Uniform Public Offense Code for Kansas Cities 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
It is the recommendation of City staff that the Commission approve Ordinance No. 3870 
adopting the 2013 version of the Uniform Public Offense Code for Kansas Cities for use 
within the City of Hays. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The League of Kansas Municipalities publishes a revised Uniformed Public Offense Code 
(UPOC) on a yearly basis. The UPOC contains the most current legislative changes and 
updates. The majority of the UPOC remain the same from year to year, with only a few 
changes made. Changes to the UPOC are noted on the last page of the publication. A 
handout has been prepared noting the additions and/or changes. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Don Scheibler, Chief of Police 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the ordinance as prepared by City Attorney John Bird. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
NA 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
 
Ordinance No. 3870 adopting the 2013 UPOC as prepared by City Attorney John Bird 
 
Handout noting the additions and/or changes in the 2013 UPOC 

 
 
 

9



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:  Don Scheibler, Police Chief  
 
Work Session: September 5, 2013  
 
Subject: 2013 Uniform Public Offense Code 
 2013 Standard Traffic Ordinance 
 
Person(s)  Don Scheibler, Police Chief 
Responsible: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 
 

Summary 
The Hays City Commission is being asked to adopt by ordinance, the updated 2013 
Uniform Public Offense Code for Kansas Cities (UPOC) and the updated 2013 Standard 
Traffic Ordinance for Kansas Cities (STO) for use within the City of Hays. The 
ordinances and any changes to the UPOC and the STO are presented to the Commission 
annually. It is the recommendation of city staff that the Commission approve the 
ordinances adopting the 2013 revised UPOC and STO.  
 

Background  
The League of Kansas Municipalities publishes a revised  version of Uniform Public 
Offense Code for Kansas Cities (UPOC) and the Standard Traffic Ordinance for Kansas 
Cities (STO) on a yearly basis. These publications are made available for purchase by 
municipalities. The municipalities may adopt these two sets of ordinances for their use. 
These ordinances contain the most current legislative changes and updates put into place 
annually by the Kansas Legislature. 

 

Discussion 
The majority of the UPOC and STO remain the same from year to year, with only a few 
changes being made. Changes to the UPOC and STO are noted on the last page of each 
publication. A handout has been prepared by staff, listing the ordinances that have been 
changed with a brief outline of the changes. 
 
While there are very few changes to the 2013 STO, I did want to bring to your attention 
one addition that I feel will help simplify the lives of our citizens, save our community 
money, and will make traffic stops safer for our police officers.  
 

10



Sec. 200 – Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance includes an amendment to the law that 
will help law enforcement keep pace with modern technology by allowing drivers to 
show proof of insurance using their cell phones, tablets, or even laptops instead of 
traditional paper. This will be a more convenient way for our citizens to maintain their 
insurance information. 
 
In 2012 the Hays Police Department issued 918 citations because drivers were unable to 
show proof of liability insurance at the time of the traffic stop . 800 of these tickets were 
dismissed when the driver was later able to provide the court a current insurance card. 
This amendment to the law should save the court time and money in processing the 
citations, and will also save our citizens money in time away from work. 
 
This addition to the law will make it safer for our police officers during traffic stops by 
allowing them to spend less time on the side of the road and not requiring the drivers to 
search through the vehicle for the traditional paper insurance card. 
 
Law enforcement will still accept the traditional paper insurance card, and are prohibited 
from looking at anything other than the insurance information when viewing the 
electronic version. 
 
Two of the most concerning changes for law enforcement in the 2013 UPOC are found in 
Sec. 10.1 – Criminal Use of Weapons and Sec. 10.1.1 – Criminal Carrying of a 
Weapon.  
 
The changes to Sec. 10.1 removes a switchblade knife from the list of weapons which are 
prohibited from being carried, concealed or unconcealed. Sec. 10.1.1 also removes the 
dagger, dirk, dangerous knife, straight edge razor, and stiletto from the list of dangerous 
weapons which are prohibited from being carried concealed. Both of these changes 
increase the possibility of a police officer coming in contact with a person armed with a 
lethal weapon. The City of Hays is prohibited from having an ordinance that further 
restricts the possession, carrying or use of a knife. 
 
An amendment to Sec. 6.1 - Theft should help to improve the safety of our community 
and our police officers. Previously, those accused of stealing guns were charged with a 
misdemeanor, unless the value of the gun was over $1,000. Under the new law, anyone 
who steals a gun or possesses a stolen gun can be charged with a felony.   
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 
 

Financial Consideration 
There are no financial considerations other than staff hours incurred drafting these 
ordinances. 
 
 

11



Options 
The Commission has the following options for consideration. 

1. Approve the ordinances adopting the 2013 revised UPOC and STO. 
2. Not approve the ordinances adopting the 2013 revisions, with the continuation of 

the 2012/current UPOC and STO. 
 

Recommendation 
It is the recommendation of city staff that Commission approve the ordinances adopting 
the 2013 revised versions of the Uniformed Public Offense Code and Standard Traffic 
Ordinances. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve the ordinances adopting the 2013 revised UPOC and STO 
 

Supporting Documentation 
List of additions or changes made in the 2013 UPOC and STO. 
 
Draft ordinances adopting the 2013 UPOC and STO for use in the City of Hays 

12



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 3870 
 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING PUBLIC OFFENSES WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, 
INCORPORATING BY REFERENCE “THE UNIFORM PUBLIC OFFENSE 
CODE FOR KANSAS CITIES," EDITION OF 2013, AND REPEALING 
ORDINANCE NO.  3853, §§ 1, 2, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, AS PASSED ON SEPTEMBER 13, 2012, AND AS 
PUBLISHED ON SEPTEMBER ____, 2012. 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF HAYS, 
KANSAS: 
 
Section 1.  INCORPORATING UNIFORM PUBLIC OFFENSE CODE.  There is hereby 
incorporated by reference for the purpose of regulating public offenses within the corporate 
limits of the City of Hays, Kansas, that certain code known as “The Uniform Public Offenses 
Code," Edition of 2013, prepared and published in book form by the League of Kansas 
Municipalities, Topeka, Kansas.  No fewer than three copies of said Uniform Public Offense 
Code shall be marked or stamped "Official Copy as Adopted by Ordinance No. ______," and to 
which shall be attached a copy of this ordinance, and filed with the City Clerk to be open to 
inspection and available to the public at all reasonable hours. 
 
Section 2.   Ordinance No. 3853, §§ 1, 2, adopted September 13, 2012, and as published 
September ___, 2012, is hereby repealed. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in The 
Hays Daily News, the official city newspaper. 
 
 PASSED by the Commission the 12th day of September, 2013. 
 
 APPROVED AND SIGNED by the Mayor this 12th day of September, 2013. 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
KENT L. STEWARD 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 

13



CHANGES IN UNIFORM PUBLIC OFFENSE CODE 
FOR 2013 

Brief outline of changes made to ordinance 
Words Added  Words Deleted 

 
 
 4.3  SELLING SEXUAL RELATIONS 
 
(pages 31-32) Title was changed from PROSTITUTION to SELLING 
SEXUAL RELATIONS. Changed section (c) and added sub-section 
(d). 
 
 4.3 PROSTITUTION SELLING SEXUAL RELATIONS. 

Prostitution Selling Sexual Relations is performing for hire, or 
offering or agreeing to perform for hire where there is an 
exchange of value, any of the following acts: 

 
  (a) Sexual intercourse; 
 
  (b) Sodomy; or 
 
  (c) Manual or other bodily contact stimulation of the genitals 

of any person with the intent to arouse or gratify the 
sexual desires of the offender or another. (K.S.A. Supp. 
21-6419) 

 
  (d) It shall be an affirmative defense to any prosecution 

under his section that the defendant committed the 
violation of this section because such defendant was 
subjected to human trafficking or aggravated human 
trafficking, as defined by K.S.A. Supp. 21-5426, and 
amendments thereto, or commercial sexual exploitation 
of a child. (K.S.A. Supp. 21-6419) 

 
  Prostitution Selling Sexual Relations is a Class B violation. 
 

 
 

 4.4  PROMOTING PROSITUTION 
 
(page 32) Deleted section 4.4. 
 
 4.4 PROMOTING PROSTITUTION. Promoting prostitution is: 
 

14



   (a) Establishing, owning, maintaining or managing a house of 
prostitution, or participating in the establishment, 
ownership, maintenance, or management thereof; 

   (b) Permitting any place partially or wholly owned or 
controlled by the defendant to be used as a house of 
prostitution; 

   (c) Procuring a prostitute for a house of prostitution; 
   (d) Inducing another to become a prostitute; 
   (e) Soliciting a patron for a prostitute or for a house of 

prostitution; 
   (f) Procuring a prostitute for a patron; 
   (g) Procuring transportation or paying for the transportation of, 

or transporting a person within this city with the intention 
of assisting or promoting that person’s engaging in 
prostitution; or 

   (h) Being employed to perform any act which is prohibited by 
this section. (K.S.A. Supp. 21-6420) 

 
 Promoting prostitution is a Class A violation except as provided by 

K.S.A. Supp. 21-6420, as amended, where promoting prostitution 
is a felony when the prostitute is under 16 years of age or the 
person promoting prostitution has, prior to the commission of the 
crime, been convicted of promoting prostitution. 

 
 
 
 
 4.5  BUYING SEXUAL RELATIONS 
 
(pages 33-33) Title was changed from PATRONIZING A 
PROSTITUTE to BUYING SEXUAL RELATIONS. Definition was 
changed. Changed language in section (a), section (b) and changed 
violation information. 
 
 
 4.5  PATRONIZING A PROSTITUTE. Patronizing a 

prostitute is either: BUYING SEXUAL RELATIONS. 
Buying sexual relations is knowingly: 

 
   (a) Knowingly entering or remaining in a house of prostitution 

with intent to engage in sexual intercourse, sodomy or any 
unlawful sexual act with a prostitute; or 

    
   (b) Knowingly hiring a prostitute to engage in sexual 

intercourse, sodomy or any unlawful sexual act. (K.S.A. 
Supp. 21-6421) 

15



 
   Patronizing a prostitute is a Class C violation. 
 
   (a) Entering or remaining in a place where sexual relations are 

being sold or offered for sale with intent to engage in 
manual or other bodily contact stimulation of the genitals 
of any person with the intent to arouse or gratify the sexual 
desires of the offender or another, sexual intercourse, 
sodomy or any unlawful sexual act with a person selling 
sexual relations who is 18 years of age or older; or 

 
   (b) hiring a person selling sexual relations who is 18 years of 

age or older to engage in manual or other bodily contact 
stimulation of the genitals of any person with the intent to 
arouse or gratify the sexual desires of the offender or 
another, sexual intercourse, sodomy or an unlawful sexual 
act. (K.S.A. Supp. 21-6421) 

 
   Buying Sexual Relations is a Class A violation on conviction of a 

first offense. In addition to any other sentence imposed, a person 
convicted under this section shall be fined $2,500. All fines 
collected pursuant to this subsection shall be remitted to the 
human trafficking victim assistance fund. 

 
 
 
 
 6.1   THEFT 
 
(pages 39-40) Deleted language in the paragraph after section (e) and 
added sub-sections (a), (b) and (c). 
 
 6.1  THEFT. Theft is any of the following acts done with the 

intent to deprive the owner permanently of the possession, 
use or benefit of the owner’s property or services: 

 
   (a) Obtaining or exerting unauthorized control over property or 

services; 
 
   (b) Obtaining control over property or services by deception; 
 

(c) Obtaining control over property or services by threat; or 
 

(d) Obtaining control over stolen property or services knowing 
the property or services to have been stolen by another. 

 

16



(e) Knowingly dispensing motor fuel into a storage container 
or the fuel tank of a motor vehicle at an establishment in 
which motor fuel is offered for retail sale and leaving the 
premises of the establishment without making payment for 
the motor fuel. (K.S.A. Supp. 21-5801) 

 
   Theft of property of the value of less than $1,000 is a Class A 

violation except: (1) when the person has been convicted of theft two 
or more times; or (2) theft of property regardless of the value from 
three separate mercantile establishments within a period of 72 hours 
as part of the same act or transaction or in two or more acts or 
transactions connected together or constituting parts of a common 
scheme or course of conduct, in which case it is a felony under state 
statute. , except as provided below. 

 
   (a) Property of the value of less than $1,000 from three separate 

mercantile establishments within a period of 72 hours as part of the 
same act or transaction or in two or more acts or transactions 
connected together or constituting parts of a common scheme or 
course of conduct; 

   (b) Property of the value of less than $1,000 if committed by a 
person who has been convicted of theft two or more times; and 

   (c) Property which is a firearm of the value of less than $25,000. 
 
   As used in this section: 

(a) Conviction or convicted includes being convicted of a 
violation of K.S.A. 21-3701, prior to its repeal, this section or 
a municipal ordinance which prohibits the acts that this 
section prohibits; 

 
(b) regulated scrap metal means the same as in K.S.A. 2011 

Supp. 50-6, 109, and amendments thereto; and 
 

(c) value means the value of the property or, if the property is 
regulated scrap metal, the cost to restore the site of the theft 
of such regulated scrap metal to its condition at the time 
immediately prior to the theft of such regulated scrap metal, 
whichever is greater. 

 
 
 
6.5   CRIMINAL DEPRIVATION OF PROPERTY. 
 
(page 43) Added language to paragraph (3) 
 
 6.5  CRIMINAL DEPRIVATION OF PROPERTY.  

17



  Criminal deprivation of property is obtaining or exerting 
unauthorized control over property, with intent to deprive 
the owner of temporary use thereof, without the owner’s 
consent but not with the intent of depriving the owner 
permanently of the possession, use or benefit of such 
owner’s property. (K.S.A. Supp. 21-5803) 

 
    Criminal deprivation of property that is a motor vehicle upon a 

first or second conviction is a Class A violation. Upon a first 
conviction of this paragraph, a person shall be sentenced to not less 
than 30 days nor more than one year’s imprisonment and fined not 
less than $100. Upon a second conviction of this paragraph, a person 
shall be sentenced to not less than 60 days nor more than one year’s 
imprisonment and fined not less than $200. The person convicted 
shall not be eligible for release on probation, suspension or reduction 
of sentence or parole until the person has served the minimum 
mandatory sentence as provided herein. The mandatory provisions of 
this subsection shall not apply to any person where such application 
would result in a manifest injustice. 

 
    Criminal deprivation of property other than a motor vehicle or a 

firearm is a Class A violation. Upon a second or subsequent 
conviction of this subsection, a person shall be sentenced to not less 
than 30 days imprisonment and fined not less than $100, except that 
the provisions of this subsection relating to second or subsequent 
conviction shall not apply to any person where such application 
would result in a manifest injustice. 

 
 
 6.7   CRIMINAL TRESPASS. 
 
(pages 44-45) Deleted and added language to section (1)(B). 
 
 6.7  CRIMINAL TRESPASS. 
 
   (a) Criminal trespass is: 
 

  (1) Entering or remaining upon or in any land, 
nonnavigable body of water, structure, vehicle, 
aircraft or watercraft other than railroad property by 
a person with knowledge that such person is not 
authorized or privileged to do so, and: 

   (A) Such person enters or remains therein in 
defiance of an order not to enter or to leave such 
premises or property personally communicated to 

18



such person by the owner thereof or other 
authorized person; or 

   (B) Such premises or property are posted in a 
manner as provided in K.S.A. 32-1013, and 
amendments thereto, or in any other manner 
reasonably likely to come to the attention of 
intruders, or are locked or fenced or otherwise 
enclosed, or shut or secured against passage or 
entry; or 

   (C) Such person enters or remains therein in 
defiance of a restraining order issued by a court of 
competent jurisdiction and the restraining order has 
been personally served upon the person so 
restrained. 

  (2) Entering or remaining upon or in any public or 
private land or structure in a manner that interferes 
with access to or from any health care facility by a 
person who knows such person is not authorized or 
privileged to do so and such person enters or 
remains thereon or therein in defiance of an order 
not to enter or to leave such land or structure 
personally communicated to such person by the 
owner of the health care facility or other authorized 
person. 

  
(b) As used in this section: 
 
  (1) Health Care Facility means any licensed medical 

care facility, certificated health maintenance 
organization, licensed mental health center, or 
mental health clinic, licensed psychiatric hospital or 
other facility or office where services of a health 
care provider are provided directly to patients. 

  (2) Health Care Provider means any person: 
   (A) Licensed to practice a branch of the healing 

arts; 
   (B) Licensed to practice psychology; 
   (C) Licensed to practice professional or practical 

nursing; 
   (D) Licensed to practice dentistry; 
   (E) Licensed to practice optometry; 
   (F) Licensed to practice pharmacy; 
   (G) Registered to practice podiatry; 
   (H) Licensed as a social worker; or 
   (I) Registered to practice physical therapy. (K.S.A. 

Supp. 21-5808) 

19



 
(c) This section shall not apply to a land surveyor, licensed 

pursuant to article 70 of chapter 74 of the Kansas Statutes 
Annotated, and amendments thereto, and such surveyor’s 
authorized agents and employees who enter upon lands, 
waters, and other premises in the making of a survey. 

 
Criminal trespass is a Class B violation. 
 
Upon a conviction of a violation of subsection (a)(1)(C), a person 

shall be sentenced to not less than 48 consecutive hours of 
imprisonment which must be served either before or as a condition 
of any grant of probation or suspension, reduction of sentence or 
parole. 

 
 
 7.2   INTERFERENCE WITH A LAW ENFORCEMENT 

OFFICER. 
 
(pages 64-65) Deleted language to section (a)(2), added language to 

section (a)(3) and added language to the last paragraph. 
 
 7.2  INTERFERENCE WITH A LAW ENFORCEMENT 

OFFICER. 
 
   Interference with a law enforcement officer is: 
 
  (a) Falsely reporting to a law enforcement officer, law 

enforcement agency, or state investigative agency: 
 

(1) That a particular person has committed a crime, 
knowing that such information is false and intending 
that the officer or agency shall act in reliance upon 
such information; or 

(2) Any information, knowing that such information is 
false and intending to influence, impede or obstruct 
such officer’s or agency’s duty; or 

(2) concealing, destroying or materially altering evidence 
with the intent to prevent or hinder the apprehension 
or prosecution of any person; or 

(3) That a crime has been committed or any information 
concerning a crime or suspected crime, knowing that 
such information is false and intending that the officer 
or agency shall act in reliance upon such information; 
or 

20



   (b) Knowingly obstructing, resisting or opposing any person 
authorized by law to serve process in the service or execution 
or in the attempt to serve or execute any writ, warrant, 
process or order of a court, or in the discharge of any official 
duty. (K.S.A. Supp. 21-5904) 

 
  Interference with a law enforcement officer is a Class A 

violation if the underlining offence is a code violation or a civil 
case.  

 
 
 
 7.5   FALSELY REPORTING AN OFFENSE. 
 
(page 67) Deleted section 7.5. 
 
 7.5  FALSELY REPORTING AN OFFENSE. Falsely 

reporting an offense in informing a law enforcement officer 
that an offense has been committed, knowing that such 
information is false and intending that the officer shall act 
in reliance upon such false information. (K.S.A. Supp. 21-
5904) 

 
    Falsely reporting an offense is a Class A violation. 
 
 
 10.1  CRIMINAL USE OF WEAPONS. 
 
(pages 76-80) Deleted language from section (a)(1) & (a)(2), deleted 

language from section (d)(5), deleted language from section (e), 
deleted and added language from (f)(7) and deleted section (g). 

 
 10.1  CRIMINAL USE OF WEAPONS. 
 
  (a) Criminal use of weapons is knowingly: 
 

(1) Selling, manufacturing, purchasing or possessing any 
bludgeon, sand club, metal knuckles or throwing star; 
,or any knife, commonly referred to as a switch-blade, 
which has a blade that opens automatically by hand 
pressure applied to a button, spring or other device in 
the handle of the knife, or any knife having a blade 
that opens or falls or is ejected into position by the 
force of gravity or by an outward, downward or 
centrifugal thrust or movement; 

21



(2) Possessing with intent to use the same unlawfully 
against another, a dagger, dirk, billy, blackjack, 
slungshot, dangerous knife, straight-edged razor, 
stiletto or any other dangerous or deadly weapon or 
instrument of like character; except that an ordinary 
pocket knife with no blade more than four inches in 
length shall not be construed to be a dangerous knife, 
or a dangerous or deadly weapon or instrument; 

(3) setting a spring gun; 
(4) selling, giving or otherwise transferring any firearm 

with a barrel less than 12 inches long to any person 
under 18 years of age whether the person knows or 
has reason to know the length of the barrel; 

(5) selling, giving or otherwise transferring any firearms 
to any person who is both addicted to and an unlawful 
user of a controlled substance; or 

(6) selling, giving or otherwise transferring any firearm 
to any person who is or has been a mentally ill person 
subject to involuntary commitment for care and 
treatment, as defined in K.S.A. 59-2946, and 
amendments thereto, or a person with an alcohol or 
substance abuse problem subject to involuntary 
commitment for care and treatment as defined in 
K.S.A. 59-29b46, and amendments thereto; 

(7) possession of any firearm by a person who is both 
addicted to and unlawful user of a controlled 
substance; 

(8) possession of any firearm by any person, other than a 
law enforcement officer, in or on any school property 
or grounds upon which is located a building or 
structure used by a unified school district or an 
accredited nonpublic school for student instruction or 
attendance or extracurricular activities of pupils 
enrolled in kindergarten or any of the grades 1 
through 12 or at any regularly scheduled school 
sponsored activity or event whether the person knows 
or has reason to know that such person was in or on 
any such property or grounds; 

(9) refusal to surrender or immediately remove from 
school property or grounds or at any regularly 
scheduled school sponsored activity or event any 
firearm in the possession of any person, other than a 
law enforcement officer, when so requested or 
directed by any duly authorized school employee or 
any law enforcement officer; 

22



(10) possessing a firearm with a barrel less than 12 
inches long by any person less than 18 years of age 
whether the person knows or has reason to know the 
length of the barrel. 

   (b) Criminal use of weapons as defined in: 
 

(1) Subsection (a)(1), (a)(2), (a)(3), (a)(4), (a)(5), (a)(6) 
or (a)(9) is a class A violation; 

(2) subsection (a)(7) or (a)(8) is a class B violation; 
(3) subsection (a)(10) is a class A violation on a first 

offense. 
 
   (c) Subsections (a)(1), (a)(2) shall not apply to: 
 

(1) Law enforcement officers, or any person summoned by 
any such officers to assist in making arrests or preserving 
the peace while actually engaged in assisting such officer; 

(2) Wardens, superintendents, directors, security personnel 
and keepers of prisons, penitentiaries, jails and other 
institutions for the detention of persons accused or 
convicted of crime, while acting within the scope of their 
authority; 

(3) Members of the armed services or reserve forces of the 
United States or the Kansas national guard while in the 
performance of their official duty; or  

(4) The manufacture of, transportation to, or sale of weapons 
to a person authorized under subsections (c)(1), (c)(2) and 
(c)(3) to possess such weapons. 

 
(d) Subsection (a)(8) shall not apply to: 
 

(1) Possession of any firearm in connection with a 
firearms safety course of instruction or firearms 
education course and approved and authorized by the 
school; 

(2) any possession of any firearm specifically authorized 
in writing by the superintendent of any unified school 
district or the chief administrator of any accredited 
nonpublic school; 

(3) possession of a firearm secured in a motor vehicle by 
a parent, guardian, custodian or someone authorized 
to act in such person’s behalf who is delivering or 
colleting a student; 

(4) possession of a firearm secured in a motor vehicle by 
a registered voter who is on the school grounds, 

23



which contain a polling place for the purpose of 
voting during polling hours on an election day; or 

(5) possession of a handgun by an individual who is 
licensed by the attorney general to carry a concealed 
handgun under K.S.A. 2011 Supp. 75-7c01 et seq., 
and amendments thereto. 

    
   (e) Subsection (a)(6) shall not apply to a person who has received 

a certificate of restoration pursuant to K.S.A. 2011 Supp. 75-
7c26, and amendments thereto. 

 
   (f) Subsection (a)(10) shall not apply if such person, less than 18 

years of age, was: 
 

(1) In attendance at a hunter’s safety course or a firearms 
safety course; 

(2) engaging in practice in the use of such firearm or target 
shooting at an established range authorized by the 
governing body of the jurisdiction in which such range is 
located; 

(3) engaging in an organized competition involving the use 
of such firearm, or participating in or practicing for a 
performance by an organization exempt from federal 
income tax pursuant to section 501(c)(3) of the internal 
revenue code of 1986 which uses firearms as a part of 
such performance; 

(4) hunting or trapping pursuant to a valid license issued to 
such person pursuant to article 9 or chapter 32 of the 
Kansas Statutes Annotated, and amendments thereto; 

(5) traveling with any such firearm in such person’s 
possession being unloaded to or from any activity 
described in subsections (k)(1) through (k)(4), only if 
such firearm is secured, unloaded and outside the 
immediate access of such person; 

(6) on real property under the control of such person’s 
parent, legal guardian or grandparent and who has the 
permission of such parent, legal guardian or grandparent 
to possess such firearm; or 

(7) at such person’s residence and who, with the permission 
of such person’s parent or legal guardian, possesses such 
firearm for the purpose of exercising the rights contained 
in the K.S.A. 2011 Supp. 21-5222, 21-5223, 21-5225, and 
amendments thereto. (K.S.A. Supp. 21-6301) 

 
   (g) Subsection (a)(1) shall not apply to any ordinary pocket knife 

which has a spring, detent or other device which creates a 

24



bias towards closure of the blade and which requires hand 
pressure applied to such spring, detent or device trhough the 
blade of the knife to overcome the bias towards closure to 
assist in the opening of the knife. (K.S.A. Supp. 21-6301) 

 
 
 
10.1.1 CRIMINAL CARRYING OF A WEAPON. 
 
(pages 80-83) Deleted language from section (a)(1), deleted and added 

language to section (a)(2), added section (a)(5), added language 
to section (b), added language to section (d), added new section 
(d)(8), deleted language from section (d)(9), deleted old section 
(e) and deleted language from new section (e). 

 
 10.1.1  CRIMINAL CARRYING OF A WEAPON. 
 
  (a) Criminal carrying of a weapon is knowingly carrying: 
 

(1) Any bludgeon, sandclub, metal knuckles or throwing star; 
or any knife, commonly referred to as a switch-blad, 
which has a blade that opens automatically by hand 
pressure applied to a button, spring or other device in the 
handle of the knife, or any knife having a blade that 
opens or falls or is ejected into position by the force of 
gravity or by an outward, downward or centrifugal thrust 
or movement; 

(2) concealed on one’s person, a dagger, dirk, a billy, 
blackjack, slungshot, dangerous knife, straight-edged 
razor, stiletto or any other dangerous or deadly weapon or 
instrument of like character, except that an ordinary 
pocket knife with no blade more than four inchesin length 
shall not be construed to be a dangerous knife, or a or any 
other dangerous or deadly weapon or instrument of like 
character; 

(3) on one’s person or in any land, water or air vehicle, with 
intent to use the same unlawfully, a tear gas or smoke 
bomb or projector or any object containing a noxious 
liquid, gas or substance; 

(4) any pistol, revolver or other firearm concealed on one’s 
person except when on the person’s land or in the 
person’s abode or fixed place of business; or 

(5) Transporting any firearm in an occupied motor vehicle, 
unless such firearm is unloaded and encased in a 
container which completely encloses the firearm. 

    

25



   (b) Criminal carrying of a weapon as defined in Subsections 
(a)(1), (a)(2), (a)(3), (a)(4) or (a)(5) is a class A violation. 

 
   (c) Subsection (a) shall not apply to: 
 

(1) Law enforcement officers, or any person summoned by 
any such officers to assist in making arrests or preserving 
the peace while actually engaged in assisting such officer; 

(2) wardens, superintendents, directors, security personnel 
and keepers of prisons, penitentiaries, jails and other 
institutions for the detention of persons accused or 
convicted of crime, while acting within the scope of their 
authority; 

(3) members of the armed services or reserve forces of the 
United States or the Kansas national guard while in the 
performance of their official duty; or 

(4) the manufacture of, transportation to, or sale of weapons 
to a person authorized under subsections (c)(1), (c)(2) and 
(c)(3) to possess such weapons. 

 
   (d) Subsections (a)(4) and (a)(5) shall not apply to: 
 

(1) Watchmen, while actually engaged in the performance of 
the duties of their employment; 

(2) Licensed hunters or fishermen, while engaged in hunting 
or fishing; 

(3) Private detectives licensed by the state to carry the 
firearm involved, while actually engaged in the duties of 
their employment; 

(4) Detectives or special agents regularly employed by 
railroad companies or other corporations to perform full-
time security or investigative service, while actually 
engaged in the duties of their employment; 

(5) the state fire marshal, the state fire marshal’s deputies or 
any member of a fire department authorized to carry a 
firearm pursuant to K.S.A. 31-157, and amendments 
thereto, while engaged in an investigation in which such 
fire marshal, deputy or member is authorized to carry a 
firearm pursuant to K.S.A. 31-157, and amendments 
thereto; 

(6) special deputy sheriffs described in K.S.A. 19-827, and 
amendments thereto, who have satisfactorily completed 
the basic course of instruction required for permanent 
appointment as a part-time law enforcement officer under 
K.S.A. 74-5607a, and amendments thereto; 

26



(7) the United States attorney for the district of Kansas, the 
attorney general, any district attorney or county attorney, 
any assistant United States attorney if authorized by the 
United States attorney for the district of Kansas, any 
assistant attorney general if authorized by the attorney 
general, or any assistant district attorney or assistant 
county attorney if authorized by the district attorney or 
county attorney by whom such assistant is employed. The 
provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to any person 
not in compliance with K.S.A. 75-7c19, and amendments 
thereto; or 

(8) law enforcement officers from another state or retired law 
enforcement officer meeting the requirements of the 
federal law enforcement officers safety act, 18 U.S.C 
926B and 926C; or 

(9) any person carrying a concealed handgun as authorized 
by K.S.A. 2011 Supp. 75-7c01 through 75-7c17, and 
amendments thereto. 

 
   (e) Subsectoin (a)(1) shall not apply to any ordinary pocket knife 

which has a spring, detent or other device which creates a 
bias towards closure of the blade and which requires hand 
pressure applied to such spring, detent or device through the 
blade of the knife to overcome the bias towards closure to 
assist in the opening of the knife. 

 
(e) It shall not be a violation of this section if a person violates 

the provisions of K.S.A. 2011 Supp. 75-7c03, and 
amendments thereto, but has an otherwise valid license to 
carry a concealed handgun which is issued or recognized by 
this state. (K.S.A. Supp. 21-6302) 

 
 
 
10.5  UNLAWFUL DISCHARGE OF A FIREARM. 
 
(pages 86-83) Changed title from UNLAWFUL DISCHARGE OF 

FIREARMS to UNLAWFUL DISCHARGE OF A FIREARM, 
changed language of all sections.  

 
 10.5  UNLAWFUL DISCHARGE OF A FIREARMS. 
 
   Unlawful discharge of firearms is the discharging or firing of 

any gun, rifle, pistol, revolver or other firearm within the city. 
This section shall not be construed to apply: 

 

27



  (a) To the discharge of firearms by any duly authorized law 
enforcement officer when necessary in the discharge of his or 
her official duties; 

 
  (b) To the discharge of firearms in any licensed shooting gallery; 
 
  (c) To firing squads for ceremonials; nor 
 
  (d) To a legitimate gunsmith in pursuit of his or her trade. 
 

  It shall be a defense that the defendant was acting within the 
scope of K.S.A. Supp. 21-5222, K.S.A. 21-5223, K.S.A. Supp. 
21-5225, K.S.A. Supp. 21-5227, K.S.A. Supp. 21-5228. 

 
   Unlawful discharge of firearms is a Class B violation. 

 
  (a) Unlawful discharge of a firearm is the reckless discharge of a 

firearm within or into the corporate limits of any city. 
 
  (b) This section shall not apply to the discharge of any firearm 

within or into the corporate limits of any city if: 
   (1) The firearm is discharged in the lawful defense of one’s 

person, another person or one’s property; 
   (2) the firearm is discharged at a private or public shooting 

range; 
   (3) the firearm is discharged to lawfully take wildlife unless 

prohibited by the department of wildlife, parks and 
tourism or the governing body of the city; 

   (4) the firearm is discharged by authorized law enforcement 
officers, animal control officers or a person who has a 
wildlife control permit issued by the Kansas department 
of wildlife, parks and tourism; 

   (5) The firearm is discharged by special permit of the chief 
of police or by the sheriff when the city has no police 
department 

   (6) the firearm is discharged using blanks; or 
   (7) the firearm is discharged in lawful self-defense or defense 

of another person against an animal attack. 
    (2013 Session Laws of Kansas, Chapter 105) 
 Unlawful discharge of firearms is a Class B violation. 
 
 
 
10.15 OPERATING A VESSEL UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF 

INTOXICATING LIQUOR OR DRUGS; PENALTIES. 
 

28



(pages 90-92) Changed language in section (a)(1), changed language in 
section (a)(2), added new section (3), added new language to new 
section (4), deleted old section (b) and changed language to new 
section (b), 

 
 10.15  OPERATING A VESSEL UNDER THE INFLUENCE 

OF INTOXICATING LIQUOR OR DRUGS; 
PENALTIES. 

 
  (a) No person shall operate or attempt to operate any vessel 

within this city while: 
 

(1) The alcohol concentration in the person’s blood or breath, 
at the time or within two hours after the person operated 
or attempted to operate the vessel is .08 or more; as 
shown by any competent evidence, including other 
competent evidence, defined in paragraph (1) of 
subsection (b) of K.S.A. 32-1130, and amendments 
thereto, is .08 or more; 

(2) The alcohol concentration in the person’s blood or breath, 
at the time or within two three hours after the person 
operated or attempted to operate the vessel is .02 or more 
and the person is less than 21 years of age; .08 or more; 

(3) The alcohol concentration in the person’s blood or breath, 
at the time or within three hours after the person operated 
or attempted to operate the vessel is .02 or more and the 
person is less than 21 years of age; 

(4) Under the influence of alcohol to a degree that renders 
the person incapable of safely operating a vessel; 

(5) Under the influence of any drug or combination of drugs 
to a degree that renders the person incapable of safely 
operating a vessel; or 

(6) Under the influence of a combination of alcohol and any 
drug or drugs to a degree that renders the person 
incapable of safely operating a vessel. 

 
  (b) No person shall operate or attempt to operate any vessel 

within this city if the person is a habitual user of any narcotic, 
hypnotic, somnifacient or stimulating drug. 

 
(b) If a person is charged with a violation of this section 

involving drugs, the fact that the person is or has been 
entitled to use the drug under the laws of this state shall not 
constitute a defense against the charge. 

 

29



  (c) No person shall operate or attempt to operate any vessel 
within this state for three months after the date of refusal of 
submitting to a test if such person refuses to submit to a test 
pursuant to K.S.A. 32-1132, and amendments thereto. 

 
  (d) Except as provided by subsection (f) (e), violation of this 

section is a violation punishable: 
 

(1) On the first conviction, by imprisonment of not more than 
one year or a fine of not less than $100 nor more than 
$500, or both; and 

(2) On the second or a subsequent conviction, by 
imprisonment for not less than 90 days nor more than one 
year and, in the court’s discretion, a fine of not less than 
$100 nor more than $500. 

 
  (e) Subsection (e) (d) shall not apply to or affect a person less 

than 21 years of age who submits to a breath or blood alcohol 
test requested pursuant to K.S.A. 32-1132 and amendments 
thereto and produces a test result of an alcohol concentration 
of .02 or greater but less than .08. Such person’s boating 
privileges upon the first occurrence shall be suspended for 30 
days and upon a second or subsequent occurrence shall be 
suspended for 90 days. 

 
  (f) In addition to any other penalties prescribed by law or rule 

and regulation, any person convicted of a violation of this 
section shall be required to satisfactorily complete a boater 
safety education course of instruction before such person 
subsequently operates or attempts to operate any vessel. 
(K.S.A. Supp. 31-1131) 

30



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

             COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 6  MEETING DATE: 9-12-13 
 
 
 
TOPIC:  
 
2013 Standard Traffic Ordinance for Kansas Cities 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
It is the recommendation of City staff that the Commission approve Ordinance No. 3871 
adopting the 2013 version of the Standard Traffic Ordinance for Kansas Cities for use within 
the City of Hays. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The League of Kansas Municipalities publishes a revised Standard Traffic Ordinance (STO) 
on a yearly basis.  The STO contains the most current legislative changes and updates. The 
majority of the STO remain the same from year to year, with only a few changes made. 
Changes to the STO are noted on the last page of the publication. A handout has been 
prepared noting the additions and/or changes. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION:  
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Don Scheibler, Chief of Police 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve the ordinance as prepared by City Attorney John Bird. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
NA 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Ordinance No. 3871 adopting the 2013 STO as prepared by City Attorney John Bird 
 
Handout noting the additions and/or changes in the 2013 STO 
 
 

 
 
 

31



ORDINANCE NO. 3871 
 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING TRAFFIC WITHIN THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, INCORPORATING BY 
REFERENCE “THE STANDARD TRAFFIC ORDINANCE FOR KANSAS 
CITIES," EDITION OF 2013, PROVIDING CERTAIN PENALTIES AND 
REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 3854, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, AS PASSED ON SEPTEMBER 13, 2012, 
AND AS PUBLISHED ON SEPTEMBER ___, 2012. 

             _________________________________________________________________ 
  
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF HAYS, 
KANSAS: 
 
 
Section 1.  INCORPORATING STANDARD TRAFFIC ORDINANCE.  There is hereby 
incorporated by reference for the purpose of regulating traffic within the corporate limits of the 
City of Hays, Kansas, that certain standard traffic ordinance known as “The Standard Traffic 
Ordinance for Kansas Cities," Edition of 2013, prepared and published in book form by the 
League of Kansas Municipalities, Topeka, Kansas, save and except such articles, sections, parts 
of portions as are hereafter omitted, deleted, modified or changed.  No fewer than three copies of 
said Standard Traffic Ordinance shall be marked or stamped "Official Copy as Adopted By 
Ordinance No.______", with all sections or portions thereof intended to be omitted or changed 
clearly marked to show any such omission or change and to which shall be attached a copy of 
this ordinance, and filed with the city clerk to be open to inspection and available to the public at 
all reasonable hours.  The police department, municipal judge and all administrative departments 
of the city charged with enforcement of the ordinance shall be supplied, at the cost of the city, 
such number of official copies of such Standard Traffic Ordinance similarly marked, as may be 
deemed expedient. 
 
Section 2.  TRAFFIC INFRACTIONS AND TRAFFIC OFFENSES. 
 
  (a)  An ordinance traffic infraction is a violation of any section of this ordinance 
that prescribes or requires the same behavior as that prescribed or required by a statutory 
provision that is classified as a traffic infraction in K.S.A. 8-2118. 
 
  (b)  All traffic violations which are included within this ordinance and which are 
not ordinance traffic infractions, as defined in subsection (a) of this section, shall be considered 
traffic offenses. 
 
Section 3.  PENALTY FOR SCHEDULED FINES.  The fine for violation of an ordinance traffic 
infraction or any other traffic offense for which the municipal judge establishes a fine in a fine 
schedule shall not be less than -0- nor more than $2,500.00.  A person tried and convicted for 
violation of an ordinance traffic infraction or other traffic offense for which a fine has been 
established in a schedule of fines shall pay a fine fixed by the Court not to exceed $2,500.00. 
 

32



ORDINANCE NO. 3871 
Page 2 
 

 

Section 4.  Ordinance No. 3854, as passed on September 13, 2012, and as published on 
September  ___, 2012, is hereby repealed. 
 
Section 5.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in The 
Hays Daily News, the official city newspaper. 
 
 PASSED by the Commission the 12th day of September, 2013. 
 
 APPROVED AND SIGNED by the Mayor this 12th day of September, 2013. 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
 KENT L. STEWARD 

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
BRENDA KITCHEN 
City Clerk 
 
 
 

33



OVERVIEW OF CHANGES TO THE 2013 STANDARD 
TRAFFIC ORDINANCE FOR KANSAS CITIES 

Brief outline of changes made to ordinance 
Words Added  Words Deleted 

     
 
 Sec. 1.  Definitions.   
 
(pages 6, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21 ) Language 
added to the definition of All-Terrain Vehicle Definition. Definition of 
Commission changed to Commission or state highway commission 
and language added. Definition of Department changed to 
Department or motor vehicle department or vehicle department and 
language added. Added Electronic Certificate of Title to definitions. 
Added Electric Vehicle to definitions. Deleted and added new 
language to the definition of Farm Tractor. Added Farm Trailer to 
definitions. Added language to the definition of highway. Deleted and 
added language to the definition of Implement of Husbandry. Added 
language to the definition of Micro Utility Truck. Language deleted 
from the definition of Motor Vehicle. Language changed to the 
definition of Motorcycle. Language added to the definition of 
Motorized Wheelchair. Added Oil Well Servicing, Oil Well Clean-out 
or Oil Well Drilling Machinery or Equipment to definitions. Deleted 
and added language to the definition of Owner. Changed Passenger 
Car to Passenger Vehicle and added language to the definition. 
Deleted and added language to the definition of Pole Trailer. Added 
Road Tractor to the definitions. Added Self-propelled Farm 
Implement to the definitions. Deleted and added language to the 
definition of Semitrailer. Deleted and added language to the definition 
of Specially Constructed Vehicles. Deleted and added language to the 
definition of Trailer. Deleted and added language to the definition of 
Truck. 
 
 All-Terrain Vehicle. Any motorized non-highway vehicle 50 

inches or less in width, having a dry weight of 1,500 pounds or 
less, traveling on three or more nonhighway tires, and having a 
seat designed to be straddled by the operator. As used in this 
subsection, nonhighway tire means any pneumatic tire six inches 
or more in width, designed for use on wheels with rim diameter of 
14 inches or less. 

 
 Commission or state highway commission.  The Secretary of 

Transportation means the director of vehicles of the department of 
revenue. 

 

34



 Department or motor vehicle department or vehicle 
department Department of Transportation. means the division of 
vehicles of the department of revenue, acting directly or through its 
duly authorized officers and agents. When acting on behalf of the 
department of revenue pursuant to this act, a county treasurer shall 
be deemed to be an agent of the state of Kansas. 

 
 Electronic Certificate of Title. Any electronic record of 

ownership, including any lien or liens that may be recorded, 
retained by the division in accordance with K.S.A. Supp. 8-135d, 
and amendments thereto. 

 
 Electric Vehicle. A vehicle that is powered by an electric motor 

drawing current from rechargeable storage batteries or other 
portable electric energy storage devices, provided the recharge 
energy must be drawn from a source off the vehicle, such as, but 
not limited to: 

(1) Residential electric service; 
(2) an electric vehicle charging station, also called an EV 

charging station, an electric recharging point, a 
charging point, EVSE (Electric Vehicle Supply 
Equipment) or a public charging station. 

 
Farm Tractor. Every motor vehicle designed and used primarily 
as a farm implement for drawing plows, mowing machines and 
other implements of husbandry and such term shall include every 
self-propelled implement of husbandry power unit operated with or 
without other attached farm implements in any manner consistent 
with the structural design of such power unit. 
 
Farm Trailer. Every trailer and semitrailer as those terms are 
defined in this section, designed and used primarily as a farm 
vehicle. 
 
Highway. See Street or Highway. Every way or place of whatever 
nature open to the use of the public as a matter of right for the 
purpose of vehicular travel. The term highway shall not be deemed 
to include a roadway or driveway upon grounds owned by private 
owners, colleges, universities or other institutions. See also Street 
or Highway. 
 
Implement of Husbandry. Every vehicle designed or adapted and 
used exclusively for agricultural operations and only incidentally 
moved or operated upon the highways. Such term shall include, but 
not be limited to, a fertilizer spreader or nurse tank used 
exclusively for dispensing or spreading water, dust or liquid 

35



fertilizers or agricultural chemicals, as defined in K.S.A. 2-2202, 
and amendments thereto, regardless of ownership. Implement of 
husbandry shall not include: including feedlots, and only 
incidentally moved or operated upon the highways. Such term shall 
include, but not be limited to: 
 

(a) a truck mounted with a fertilizer spreader used or 
manufactured principally to spread animal dung; 

 
(b) A mixer-feed truck owned and used by a feedlot, as 

defined by K.S.A. 47-1501, and amendments thereto, 
and specially designed and used exclusively for 
dispensing feed to livestock in such feedlot; or 

 
(c) A truck permanently mounted with a spreader used 

exclusively for dispensing or spreading water, dust or 
liquid fertilizers or agricultural chemicals, as defined in 
K.S.A. 2-2202, and amendments thereto, regardless of 
ownership. 

 
(1) A farm tractor; 
 
(2) a self-propelled farm implement; 

 
(3) a fertilizer spreader, nurse tank or truck permanently 

mounted with a spreader used exclusively for 
dispensing or spreading water, dust or liquid fertilizers 
or agricultural chemicals, as defined in K.S.A. 2-2202, 
and amendments thereto, regardless of ownership; 

 
(4) A truck mounted with a fertilizer spreader used or 

manufactured principally to spread animal dung; or 
 

(5) A mixer-feed truck owned and used by a feedlot, as 
defined by K.S.A 47-1501, and amendments thereto, 
and specially designed and used exclusively for 
dispensing feed to livestock in such feedlot. 

 
Micro Utility Truck. Any motor vehicle which is not less than 48 
inches in width, has an overall length, including the bumper, of not 
more than 160 inches, has an unladen weight, including fuel and 
fluids, of more than 1,500 pounds, can exceed 40 miles per hour as 
originally manufactured and is manufactured with a metal cab. 
Micro utility truck does not include a work-site utility vehicle or 
recreational off-highway vehicle. 
 

36



Motor Vehicle. Every vehicle, other than a motorized bicycle or a 
motorized wheelchair, which is self-propelled. And every vehicle 
which is propelled by electric power obtained from overhead 
trolley wires, but not operated upon rails. 

 
 Motorcycle. Every motor vehicle having a seat or saddle for the 

use of the rider and designed to travel on not more than three 
wheels in contact with the ground, but excluding a tractor designed 
to travel on not more than three wheels in contact with the ground, 
except any such vehicle as may be included within the term 
tractor as defined in this section. 

 
 Motorized Wheelchair. Any self-propelled vehicle designed 

specifically for use by a physically disabled person that is and such 
vehicle is incapable of a speed in excess of 15 miles per hour. 

 
 Oil Well Servicing, Oil Well Clean-out or Oil Well Drilling 

Machinery or Equipment. A vehicle constructed as a machine 
used exclusively for servicing, cleaning-out or drilling an oil well 
and consisting in general of a mast, an engine for power, a draw 
works and a chassis permanently constructed or assembled for one 
or more of those purposes. The passenger capacity of the cab of a 
vehicle shall not be considered in determining whether such 
vehicle is oil well servicing, oil well clean-out or oil well drilling 
machinery or equipment. 

 
 Owner. A person, other than a lienholder, having the property in 

or title to a vehicle; and such term includes a person entitled to the 
use and possession of a vehicle subject to a security interest in 
another person, but excludes a lessee under a lease not intended as 
security. A person who holds the legal title of the vehicle, or in the 
event a vehicle is the subject of an agreement for the conditional 
sale thereof with the right of purchase upon performance of the 
conditions stated in the agreement and with the immediate right of 
possession vested in the conditional vendee or in the event a 
vehicle is subject to a lease of 30 days or more with an immediate 
right of possession vested in the lessee; or in the event a party 
having a security interest in a vehicle is entitled to possession, then 
such conditional vendee or lessee or secured party shall be deemed 
the owner for the purpose of this code. 

 
 Passenger Car Vehicle. Every motor vehicle, except motorcycles 

and motor-driven cycles, designed for carrying 10 passengers or 
less and used for the transportation of persons. as defined in this 
section, which is designed primarily to carry 10 or fewer 
passengers, and which is not used as a truck. 

37



 
 Pole Trailer. Every vehicle without motive power designed to be 

drawn by another vehicle and attached to the towing vehicle by 
means of a reach or pole, or by being boomed or otherwise secured 
to the towing vehicle, and ordinarily used for transporting long or 
irregular shaped loads such as poles, pipes or structural members 
capable, generally, of sustaining themselves as beams between the 
supporting connections. Any two-wheel vehicle used as a trailer 
with bolsters that support the load, and do not have a rack or body 
extending to the tractor drawing the load. 

 
 Road Tractor. Every motor vehicle designed and used for 

drawing other vehicles, and not so constructed as to carry any load 
thereon independently, or any part of the weight of a vehicle or 
load so drawn. 

 
 Self-propelled Farm Implement. Every farm implement designed 

for specific use applications with its motive power unit 
permanently incorporated in its structural design. 

 
 Semitrailer. Every vehicle, with or without motive power, other 

than a pole trailer, designed for carrying persons or property and 
for being drawn by a motor vehicle, and so constructed that some 
part of its weight and that of its load rests upon or is carried by 
another vehicle of the trailer type so designed and used in 
conjunction with a motor vehicle that some part of its own weight 
and that of its own load rests upon or is carried by another vehicle. 

 
 Specially Constructed Vehicle. Every vehicle of a type required 

to be registered in this state, not originally constructed under a 
distinctive name, make, model or type by a generally recognized 
manufacturer of vehicles and not materially altered from its 
original construction. Any vehicle which shall not have been 
originally constructed under a distinctive name, make, model or 
type, or which, if originally otherwise constructed shall have been 
materially altered by the removal of essential parts, or by the 
addition or substitution of essential parts, new or used, derived 
from other vehicles or makes of vehicles. 

 
 Trailer. Every vehicle with or without motive power, other than a 

pole trailer, designed for carrying persons or property and for 
being drawn by a motor vehicle, and so constructed that no part of 
its weight rests upon the towing vehicle designed to carry property 
or passengers wholly on its own structure and to be drawn by a 
motor vehicle. 

 

38



 Truck. Every motor vehicle designed, used, or maintained 
primarily for the transportation of property. A motor vehicle which 
is used for the transportation or delivery of freight and 
merchandise or more than 10 passengers. 

 
 
 
Sec. 25.  Duty to Give Information and Render Aid.   
 
(pages 32-34)  Added language to section (c). 
 
 (a) (1) The driver of any vehicle involved in an accident resulting in 

injury to or death of any person or damage to any attended vehicle 
or other property shall give such driver’s name, address, and the 
registration number of the vehicle such driver is driving, and upon 
request shall exhibit such driver’s license or permit to drive, the 
name of the company with which there is in effect a policy of 
motor vehicle liability insurance covering the vehicle involved in 
the accident and the policy number of such policy to any person 
injured in such accident or to the driver or occupant of or person 
attending any vehicle or other property damaged in such accident, 
and shall give such information and upon request exhibit such 
license or permit and the name of the insurer and policy number to 
any police officer at the scene of the accident. 

  (2) Such driver, insofar as possible, shall immediately make efforts 
to determine whether any person involved in such accident was 
injured or killed, and shall render to any person injured in such 
accident reasonable assistance, including the carrying, or the 
making of arrangements for the carrying of such person to a 
physician, surgeon, or hospital for medical or surgical treatment if 
it is apparent that such treatment is necessary or if such carrying is 
requested by the injured person. 

 
 (b) If no police officer is present, the driver of any vehicle involved in 

such accident, or any occupant of such vehicle 18 years of age or 
older, shall immediately report such accident, by the quickest 
available means of communication, to the nearest office of a duly 
authorized police authority if: 

 
  (1) There is apparently property damage of $1,000 or more; 
  (2) Any person involved in the accident is injured or killed; or 
  (3) The persons specified in subsection (a) are not present or in 

condition to receive such information. 
 
 (c) Unless the insurance company subsequently submits an insurance 

verification form indicating that insurance was not in force, no 

39



person charged with failing to provide the name of such person’s 
insurance company and policy number as required in subsection 
(a), shall be convicted if such person produces in court, within 20 
days of the date of arrest or of issuance of the citation, evidence of 
financial security for the motor vehicle operated, which was valid 
at the time of arrest or of issuance of the citation. For the purpose 
of this subsection, evidence of financial security shall be provided 
by a policy of motor vehicle liability insurance, an identification 
card or certificate of insurance issued to the policyholder by the 
insurer which provides the name of the insurer, the policy number 
and the effective and expiration dates of the policy, or a certificate 
of self-insurance signed by the commissioner of insurance. Such 
evidence also may be produced by displaying on a cellular phone 
or other type of portable electronic device evidence of financial 
security required by this subsection. Any person to whom such 
evidence of financial security is displayed shall view only such 
evidence of financial security. Such person shall be prohibited 
from viewing any other content or information stored on such 
cellular phone or other portable electronic devices. (K.S.A. Supp. 
8-1604.) 

 
 
 
Sec. 30 Driving Under the Influence of Intoxicating Liquor or 
Drugs; Penalties.   
 
(pages 37-42) Deleted and added language to section (h)(2)(A). Deleted 
language from section (h)(2)(D). Deleted and added language to 
section (h)(2)(E). Added section (h)(2)(F). 
 
 
 (a) Driving under the influence is operating or attempting to operate 

any vehicle within this city while: 
 
  (1) The alcohol concentration in the person’s blood or breath as 

shown by any competent evidence, including other 
competent evidence, is .08 or more; 

  (2) The alcohol concentration in the person’s blood or breath, as 
measured within three hours of the time of operating or 
attempting to operate a vehicle, is .08 or more; 

  (3) Under the influence of alcohol to a degree that renders the 
person incapable of safely driving a vehicle; 

  (4) Under the influence of any drug or combination of drugs to a 
degree that renders the person incapable of safely driving a 
vehicle; or 

40



  (5) Under the influence of a combination of alcohol and any drug 
or drugs to a degree that renders the person incapable of 
safely driving a vehicle. 

 
 (b) (1) Driving under the influence is: 
   (A) An ordinance violation. On a first conviction of a 

violation of this section, the person convicted shall be 
sentenced to not less than 48 consecutive hours nor more 
than six months’ imprisonment, or in the court’s discretion 
100 hours of public service, and fined not less than $750 nor 
more than $1,000. The person convicted shall serve at least 
48 consecutive hours’ imprisonment or 100 hours of public 
service either before or as a condition of any grant of 
probation or suspension, reduction of sentence or parole. The 
court may place the person convicted under a house arrest 
program to serve the remainder of the sentence only after 
such person has served 48 consecutive hours’ imprisonment; 

   (B) On a second conviction of a violation of this section the 
person convicted shall be sentenced to not less than 90 days 
nor more than one year’s imprisonment and fined not less 
than $1,250 nor more than $1,750. The person convicted 
shall serve at least five consecutive days’ imprisonment 
before the person is granted probation, suspension or 
reduction of sentence or parole or is otherwise released. The 
five days’ imprisonment mandated by this subsection may be 
served in a work release program only after such person has 
served 48 consecutive hours’ imprisonment, provided such 
work release program requires such person to return to 
confinement at the end of each day in the work release 
program. The person convicted, if placed into a work release 
program, shall serve a minimum of 120 hours of 
confinement. Such 120 hours of confinement shall be a 
period of at least 48 consecutive hours of imprisonment 
followed by confinement hours at the end of and continuing 
to the beginning of the offender’s work day. The court may 
place the person convicted under a house arrest program to 
serve the five days’ imprisonment mandated by this 
subsection only after such person has served 48 consecutive 
hours’ imprisonment. The person convicted, if placed under 
house arrest, shall be monitored by an electronic monitoring 
device, which verifies the offender’s location. The offender 
shall serve a minimum of 120 hours of confinement within 
the boundaries of the offender’s residence. Any exceptions to 
remaining within the boundaries of the offender’s residence 
provided for in the house arrest agreement shall not be 
counted as part of 120 hours; 

41



  (2) In addition, prior to sentencing for any conviction pursuant to 
subsection (b)(1)(A) or (b)(1)(B), the court shall order the 
person to participate in an alcohol and drug evaluation 
conducted by a provider in accordance with K.S.A. 8-1008, 
and amendments thereto. The person shall be required to 
follow any recommendation made by the provider after such 
evaluation, unless otherwise ordered by the court. 

 
 (c) Any person convicted of violating this section who had one or 

more children under the age of 14 years in the vehicle at the time 
of the offense shall have such person’s punishment enhanced by 
one month of imprisonment. This imprisonment must be served 
consecutively to any other minimum mandatory penalty imposed 
for a violation of this section. Any enhanced penalty imposed shall 
not exceed the maximum sentence allowable by law. During the 
service of the enhanced penalty, the judge may order the person on 
house arrest, work release or other conditional release. 

 
 (d) If a person is charged with a violation of this section involving 

drugs, the fact that the person is or has been entitled to use the drug 
under the laws of this state shall not constitute a defense against 
the charge. 

 
 (e) The court may establish the terms and time for payment of any 

fines, fees, assessments and costs imposed pursuant to this section. 
Any assessment and costs shall be required to be paid not later than 
90 days after imposed, and any remainder of the fine shall be paid 
prior to the final release of the defendant by the court. 

 
 (f) In lieu of payment of a fine imposed pursuant to this section, the 

court may order that the person perform community service 
specified by the court. The person shall receive a credit on the fine 
imposed in an amount equal to $5 for each full hour spent by the 
person in the specified community service. The community service 
ordered by the court shall be required to be performed not later 
than one year after the fine is imposed or by an earlier date 
specified by the court. If by the required date the person performs 
an insufficient amount of community service to reduce to zero the 
portion of the fine required to be paid by the person, the remaining 
balance of the fine shall become due on that date. 

 
 (g) The court shall electronically report every conviction of a violation 

of this section and every diversion agreement entered into in lieu 
of further criminal proceedings on a complaint alleging a violation 
of this section to the division. Prior to sentencing under the 
provisions of this section, the court shall request and shall receive 

42



from the division a record or all prior convictions obtained against 
such person for any violations of any of the motor vehicle laws of 
this state. 

 
 (h) For the purpose of determining whether a conviction is a first or 

second conviction in sentencing under this section: 
 
  (1) Convictions for a violation of this section, K.S.A. 8-1567, and 

amendments thereto, or a violation of an ordinance of any city or 
resolution of any county which prohibits the acts that this section 
prohibits, or entering into a diversion agreement in lieu of further 
criminal proceedings on a complaint alleging any such violations, 
shall be taken into account, but only convictions or diversions 
occurring on or after July 1, 2001. Nothing in this provision shall 
be construed as preventing any court from considering any 
convictions or diversions occurring during the person’s lifetime in 
determining the sentence to be imposed within the limits provided 
for a first, second, third, fourth or subsequent offense; 

  (2) any convictions for a violation of the following sections 
occurring during a person’s lifetime shall be taken into account: 

   (A) Refusing to submit to a test to determine the presence of 
alcohol or drugs, as provided in the 2012 Session Laws of 
Kansas, Chapter 172, Section 2 or Section 30.2.1; K.S.A. 
Supp. 8-1025 or Section 30.2.1; 

   (B) driving a commercial motor vehicle under the influence, 
K.S.A. 8-2, 144, and amendments thereto; 

   (C) operating a vessel under the influence of alcohol or 
drugs, K.S.A. 32-1131, and amendments thereto; 

   (D) involuntary manslaughter while driving under the 
influence of alcohol or drugs, K.S.A. 21-3442, prior to its 
repeal, or subsection (a)(3) of K.S.A. Supp. 21-5405, and 
amendments thereto; and 

   (E) aggravated vehicular homicide, K.S.A. 21-3405a, prior to 
its repeal, or vehicular battery, K.S.A. 21-3405b, prior to its 
repeal, if the crime was committed while committing a 
violation of K.S.A. 8-1567, and amendments thereto; battery 
as described in subsection (b)(3) of K.S.A. Supp. 21-5413, 
and amendments thereto; and 

   (F) aggravated vehicular homicide, K.S.A. 21-3405a, prior to 
its repeal, or vehicular battery, K.S.A. 21-3405b, prior to its 
repeal, if the crime was committed while committing a 
violation of K.S.A. 8-1567, and amendments thereto; 

  (3) conviction includes: 
   (A) Entering into a diversion agreement in lieu of further 

criminal proceedings on a complaint alleging a violation of a 
crime described in subsection (h)(2); 

43



   (B) conviction of a violation of an ordinance of a city in this 
state, a resolution of a county in this state or any law of 
another state which would constitute a crime described in 
subsection (h)(1) or (h)(2); and 

   (C) receiving punishment under the uniform code of military 
justice or Kansas code of military justice for an act which 
was committed on a military reservation and which would 
constitute a crime described in subsection (h)(1) or (h)(2) if 
committed off a military reservation in this state; 

  (4) multiple convictions of any crime described in subsection 
(h)(1) or (h)(2) arising from the same arrest shall only be counted 
as one conviction; 

  (5) It is irrelevant whether an offense occurred before or after 
conviction for a previous offense; and 

  (6) A person may enter into a diversion agreement in lieu of further 
criminal proceedings for a violation of this section and 
amendments thereto, only once during the person’s lifetime. 

 
 (i) Upon conviction of a person of a violation of this section, the 

division, upon receiving a report of conviction, shall suspend, 
restrict or suspend and restrict the person’s driving privileges as 
provided by K.S.A. 8-1014, and amendments thereto. 

 
 (j) Upon conviction of a person of a violation of this section, the court 

may order the convicted person to pay restitution to any victim 
who suffered loss due to the violation for which the person was 
convicted. 

 
 (k) Upon the filing of a complaint, citation, or notice to appear 

alleging a person has violated the acts prohibited by this section, 
and prior to conviction thereof, a city attorney shall request and 
shall receive from the: 

   
  (1) Division a record of all prior convictions obtained against such 

person for any violations of any of the motor vehicle laws of this 
state; and 

  (2) Kansas bureau of investigation central repository all criminal 
history record information concerning such person. 

 
 (l) No plea bargaining agreement shall be entered into nor shall any 

judge approve a plea bargaining agreement entered into for the 
purpose of permitting a person charged with a violation of this 
section to avoid the mandatory penalties established by this 
section. For the purpose of the subsection, entering into a diversion 
agreement pursuant to K.S.A. 12-4413 et seq., or K.S.A. 22-2906 

44



et seq. and amendments thereto, shall not constitute plea 
bargaining. 

 
 (m) The alternatives set out in subsections (a)(1), (a)(2) and (a)(3) may 

be pleaded in the alternative, and the city may, but shall not be 
required to, elect one or two of the three prior to submission of the 
case to the fact finder. 

 
 (n) As used in this section: 
 
  (1) Alcohol Concentration means the number of grams of alcohol 

per 100 milliliters of blood or per 210 liters of breath. 
  (2) Imprisonment shall include any restrained environment in 

which the court and law enforcement agency intend to retain 
custody and control of a defendant and such environment has been 
approved by the board of county commissioners or the governing 
body of a city. 

  (2) Drug includes toxic vapors as such term is defined in K.S.A. 
Supp. 21-36a12. (K.S.A. Supp. 8-1567) 

 
Ref.: For persons under 21 years of age, see also K.S.A. 8-1567a. 
 
  {Editor’s Note: Since 2007 the Kansas Legislature has acted to 

give municipal courts jurisdiction over the felony level offences of 
Third, Fourth, and Subsequent Driving Under the Influence (DUI), 
K.S.A. Supp. 8-1567(k)(1) and (k)(3). However, K.S.A. Supp. 8-
1567(l)(2) appears to remove this authority from municipal courts. 
Because of this apparent conflict, and concerns about sentencing 
issues and cost, the Editor has determined that Third, Fourth, and 
Subsequent Driving Under the Influence (DUI) would not be 
included in this Code. Should a city wish to implement there 
provisions concerning prosecuting felony level DUI in municipal 
court, a separate ordinance will need to be adopted.}  
  

 
 
Sec. 30.1.  Driving Commercial Motor Vehicle Under the Influence of 
Intoxicating Liquor or Drugs; Penalties. 
 
(pages 42-47) Deleted and added language to section (1)(2)(B). Deleted 
language from section (l)(2)(D). Deleted and added language to section 
(1)(2)(E). Added section (1)(2)(F). 
 
 (a) Driving a commercial motor vehicle under the influence is 

operating or attempting to operate any commercial motor vehicle 
within this city while: 

45



  (1) The alcohol concentration in the person’s blood or breath, as 
shown by any competent evidence, including other 
competent evidence, is .04 or more; 

  (2) The alcohol concentration in the person’s blood or breath, as 
measured within three hours of the time of driving a 
commercial motor vehicle, is .04 or more; or 

  (3) Committing a violation of subsection (a) of Section 30 of this 
ordinance. 

 
 (b) (1) Driving a commercial motor vehicle under the influence is: 
   (A) An ordinance violation. On a first conviction, the 

person convicted shall be sentenced to not less than 48 
consecutive hours nor more than six months’ imprisonment, 
or in the court’s discretion, 100 hours of public service, and 
fined not less than $750 nor more than $1,000. The person 
convicted shall serve at least 48 consecutive hours’ 
imprisonment or 100 hours of public service either before or 
as a condition of any grant of probation, suspension or 
reduction of sentence or parole or other release; 

   (B) On a second conviction, the person convicted shall be 
sentenced to not less than 90 days nor more than one year’s 
imprisonment and fined not less than $1,250 nor more than 
$1,750. The person convicted shall serve at least five 
consecutive days’ imprisonment before the person is granted 
probation, suspension or reduction of sentence or parole or is 
otherwise released. The five days’ imprisonment mandated 
by this subsection may be served in a work release program 
only after such person has served 48 consecutive hours’ 
imprisonment, provided such work release program requires 
such person to return to confinement at the end of each day in 
the work release program. The person convicted, if placed 
into a work release program, shall serve a minimum of 120 
hours of confinement. Such 120 hours of confinement shall 
be a period of at least 48 consecutive hours of imprisonment 
followed by confinement hours at the end of and continuing 
to the beginning of the offender’s work day. The court may 
place the person convicted under a house arrest program to 
serve the five days’ imprisonment mandated by this section 
only after such person has served 48 consecutive hours’ 
imprisonment. The person convicted, if placed under house 
arrest, shall be monitored by an electronic monitoring device, 
which verifies the offender’s location. The offender shall 
serve a minimum of 120 hours of confinement within the 
boundaries of the offender’s residence. Any exceptions to 
remaining within the boundaries of the offender’s residence 

46



provided for in the house arrest agreement shall not be 
counted as part of the 120 hours; and 

  (2) In addition, prior to sentencing for any conviction pursuant to 
subsection (b)(1)(A) or (b)(1)(B), the court shall order the 
person to participate in an alcohol and drug evaluation 
conducted by a provider in accordance with K.S.A. 8-1008, 
and amendments thereto. The person shall be required to 
follow any recommendation made by the provider after such 
evaluation, unless otherwise ordered by the court. 

 
 (c) Any person convicted of a violation of this subsection who had one 

or more children under the age of 14 years in the vehicle at the 
time of the offense shall have such person’s punishment enhanced 
by one month of imprisonment. This imprisonment shall be served 
consecutively to any other minimum mandatory penalty imposed 
for a violation of this section. Any enhanced penalty imposed shall 
not exceed the maximum sentence allowable by law. During the 
service of the enhanced penalty, the judge may order the person on 
house arrest, work release or other conditional release. 

 
 (d) If a person is charged with a violation of this section involving 

drugs, the fact that the person is or has been entitled to use the drug 
under the laws of this state shall not constitute a defense against 
the charge. 

 
 (e) The court may establish the terms and time for payment of any 

fines, fees, assessments and costs imposed pursuant to this section. 
Any assessment and costs shall be required to be paid not later than 
90 days after imposed, and any remainder of the fine shall be paid 
prior to the final release of the defendant by the court. 

 
 (f) In lieu of payment of a fine imposed pursuant to this section, the 

court may order that the person perform community service 
specified by the court. The person shall receive a credit on the fine 
imposed in an amount equal to $5 for each full hour spent by the 
person in the specified community service. The community service 
ordered by the court shall be required to be performed not later 
than one year after the fine is imposed or by an earlier date 
specified by the court. If by the required date the person performs 
an insufficient amount of community service to reduce to zero the 
portion of the fine required to be paid by the person, the remaining 
balance of the fine shall become due on that date. 

 
 (g) The court shall electronically report every conviction of a violation 

of this section and every diversion agreement entered into in lieu 
of further criminal proceedings on a complaint alleging a violation 

47



of this section to the division. Prior to sentencing under the 
provisions of this section, the court shall request and shall receive 
from the: 

 
  (1) Division a record of all prior convictions obtained against such 

person for any violation of any of the motor vehicle laws of this 
state; and 

  (2) Kansas bureau of investigation central repository all criminal 
history record information concerning such person. 

 
 (h) The court is authorized to order that the convicted person pay 

restitution to any victim who suffered loss due to the violation for 
which the person was convicted. 

 
 (i) Upon the filing of a complaint, citation or notice to appear alleging 

a violation of this section, and prior to conviction thereof, a city 
attorney shall request and shall receive from the: (A) Division of 
vehicles a record of all prior convictions obtained against such 
person for any violations of any of the motor vehicle laws of this 
state; and (B) Kansas bureau of investigation central repository all 
criminal history record information concerning such person. 

 
 (j) No plea bargaining agreement shall be entered into nor shall any 

judge approve a plea bargaining agreement entered into for the 
purpose of permitting a person charged with a violation of this 
section which prohibits the acts prohibited by this section, to avoid 
the mandatory penalties established by this section. 

 
 (k) The alternatives set out in subsections (a)(1), (1)(2) and (a)(3) may 

be pleaded in the alternative, and the city may, but shall not be 
required to, elect one or two of the three prior to submission of the 
case to the fact finder. 

 
 (l) For the purpose of determining whether a conviction is a first, 

second, third or subsequent conviction in sentencing under this 
section: 

 
  (1) Convictions for a violation of K.S.A. 8-1567, and amendments 

thereto, or a violation of an ordinance of any city or resolution of 
any county which prohibits the acts that such section prohibits, or 
entering into a diversion agreement in lieu of further criminal 
proceedings on a complaint alleging any such violations, shall be 
taken into account, but only convictions or diversions occurring on 
or after July 1, 2001. Nothing in this provision shall be construed 
as preventing any court from considering any convictions or 
diversions occurring during the person’s lifetime in determining 

48



the sentence to be imposed within the limits provided for a first, 
second, third, fourth or subsequent offense; 

  (2) any convictions for a violation of the following sections 
occurring during a person’s lifetime shall be taken into account: 

   (A) This section or K.S.A. 8-2, 144, and amendments thereto; 
   (B) refusing to submit to a test to determine the presence of 

alcohol or drugs, as provided in the 2012 Session Laws of 
Kansas, Chapter 172, Section 2, or Section 30.2.1; K.S.A. 
Supp. 8-1025, Section 30.2.1; 

   (C) operating a vessel under the influence of alcohol or drugs, 
K.S.A. 32-1131, and amendments thereto; 

   (D) involuntary manslaughter while driving under the influence 
of alcohol or drugs, K.S.A. 21-3442, prior to its repeal, or 
subsection (a)(3) of K.S.A. Supp. 21-5405, and amendments 
thereto; and 

   (E) aggravated vehicular homicide, K.S.A. 21-3405a, prior to 
its repeal, or vehicular battery, K.S.A. 21-3405b, prior to its 
repeal, if the crime was committed while committing a 
violation of K.S.A. 8-1567, and amendments thereto; 
aggravated battery as described in subsection (b)(3) of K.S.A. 
Supp. 21-5413, and amendments thereto; and 

   (F) aggravated vehicular homicide, K.S.A. 21-3405a, prior to 
its repeal, or vehicular battery, K.S.A. 21-3405b, prior to its 
repeal, if the crime was committed while committing a 
violation of K.S.A. 8-1567, and amendments thereto; 

  (3) conviction includes: 
   (A) Entering into a diversion agreement in lieu of further 

criminal proceedings on a complaint alleging a violation of a 
crime described in subsection (l)(2); 

   (B) conviction of a violation of an ordinance of a city in this 
state, a resolution of a county in this state or any law of 
another state which would constitute a crime described in 
subsection (l)(1) or (l)(2); and 

   (C) receiving punishment under the uniform code of military 
justice or Kansas code of military justice for an act which 
was committed on a military reservation and which would 
constitute a crime described in subsection (l)(1) or (l)(2) if 
committed off a military reservation in this state; 

  (4) it is irrelevant whether an offense occurred before or after 
conviction for a previous offense; and 

  (5) multiple convictions of any crime described in subsection (l)(1) 
or (l)(2) arising from the same arrest shall only be counted as one 
conviction. 

 
 (m) For the purpose of this section: 
 

49



  (1) Alcohol concentration means the number of grams of alcohol 
per 100 milliliters of blood or per 210 liters of breath; 

  (2) Imprisonment shall include any restrained environment in 
which the court and law enforcement agency intend to retain 
custody and control of a defendant and such environment has been 
approved by the board of county commissioners or the governing 
body of a city; and 

  (3) Drug includes toxic vapors as such term is defined in K.S.A. 
Supp. 21-36a12, and amendments thereto. (K.S.A. Supp. 8-2, 144) 

 
 
 
Sec. 30.2.1.  Refusal to Submit to Alcohol or Drug Test. 
 
(pages 48-53) Deleted and added language to section (g)(2)(A). Deleted 
language from section (g)(2)(D). Deleted and added language to 
section (g)(2)(E). Added section (g)(2)(F). Deleted and added language 
to (g)(3)(l). 
 
 (a) Refusing to submit to a test to determine the presence of alcohol or 

drugs is refusing to submit to or complete a test or tests deemed 
consented to under subsection (a) of K.S.A. 8-1001, and 
amendments thereto, if such person has: 

 
  (1) Any prior test refusal as defined in K.S.A. 8-1013, and 

amendments thereto, which occurred: 
   (A) On or after July 1, 2001; and 
   (B) when such person was 18 years of age or older; or 
  (2) any prior conviction for a violation of K.S.A. 8-1567 or 8-2, 

144, and amendments thereto, or a violation of an ordinance of any 
city or resolution of any county which prohibits the acts that such 
section prohibits, or entering into a diversion agreement in lieu of 
further criminal proceedings on a complaint alleging any such 
violations, which occurred: 

   (A) On or after July 1, 2001; and 
   (B) when such person was 18 years of age or older. 
 
 (b) (1) Refusing to submit to a test to determine the presence of 

alcohol or drugs is: 
 
  On a first conviction a code violation. The person convicted shall 

be sentenced to not less than 90 days nor more than one year’s 
imprisonment and fined not less than $1,250 nor more than $1,750. 
The person convicted shall serve at least five consecutive days’ 
imprisonment before the person is granted probation, suspension or 
reduction of sentence or parole or is otherwise released. The five 

50



days’ imprisonment mandated by this subsection may be served in 
a work release program only after such person has served 48 
consecutive hours’ imprisonment, provided such work release 
program requires such person to return to confinement at the end 
of each day in the work release program. The person convicted, if 
placed into a work release program, shall serve a minimum of 120 
hours of confinement. Such 120 hours of confinement shall be a 
period of at least 48 consecutive hours of imprisonment followed 
by confinement hours at the end of and continuing to the beginning 
of the offender’s work day. The court may place the person 
convicted under a house arrest program pursuant to K.S.A. Supp. 
21-6609, and amendments thereto, to serve the five days’ 
imprisonment mandated by this subsection only after such person 
has served 48 consecutive hours’ imprisonment. The person 
convicted, if placed under house arrest, shall be monitored by an 
electronic monitoring device, which verifies the offender’s 
location. The offender shall serve a minimum of 120 hours of 
confinement within the boundaries of the offender’s residence. 
Any exceptions to remaining within the boundaries of the 
offender’s residence provided for in the house arrest agreement 
shall not be counted as part of the 120 hours; 

  (2) In addition, prior to sentencing for any conviction, the court 
shall order the person to participate in an alcohol and drug 
evaluation conducted by a provider in accordance with K.S.A. 8-
1008, and amendments thereto. The person shall be required to 
follow any recommendation made by the provider after such 
evaluation, unless otherwise ordered by the court. 

 
 (c) Any person convicted of violating this section who had one or 

more children under the age of 14 years in the vehicle at the time 
of the offense shall have such person’s punishment enhanced by 
one month of imprisonment. This imprisonment must be served 
consecutively to any other minimum mandatory penalty imposed 
for a violation of this section. Any enhanced penalty imposed shall 
not exceed the maximum sentence allowable by law. During the 
service of the enhanced penalty, the judge may order the person on 
house arrest, work release or other conditional release. 

 
 (d) The court may establish the terms and time for payment of any 

fines, fees, assessments and costs imposed pursuant to this section. 
Any assessments and costs shall be required to be paid not later 
than 90 days after imposed, and any remainder of the fine shall be 
paid prior to then final release of the defendant by the court. 

 
 (e) In lieu of payment of a fine imposed pursuant to this section, the 

court may order that the person perform community service 

51



specified by the court. The person shall receive a credit on the fine 
imposed in an amount equal to $5 for each full hour spent by the 
person in the specified community service. The community service 
ordered by the court shall be required to be performed not later 
than one year after the fine is imposed or by an earlier date 
specified by the court. If by the required date the person performs 
an insufficient amount of community service to reduce  to zero the 
portion of the fine required to be paid by the person, the remaining 
balance of the fine shall become due on that date. 

 
 (f) The court shall electronically report every conviction of a violation 

of this section and every diversion agreement entered into in lieu 
of further criminal proceedings on a complaint alleging a violation 
of this section to the division. Prior to sentencing under the 
provisions of this section, the court shall request and shall receive 
from the division a record of all prior convictions obtained against 
such person for any violations of any of the motor vehicle laws of 
this state. 

 
 (g) For the purpose of determining whether a conviction is a first, 

second, third, fourth or subsequent conviction in sentencing under 
this section: 

 
  (1) Convictions for a violation of K.S.A. 8-1567, and amendments 

thereto, or a violation of an ordinance of any city or resolution of 
any county which prohibits the acts that such section prohibits, or 
entering into a diversion agreement in lieu of further criminal 
proceedings on a complaint alleging any such violations, shall be 
taken into account, but only convictions or diversions occurring: 

   (A) On or after July 1, 2001; and 
   (B) when such person was 18 years of age or older. Nothing in 

this provision shall be construed as preventing any court from 
considering any convictions or diversions occurring during the 
person’s lifetime in determining the sentence to be imposed 
within the limits provided for a first, second, third, fourth or 
subsequent offense; 

  (2) any convictions for a violation of the following sections which 
occurred during a person’s lifetime shall be taken into account, 
but only convictions occurring when such person was 18 years 
of age or older: 

   (A) This section or the 2012 Session Laws of Kansas, Chapter 
172, Section 2; K.S.A. Supp. 8-1025; 

   (B) driving a commercial motor vehicle under the influence, 
K.S.A. 8-2, 144, and amendments thereto; 

   (C) operating a vessel under the influence of alcohol or drugs, 
K.S.A. 32-1131, and amendments thereto; 

52



   (D) involuntary manslaughter while driving under the influence 
of alcohol or drugs, K.S.A. 21-3442, prior to its repeal, or 
subsection (a)(3) of K.S.A. Supp. 21-5405, and amendments 
thereto; and 

   (E) aggravated vehicular homicide, K.S.A. 21-3405a, prior to 
its repeal, or vehicular battery, K.S.A. 21-3405b, prior to its 
repeal, if the crime was committed while committing a 
violation of K.S.A. 8-1567, and amendments thereto; 
aggragaved battery as described in subsection (b)(3) of K.S.A. 
Supp. 21-5413 and amendments thereto; and 

   (F) aggravated vehicular homicide, K.S.A. 21-3405a, prior to 
its repeal, or vehicular battery, K.S.A. 21-3405b, prior to its 
repeal, if the crime was committed while committing a 
violation of K.S.A. 8-1567, and amendments thereto; 

  (3) conviction includes: 
   (A) Entering into a diversion agreement in lieu of further 

criminal proceedings on a complaint alleging a violation of a 
crime described in subsection (g)(2); 

   (B) conviction of a violation of an ordinance of a city in this 
state, a resolution of a county in this state or any law of another 
stated which would constitute a crime described in subsection 
(g)(1) or (g)(2); and 

   (C) receiving punishment under the uniform code of military 
justice or Kansas code of military justice for an act which was 
committed on a military reservation and which would 
constitute a crime described in subsection (g)(1) or (g)(2) if 
committed off a military reservation in this state; 

  (4) it is irrelevant whether an offense occurred before or after 
conviction for a previous offense; 

  (5) multiple convictions of any crime described in subsection 
(g)(1) or (g)(2) arising from the same arrest shall only be 
counted as one conviction; 

  (6) the prior conviction that is an element of the crime of refusing 
to submit to a test to determine the presence of alcohol or drugs 
shall not be used for the purpose of determining whether a 
conviction is a first, second, third or subsequent conviction in 
sentencing under this section and shall not be considered in 
determining the sentence to be imposed within the limits 
provided for a first, second, third or subsequent offense; and 

  (7) a person may enter into a diversion agreement in lieu of further 
criminal proceedings for a violation of this section, or an 
ordinance which prohibits the acts of this section, only once 
during the person’s lifetime. 

 
 (h) Upon conviction of a person of a violation of this section, the 

division, upon receiving a report of conviction, shall suspend, 

53



restrict or suspend and restrict the person’s driving privileges as 
provided by K.S.A. 8-1014, and amendments thereto. 

 
 (i) Upon conviction of a person of a violation of this section, the court 

may order that the convicted person pay restitution to any victim 
who suffered loss due to the violation for which the person was 
convicted. 

 
 (j) Upon the filing of a complaint, citation or notice to appear alleging 

a person has violated the acts prohibited by this section, and prior 
to conviction thereof, a city attorney shall request and shall receive 
from the: 

 
  (1) Division a record of all prior convictions obtained against such 

person for any violations of any of the motor vehicle laws of this 
state; and 

  (2) Kansas bureau of investigation central repository all criminal 
history record information concerning such person. 

 
 (k) No plea bargaining agreement shall be entered into nor shall any 

judge approve a plea bargaining agreement entered into for the 
purpose of permitting a person charged with a violation of this 
section to avoid the mandatory penalties established by this section 
or by the ordinance. For the purpose of this subsection, entering 
into a diversion agreement pursuant to K.S.A. 12-4413 et seq. or 
22-2906 et seq., and amendments thereto, shall not constitute plea 
bargaining. 

 
 (l) As used in this section, imprisonment shall include any restrained 

environment in which the court and law enforcement agency 
intend to retain custody and control of a defendant and such 
environment has been approved by the board of county 
commissioners or the governing body of a city. (2012 Session 
Laws of Kansas, Chapter 172, Section 2) (K.S.A. Supp. 8-1025) 

 
 {Editor’s Note: Due to concerns about sentencing issues and cost, the 

Editor has determined that Second, Third, or Subsequent Refusal to 
Submit to Alcohol or Drug Test offenses would not be included in this 
Code. Should a city wish to implement these provisions concerning 
prosecuting felony level Refusal to Submit to Alcohol or Drug Test 
offenses in municipal court, a separate ordinance will need to be 
adopted.} 

 
 
 
Sec. 30.3  Ignition Interlock Devices; Tampering. 

54



 
(pages 53-54) Added the Editors Note. 
 
 (a) No person shall: 
 
  (1) Tamper with an ignition interlock device, circumvent it or 

render it inaccurate or inoperative; 
  (2) Request or solicit another to blow into an ignition interlock 

device, or start a motor vehicle equipped with such device, 
providing an operable motor vehicle to a person whose driving 
privileges have been restricted to driving a motor vehicle equipped 
with such device; 

  (3) Blow into an ignition interlock device, or start a motor vehicle 
equipped with such device, providing an operable motor vehicle to 
a person whose driving privileges have been restricted to driving a 
motor vehicle equipped with such device; or 

  (4) Operate a vehicle not equipped with an ignition interlock 
device while such person’s driving privileges have been restricted 
to driving a motor vehicle equipped with such device. 

 
 (b) Violation of this section shall be punished by a fine of not more 

than $2,500 or by imprisonment for not more than one year or by 
both such fine an imprisonment. (K.S.A. Supp. 8-1017) 

 
 {Editors Note: K.S.A. 8-1015 (e) seems to provide an exception to 

K.S.A. 8-1017 (a)(4) as replicated in STO section 30.3 (a)(4) with 
regard to driving an employer’s vehicle. However, there are also 
exceptions to this exception. Please see K.S.A. 8-1015 for further 
guidance.} 

 
 
Sec. 183.  Head Lamps 
 
(page 133) Deleted language from section (b). Added section (c). 
 
 (a) Every motorcycle and every motor-driven cycle shall be equipped 

with at least one head lamp which shall comply with the 
requirements and limitations of this article. 

 
 (b) Every head lamp upon every motorcycle and motor-driven cycle 

shall be located at a height of not more than 54 inches nor less than 
24 inches to be measured as set forth in subsection (b) of Section 
145. (K.S.A. 8-1801) 

 
 (c) Any headlamp, required by this section, may be wired with a 

headlamp modulation system provided the headlamp modulation 

55



system complies with federal standards established by 49 C.F.R. 
571.108. (K.S.A. Supp. 8-1801) 

 
 Ref.: Sec. 35. 
 
 
 
Sec. 186.  Stop Lamps. 
 
(page 134) Deleted language from section (b). Added section (c). 
 
 (a) Every motorcycle and motor-driven cycle shall be equipped with at 

least one stop lamp meeting the requirements of subsection (a) of 
Section 161. 

 
 (b) Every motorcycle manufactured after January 1, 1973, shall be 

equipped with electric turn signals meeting the requirements of 
subsection (b) of Section 161. Motor-driven cycles may, but need 
not, be equipped with electric turn signals. 

 
 (c) In addition to the lamps otherwise permitted by this article, a 

motorcycle may be equipped with lamps on the sides thereof, 
visible from the side of the motorcycle but not from the front or the 
rear thereof, which lamps, together with mountings or receptacles, 
shall be set into depressions or recesses in the body or wheel of the 
motorcycle and shall not protrude beyond or outside the body or 
the wheel of the motorcycle. The light source may emit only white, 
amber or red light without glare. (K.S.A. Supp. 8-1804) 

 
 
Sec. 200.  Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance. 
 
(pages 143-144) Deleted and added language to section (d). Added 
language to section (e). 
 
 (a) Every owner of a motor vehicle shall provide motor vehicle 

liability insurance coverage in accordance with the Kansas 
Automobile Injury Reparations Act, K.S.A. 40-3101 et seq., for 
every motor vehicle owned by such person, unless such motor 
vehicle is included under an approved self-insurance plan as 
provided in K.S.A. 40-3104 (f) or is otherwise expressly exempted 
under the laws of this state. 

 
 (b) An owner of an uninsured motor vehicle shall not permit the 

operation thereof upon a highway or upon property open to use by 

56



the public, unless such motor vehicle is expressly exempted from 
said requirements pursuant to the laws of this state. 

 
 (c) No person shall knowingly drive an uninsured motor vehicle upon 

a highway or upon property open to use by the public, unless such 
motor vehicle is expressly exempted from said requirements 
pursuant to the laws of this state. 

 
 (d) (1) Any person operating a motor vehicle upon a highway or upon 

property open to use by the public shall display, upon demand, 
evidence of financial security to a law enforcement officer. The 
law enforcement officer shall issue a citation to any person who 
fails to display evidence of financial security upon such demand. 
The law enforcement officer shall attach a copy of the insurance 
verification form prescribed by the secretary of revenue to the copy 
of the citation forwarded to the court. Such evidence of financial 
security which meets the requirements of subsection (e) may be 
displayed on a cellular phone or any other type of portable 
electronic device. The law enforcement officer to whom such 
evidence of financial security is displayed shall view only such 
evidence of financial responsibility. Such law enforcement officer 
shall be prohibited from viewing any other content or information 
stored on such cellular phone or other type of portable electronic 
device. The law enforcement officer shall issue a citation to any 
person who fails to display evidence of financial security upon 
such demand. The law enforcement officer shall attach a copy of 
the insurance verification form prescribed by the secretary of 
revenue to the copy of the citation forwarded to the court. 

 
  (2) No citation shall be issued to any person for failure to provide 

proof of financial security when evidence of financial security 
meeting the standards of subsection (e) is displayed upon demand 
of a law enforcement officer. Whenever the authenticity of such 
evidence is questionable, the law enforcement officer may initiate 
the preparation of the insurance verification form prescribed by the 
secretary of revenue by recording information from the evidence of 
financial security displayed. The officer shall immediately forward 
the form to the department of revenue, and the department shall 
proceed with verification in the manner prescribed in the following 
paragraph. Upon return of a form indicating that insurance was not 
in force on the date indicated on the form, the department shall 
immediately forward a copy of the form to the law enforcement 
officer initiating preparation of the form. 

 
 (e) Unless the insurance company subsequently submits an insurance 

verification form indicating that insurance was not in force, no 

57



person charged with violating subsections (b), (c) or (d) shall be 
convicted if such person produces in court, within 10 days of the 
date of arrest or of issuance of the citation, evidence of financial 
security for the motor vehicle operated, which was valid at the time 
of arrest or of issuance of the citation. Such evidence of financial 
security may be produced by displaying such information on a 
cellular phone or any other type of portable electronic device. Any 
person to whom such evidence of financial security is displayed on 
a cellular phone or any other type of portable electronic device 
shall be prohibited from viewing any other content or information 
stored on such cellular phone or other type of portable electronic 
device. For the purpose of this subsection evidence of financial 
security shall be provided by a policy of motor vehicle liability 
insurance, an identification card or certificate of insurance issued 
to the policyholder by the insurer which provides the name of the 
insurer, the policy number and the effective and expiration dates of 
the policy, or a certificate of self-insurance signed by the 
commissioner of insurance. 

 
 (f) Any person violating any provision of this section shall be guilty 

of a violation of this ordinance and subject to a fine of not less than 
$300 nor more than $1,000 or by imprisonment for a term of not 
more than six months, or both such fine and imprisonment, except 
that any person convicted of violating any provision of this section 
within three years of any such prior conviction shall be guilty of a 
violation of this ordinance and subject to a fine of not less than 
$800 nor more than $2,500 or by imprisonment for a term not to 
exceed one year, or both such fine and imprisonment. (K.S.A. 
Supp. 40-3104) 

58



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

                 COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 7               MEETING DATE: 9-12-13 
 
 
 
TOPIC: 
 
Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition Resolution to Establish Benefit District (Danby Lane) 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve Resolution No. 2013-021 authorizing the creation of a special benefit district for 
infrastructure improvements in the estimated amount of $473,093.40 for the development of 
18 lots within the Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
Western Plains Service Corp. has petitioned the City for Street, Storm Sewer, Water, and Sanitary 
Sewer Improvements to an area containing 18 lots adjacent to West 45th St. within the Golden 
Belt Estates 5th Addition on the street known as Danby Lane.  The engineer’s estimate for total 
construction costs are $473,093.40.  This project is consistent with past residential developments 
within the City of Hays.  Staff recommends adopting the attached resolution authorizing the 
improvements in the estimated amount of $473,093.40. 

PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adopting the attached resolution authorizing the creation of a special benefit 
district for improvements in the estimated amount of $473,093.40. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
n/a 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Resolution No. 2013-021 
Signed Petition 
Map of Benefit District 
     

59



P:\Agenda Materials\2013\9-5-13\Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition Benefit District Memo 1.1.doc  

Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:  Jesse Rohr, PIE Superintendent 
 
Work Session: September 5, 2013  
 
Subject: Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition Resolution to Establish 

Benefit District (Danby Lane) 
 
Person(s)  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Responsible: I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
Western Plains Service Corp. has petitioned the City for Street, Storm Sewer, Water, and 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements to an area containing 18 lots adjacent to West 45th St. within the 
Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition on the street known as Danby Lane.  The engineers estimate 
for total construction costs are $473,093.40.  This project is consistent with past residential 
developments within the City of Hays.  Staff recommends adopting the attached resolution 
authorizing the improvements in the estimated amount of $473,093.40. 

Background  
This is a continuation of an existing development that has been developing in phases over the 
last several years.  This project follows the plan that has been set forth and approved through 
the platting process which was recently completed in May of 2013.  

Discussion 
Western Plains Service Corp. has petitioned the City for Street, Storm Sewer, Water, and 
Sanitary Sewer Improvements to an area containing 18 lots adjacent to West 45th St. within the 
Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition on a newly platted street named Danby Lane.  The engineers 
estimate for total construction costs is $473,093.40.  There are no over-sizing costs to the City 
in this project.  One street will be constructed along with the associated utilities (water, 
sanitary sewer, and storm sewer) as specified by the City of Hays Development Policy 
Infrastructure Guidelines for New Development.  This project is consistent with past 
residential developments within the City of Hays.   

Legal Consideration 
Bond Counsel has approved all of the forms and Resolution for this item and there are no 
other legal concerns. 
 

60



P:\Agenda Materials\2013\9-5-13\Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition Benefit District Memo 1.1.doc  

Financial Consideration 
The developer is intending to finance the development project through the creation of a 
special benefit district.  100% of the costs for this project will be allowed to be special 
assessed per the agreement dated January 27, 2005 between the City of Hays and 
Western Plains Service Corp.  Per the agreement, the Developer would be allowed to 
assess 100% of the future costs within the development since they paid 100% of the costs 
to construct 45th St. and associated utilities in 2005.  There are no over-sizing costs to the 
City in this project.  
 

Options 
Options include the following: 

 Approve the Resolution authorizing the creation of the special benefit district for 
the Golden Belt Estates 4th Addition. 

 Do not approve the Resolution. 
  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends adopting the attached resolution authorizing the creation of a special benefit 
district for improvements in the estimated amount of $473,093.40. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve the Resolution authorizing the creation of a special benefit district for 
infrastructure improvements in the estimated amount of $473,093.40 for the development 
of 18 lots within the Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition. 

 
Supporting Documentation 

Signed Petition 
Map of Benefit District 
Resolution 
 

 
 

61



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-021 
 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE ADVISABILITY OF THE MAKING OF 
CERTAIN INTERNAL IMPROVEMENTS IN THE CITY OF HAYS, KANSAS, 
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS WITH RESPECT THERETO; AND 
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE MAKING OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUCH FINDINGS (WATER, 
SANITARY SEWER, STORM SEWER AND STREET 
IMPROVEMENTS/GOLDEN BELT ESTATES 5TH ADDITION). 
 

 WHEREAS,  a petition (the “Petition”) was filed on August 2, 2013 with the City Clerk of 
the City of Hays, Kansas, (the “City”), proposing certain internal improvements described herein; 
and said petition sets forth:  (a) the general nature of the proposed improvements, (b) the 
estimated or probable cost of the proposed improvements; (c) the extent of the proposed 
improvement; (d) the proposed method of assessment; (e) the proposed apportionment of the 
cost between the improvement district and the City-at-large; and (f) a request that such 
improvements be made without notice and hearing as required by K.S.A. 12-6a04 (the “Act’); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City hereby finds and determines that said 
petition is sufficient. 
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
HAYS, KANSAS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  Findings of Advisability.  The Governing Body hereby finds and 
determines that it is advisable to make the following improvements: 
 

(a) General nature of the improvements:  the installation of water lines, sewer lines, 
storm sewer and grading, paving, curbing and guttering of Danby Lane (the 
“Improvements”).  All construction shall be done in accordance with the City of 
Hays Standards. 

 
(b) The estimated or probable cost of the Improvements is: $473,093.40 to be 

increased at the pro-rata rate of ½ percent per month from and after the date of 
adoption of this Resolution, plus costs of issuance and plus costs of interest on 
any temporary financing (the “Improvement Cost”). 

 
(c) The extent of the improvement district (the “Improvement District”) to be 

assessed for the cost of the improvements is: 
 
   Lot One (1) thru Lot Eighteen (18), Block Two (2); all in Golden Belt 

Estates 5th Addition to the City of Hays, Ellis County, Kansas. 
 

(d) The method of assessment is: equally per lot without regard to lot size, each lot 
being assessed 1/18th of the total project costs. 

 
(e) The apportionment of the cost of the improvements between the Improvement 

District and the City-at-large shall be as follows:  
 

One hundred percent (100%) of the total actual cost of the improvements 
shall be apportioned to the Improvement District, except that the City-at-
large shall pay 100% of the additional costs of any required pavement 
width, additional required pavement thickness and intersections, and 
required oversized water, sewer and storm sewer lines as provided with 
“Infrastructure Guidelines for New Development” adopted by the 
Governing Body of the City of Hays, Kansas, October 22, 2009.  The 
cost of such additional street improvements or oversized water, sewer or 
storm sewer lines shall not exceed 95% of the total Improvement Costs. 

62



 Resolution No. 2013-021 
 
 
 

Page 2

 
 SECTION 2.  Authorization of Improvements. The above said improvements are 
hereby authorized and ordered to be made in accordance with the findings of the Governing Body 
of the City as set forth in Section 1 of this Resolution. 
 
 SECTION 3.  Intent to Reimburse.  The City expects to make capital expenditures on 
and after the date of this Resolution in connection with the above described improvements, and 
intends to reimburse itself for such expenditures with the proceeds of one or more series of 
general obligation bonds and temporary notes of the City in the maximum principal amount of 
$473,093.40 increased by ½% per month from and after the date of adoption of this resolution, 
plus cost of issuance and plus costs of interest on any temporary financing. 
 
 SECTION 4.  Effective Date.  The Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.  This 
Resolution shall be published one time in the Hays Daily News, the official City newspaper, and 
shall also be filed of record in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Ellis County, Kansas. 
 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Hays, on      
September 12, 2013. 
 
 
(Seal)  
 
   ______________________________________ 
   KENT L. STEWARD 
   MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
   
BRENDA KITCHEN 
CITY CLERK 

63



PETITION FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS
We the undersigned owner(s) of record of property liable for assessment for the following proposed
improvements hereby propose that such improvements be made in the manner provided by K.S.A. 12-6a01
et seq., as amended (the "Act").

(a) The proposed improvements are as follows:

The installation of water lines, sanitary sewer lines, and storm sewers along, and the
grading, paving, curbing and guttering of Danby Lane

(the "Improvements"), all in the Golden Belt Estates 5" Addition to the Cityof Hays, Kansas.

(b) The estimated or probable cost of the Improvements is $473,093.40 to be increased at the pro-rata rate
of Vi percent per month from and after the date of adoption of the resolution determining the
advisability of the Improvements, plus cost of issuance and plus costs of interest on any temporary
financing (the "Improvement Costs").

(c) The extent of the proposed Improvement District to be assessed is as indicated on the attached drawing
and is described as follows:

Lot One (1) thru Lot Eighteen (18), Block Two (2);
All inGolden Belt Estates 5th Addition to the City of Hays

(the "Improvement District")

(d) The proposed method of assessment to the Improvement District is as follows:

Equally on an individual per lot basis being computed without regard to lot size, each lot being
assessed 1/18th of the total project costs.

(e) The apportionment of the total actual Improvement Costs shall be as follows:

One hundred percent (100%) to the Improvement District; except, provided that the cost of any
additional required pavement width, additional required pavement thickness, intersections, required
oversized water, sewer, and storm sewer lines, in connection with any of Improvement are to be
apportioned one hundred percent (100%) to the city-at-large, as provided within "Infrastructure
Guidelines for New Development" adopted by the Governing Body of the City of Hays, Kansas,
October 22, 2009.

(f) We further propose that the Improvements be made without notice and hearing as required by the Act.

NOTICE TO PETITION SIGNERS

No name may be withdrawn from this petition after the Governing Body commences consideration of the
petition or later than seven (7) days after this petition has been filed with the City Clerk, whichever occurs
first.

Respectfully submitted,

SIGNATURE ADDRESS

fO SB** 7-37
xJejy. tfk^t $<*/£.<_
?t-jao^'*yhif>i "Z^t c.

DATE/TIME

OF SIGNING

<%-?•' -&>is
31 'r,s*~7

PROPERTY OWNED

WITHIN PROPOSED

IMPROVEMENT

DISTRICT

fr-g/

64



65

jrohr
Polygonal Line

jrohr
Text Box
BENEFIT DISTRICT

jrohr
Line



 

66



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

               COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 8                MEETING DATE: 9-12-13 
 
 
 
TOPIC: 
 
Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition Engineering Services Agreement (Danby Lane) 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Approve the Engineering Services Agreement with Ruder Engineering & Surveying, LLC for 
an amount not to exceed $28,200 for the development of Block 2, Golden Belt Estates 5th 
Addition. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
Western Plains Service Corporation has petitioned the City for Street, Storm Sewer, Water, 
and Sanitary Sewer Improvements to an area containing 18 lots within Block 2 of the Golden 
Belt Estates 5th Addition.  The resolution accepting the petition is moving forward under a 
separate agenda item.  Ruder Engineering and Surveying, L.L.C. has now prepared a 
contract for engineering services to include engineering design, contractor solicitation, 
construction engineering, and warranty inspection.  The contract is for a not-to-exceed 
amount of $28,200.  Staff recommends that the commission authorize the Mayor to sign the 
Engineering Services Agreement with Ruder Engineering & Surveying, LLC for professional 
services related to improvements within Block 2 of the Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition in an 
amount not to exceed $28,200. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the commission authorize the Mayor to sign the Engineering Services 
Agreement with Ruder Engineering & Surveying, LLC for professional services related to 
improvements to Block 2 of the Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition in an amount not to exceed 
$28,200. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
n/a 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Engineering Services Agreement     

67



P:\Agenda Materials\2013\9-5-13\Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition Engineering Services Agreement Memo 1.1.doc  

  Commission Work Session Agenda 
Memo  

 
From:  Jesse Rohr, PIE Superintendent 
 
Work Session: September 5, 2013  
 
Subject: Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition Engineering Services 

Agreement (Danby Lane) 
 
Person(s)  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Responsible: I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
Western Plains Service Corporation has petitioned the City for Street, Storm Sewer, 
Water, and Sanitary Sewer Improvements to an area containing 18 lots within Block 2 of 
the Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition.  The resolution accepting the petition is moving 
forward under a separate agenda item.  Ruder Engineering and Surveying, L.L.C. has 
now prepared a contract for engineering services to include engineering design, 
contractor solicitation, construction engineering, and warranty inspection.  The contract is 
for a not-to-exceed amount of $28,200.  Staff recommends that the commission authorize 
the Mayor to sign the Engineering Services Agreement with Ruder Engineering & 
Surveying, LLC for professional services related to improvements within Block 2 of the 
Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition in an amount not to exceed $28,200. 
 

Background  
This particular plat was approved in May of 2013.  There are 18 lots slated for single-
family residential development. 
 

Discussion 
Western Plains Service Corporation has petitioned the City for Street, Storm Sewer, 
Water, and Sanitary Sewer Improvements to an area containing 18 lots within Block 2 of 
the Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition.   The resolution accepting the petition is moving 
forward under a separate agenda item.  Ruder Engineering and Surveying, L.L.C. has 
prepared a contract for engineering services to include engineering design, contractor 
solicitation, construction engineering, and warranty inspection.  The contract is for a not-
to-exceed amount of $28,200. 
 

 

68



P:\Agenda Materials\2013\9-5-13\Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition Engineering Services Agreement Memo 1.1.doc  

Legal Consideration 
The transaction is a pass-through procedure for the City and there are no known legal 
obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 
 

Options 
Options include the following: 

 Approve the Engineering Services Agreement 
 Do not approve the Agreement 

  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the commission authorize the Mayor to sign the Engineering 
Services Agreement with Ruder Engineering & Surveying, LLC for professional services 
related to improvements to Block 2 of the Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition in an amount 
not to exceed $28,200. 
 

Action Requested 
Approve the Engineering Services Agreement with Ruder Engineering & Surveying, 
LLC for an amount not to exceed $28,200 for the development of Block 2, Golden Belt 
Estates 5th Addition. 

 
Supporting Documentation 

Engineering Services Agreement 
 

 
 

69



ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT

TfflS AGREEMENT,enteredinto on the day of , 2013,by
the City of Hays, Kansas, party of the first part, hereinafter referred to as the "City", andWestern
Plains Service Corporation, party of thesecond part, hereinafter referred to asthe"Developer" and
the firm of Ruder Engineering & Surveying, LLC, party of thethirdpart, hereinafter referred to as
the "Consultant".

WITNESSETH:

That the City andthe Developer planto complete improvements to andwithin the Golden
BeltEstates FifthAdditionto the Cityof Hays. Theimprovements includethe sanitary sewerlines,
water lines and street construction needed to serve the lots on Danby Lane in said Addition.

These improvements willbe hereinafter referred to as the "IMPROVEMENT".

ThattheCityandthe Developer require professional engineering services to assist themin
implementing the IMPROVEMENT.

That the City and the Developer have selected Ruder Engineering & Surveying, LLC to
perform these services;

NOW,THEREFORE, in consideration of thesepremises and the mutualcovenants herein
contained, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Ruder Engineering &Surveying, LLC shall beresponsible forengineering services required
bythevarious portions ofthe"IMPROVEMENT". The services required onthe"IMPROVEMENT"
are described as follows:

Engineering Design Phase:

1. Perform field surveys tocollect pertinent topographic andengineering datanecessary tocomplete
the design of the waterlines, sewer lines andstreets as listedabove.

2. Prepare bid and construction documents in sufficient detail, using City's standards, where
applicable, toallow competitive bids tobereceived. All portions oftheproject shall be included
in the same set ofthe bid and construction documents.

3. Review documents and project budget and perform a field check of theproject with City Staff
and the Developer.

70



71



72



73



74



75



 

76



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

                 COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 9              MEETING DATE: 9-12-13 
 
 
 
TOPIC: 
 
Levee Improvements – Engineering Design Service Agreement 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Direct the City Manager to execute a contract with Wilson & Company for levee engineering 
services in the amount of $49,500 to be funded out of the Stormwater Utility’s Project Line 
Item. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The proposed engineering services contract is for the design of repairs and upgrades 
addressing most of the concerns detailed in Wilson & Company’s Levee Safety Inspection 
Engineering Report from October 2012.  Making these repairs and improvements will improve 
the safety and function of the levee and help the City to remain in a federal flood control 
insurance program known as Public Law 84-99. Staff recommends the City Commission 
direct the City Manager to execute a contract with Wilson & Co. for levee engineering 
services in the amount of $49,500. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the City Commission direct the City Manager to execute a contract with 
Wilson & Co. for levee engineering services in the amount of $49,500. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
n/a 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Location Map 
Agreement for Professional Engineering Services     

77



  Commission Work Session Agenda 
Memo  

 
From:  Nicholas Willis, Stormwater Superintendent 
 
Work Session: September 5, 2013 
 
Subject:  Levee Improvements – Engineering Design Service 

Agreement 
 
Person(s)  Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Responsible: I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 

Summary 
This proposed engineering services contract is for design services for repairs and 
upgrades addressing most of the concerns detailed in Wilson & Co.’s Levee Safety 
Inspection Engineering Report from October 2012.  Making these repairs and 
improvements will improve the safety and function of the levee and help the City to 
remain in a federal flood control insurance program known as Public Law 84-99. Staff 
recommends the City Commission direct the City Manager to execute a contract with 
Wilson & Co. for levee engineering services in the amount of $49,500. 

 
Background  

Wilson & Co. was hired in 2012 to perform a safety inspection of the Hays levee system.  
In their inspection, they found several items needing to be addressed as detailed during 
Wilson & Co.’s presentation to the City Commission at the May 2, 2013 Work Session. 
This engineering services agreement provides for surveying, engineering design and 
construction documents for repairs or improvements to most of the identified problems. 
 
The levee is also part of a federal insurance program called Public Law 84-99.  
Participation in this program is at no direct cost to the City of Hays and allows for federal 
reimbursement should the levee be damaged during a flood event.  Repairs to damages 
caused by floods are made to the system with 80% of the costs picked up by the federal 
government.  To maintain eligibility in this program, the levee is periodically inspected 
by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.  Hays’ latest rating is “minimally acceptable,” the 
lowest rating in which a levee sponsor can remain in the program.  Items such as poor sod 
cover, tree encroachment, minor erosion, a cracked swimming pool drain pipe, silt 
deposits and erosion near drainages have led to this rating.  Most of the repairs required 
as part of this program, with the exception of a full design to rectify the swimming pool 
drain, are included in this contract. 
 

78



Discussion 
In 2012 Wilson & Co. performed a safety inspection of the levee system in Hays.  They 
found several items of concern, but in general found the levee to be well maintained.  
This contract provides for engineering design services to remedy most of these items. 
 
Permit fees are not included as part of this contract.  Several permits will be required for 
floodplain fill and environmental reasons.  These fees are not expected to be very costly.  
Union Pacific generally requires fees for work in their rights-of-way, these fees are often 
much more expensive than one finds from governmental regulatory agencies. 
 
Video inspection services for the swimming pool drain and Gustad Drive levee 
penetrations are not included in the cost of this contract.  Due to standing water, a third 
party must be used at the Gustad location and may be required for the swimming pool 
inspection, depending upon water levels.  Depending upon findings of the video 
inspections, contract addendums may be required for design work in these locations.   
 
The engineering fees for survey are discounted in anticipation of combining efforts for 
the design of the Levee Trail.  Should Wilson Company not be awarded the Levee Trail 
Design, the 49,500 fee for design of the Levee Improvements would increase. 
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 
 

Financial Consideration 
The engineering services agreement and surveying totals $49,500.  This is to be paid 
from the Stormwater Utility project line item.  Flood control improvements were 
budgeted for 2013 and sufficient funds are available for this design work.  Any needed 
contract addendums, as discussed, will come from this same funding source. 

 
Options 

Options which exist are as follows: 
1. Direct the City Manager to execute this contract. 
2. Reject the contract. 
3. Provide further direction. 
  

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the City Commission direct the City Manager to execute a contract 
with Wilson & Co. for levee engineering services in the amount of $49,500. 
 

Action Requested 
Direct the City Manager to execute a contract with Wilson & Co. for levee engineering 
services in the amount of $49,500 to be funded out of the Stormwater Utility’s Project 
Line Item. 

 

79



Supporting Documentation 
Agreement for Professional Engineering Services with Wilson & Co. 

80



 AGREEMENT 
 FOR 
 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
THIS IS AN AGREEMENT, made as of     , 2013, between the City of Hays, 
Kansas (CITY) and Wilson & Company, Inc., Engineers & Architects (ENGINEER).  ENGINEER shall 
provide to CITY Profession Engineering Services for the   Hays (Big Creek) Levee Repairs   project.  
ENGINEER shall design and develop construction documents necessary to construct repairs to the Big 
Creek Levee System as outlined in the Hays Levee Safety Inspection Report, dated Novemeber 2012.  
The levee repairs shall be designed in accordance with current accepted Engineering Standards and 
Practices for levees, generally established by USACE.  The limits of the levee system included in this 
project are illustrated in Figure A-1 of this agreement. 
 
The purpose of this project is to address the levee system deficiencies identified in the 2012 Levee Safety 
Inspection Report.  This project does not include updated Hydrologic, Hydraulic or Geotechnical 
Analysis, therefore, the actual level of protection provided by this levee system is unknown.  Based on the 
Current Effective FEMA Flood Insurance Study and previous studies completed by the City, the level of 
protection provided by the levee system in 2004 was less than the 100-yr interval storm event with no 
freeboard. 
 
 
SECTION 1 - BASIC SERVICES OF ENGINEER 
 

 ENGINEER shall provide the Services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services. 
 
 
SECTION 2 - ADDITIONAL SERVICES OF ENGINEER 
 
2.1.  Services Requiring Authorization in Advance.  
 

If authorized in writing by the CITY, the ENGINEER shall furnish or obtain from others Additional 
Services of the types listed in paragraphs 2.1.1 through 2.1.4, inclusive.  These services are not 
included as part of Basic Services.  These Additional Services will be paid for by the CITY as 
indicated in Section 5. 

 
2.1.1.  Services resulting from significant changes in the general scope, extent or character of the 
Project or its design including, but not limited to, changes in size, complexity, CITY's schedule, 
and revising previously accepted studies, reports, design documents or Contract Documents when 
such revisions are required by changes in laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes or orders 
enacted subsequent to the preparation of such studies, reports or documents, or are due to any 
other causes beyond ENGINEER's control. 
 
2.1.2.  Furnishing services of independent professional associates and consultants for other than 
Basic Services for customary civil engineering, surveying, and geotechnical design; and providing 
data or services when the CITY employs the ENGINEER to provide such data or services in lieu 
of furnishing the same. 
 
2.1.3. Providing any engineering services other than Basic Services included in Section 1.  

81



 
2.1.4.  Additional services in connection with the Project, including services which are to be 
furnished by the CITY in accordance with Section 3, and services not otherwise provided for in 
this Agreement. 

 
2.2. Required Additional Services.  Additional services may include design services for needed 
improvements determined during the Preliminary Engineering Studies completed in this project 
(Attachment III, scope item III).  If additional design services are requested by the CITY, they will be 
completed under a supplemental agreement. 
 
 
SECTION 3 - CITY'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
CITY shall do the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services of ENGINEER: 
 
3.1.  Designate a person to act as CITY's representative during the project. 
 
3.2.  Provide all pertinent requested data to ENGINEER from City records, as described in Attachment 1. 
 
3.3.  Review submittals and provide feedback to ENGINEER as necessary to be complete task items 
included in this agreement. 
 
3.4.  Provide access to all facilities as necessary to complete the task items in this contract. 
 
3.5.  Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this Section 3. 
 
 
SECTION 4 - PERIODS OF SERVICE 
 
4.1.  The provisions of this Section 4 and the various rates of compensation for ENGINEER's services 

provided for elsewhere in this Agreement have been agreed to in anticipation of the orderly and 
continuous progress of the Project.  ENGINEER's obligation to render services hereunder will 
extend for a period which may reasonably be required.  If specific periods of time for rendering 
services are set forth or specific dates by which services are to be completed are provided and if such 
dates are exceeded through no fault of ENGINEER, all rates, measures and amounts of 
compensation provided herein shall be subject to equitable adjustment. 

 
4.2.  ENGINEER shall complete services described per Attachment II, Project Schedule, following 

execution of this agreement and Notice to Proceed. 
 
ENGINEER shall not be held responsible for delays by others, uncontrollable by and at no fault of 
the ENGINEER, such as by UPRR, USACE and KSDWR. 

 
 

82



SECTION 5 - PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER, COST PLUS METHOD OF PAYMENT 
 
5.1. Methods of Payment for Services and Expenses of ENGINEER.  
 

5.1.1.  For Basic Services.  CITY shall pay ENGINEER for Basic Services rendered under 
SECTION I on cost plus basis as detailed in Attachment III. 

   
  Cost Plus 
 

Payments for those services outlined in SECTION I of this Agreement are to be based on 
direct labor cost times the current labor multiplier, plus reimbursable direct expenses.  The 
labor multiplier includes overhead (currently 1.831) and profit (12%), and is currently 3.171. 
The labor multiplier is subject to review and change annually, based on changes in overhead 
rates.  Charges for services and expenses incurred under SECTION I will be based on the 
rates and charges in effect at the time services are performed and expenses are incurred. 
 
The maximum Cost Plus fee of     $49,500     shall not be exceeded without prior written 
approval from CITY.  Supporting Fee Data is included as Attachment 2. 

 
5.1.2. If ENGINEER’s Scope of Services is revised, under Section 2, the maximum amount 

of Cost Plus Fee payable to ENGINEER shall be revised accordingly. 
 

5.1.3. ENGINEER may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases of 
the work noted herein to be consistent with services actually rendered, but shall not 
exceed the total estimated compensation amount unless approved in writing by the 
CITY. 

 
5.2. Other Provisions Concerning Payments.  
 

5.2.1.  In the event of termination by CITY under paragraph 7.1 upon the completion of any phase 
of the Basic Services, progress payments due ENGINEER for services rendered through such phase 
shall constitute total payment for such services.  In the event of such termination by CITY during 
any phase of the Basic Services, ENGINEER will be paid for services rendered during that phase on 
the basis of ENGINEER's completion percentage.  In the event of any such termination, 
ENGINEER will be paid for all unpaid Additional Services. 

 
 
SECTION 6 - OPINIONS OF COST 
 
6.1. Opinions of Cost.  
 

6.1.1.  Since ENGINEER has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or services 
furnished by others, or over the Contractor(s)' methods of determining prices, or over competitive 
bidding or market conditions, ENGINEER's opinion of probable Construction Cost provided for 
herein are to be made on the basis of ENGINEER's experience and qualifications and represent 
ENGINEER's best judgment as an experienced and qualified professional engineer, familiar with 
the construction industry; but ENGINEER cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or 

83



actual Total Project or Construction Costs will not vary from opinions of probable cost prepared by 
ENGINEER.  If prior to the Bidding or Negotiating Phase, CITY wishes greater assurance as to 
Total Project or Construction Costs, CITY shall employ an independent cost estimator.  

 
 
SECTION 7 - GENERAL CONSIDERATION 
 
7.1. Termination.  
 

7.1.1. The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be terminated by either 
party upon thirty days' written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform 
in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party. 

 
7.2. Reuse of Documents.  
 

7.2.1.  All documents prepared or furnished by ENGINEER (and ENGINEER's independent 
professional associates and consultants) pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of service in 
respect of the Project and ENGINEER shall retain an ownership and property interest therein 
whether or not the Project is completed.  CITY may make and retain copies for information and 
reference in connection with the use and occupancy of the Project by CITY and others; however, 
such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by CITY or others on 
extensions of the Project or on any other project.  Any reuse without written verification or 
adaptation by ENGINEER for the specific purpose intended will be at CITY's sole risk and without 
liability or legal exposure to ENGINEER, or to ENGINEER's independent professional associates 
or consultants, and CITY shall indemnify and hold harmless ENGINEER and ENGINEER's 
independent professional associates and consultants from all claims, damages, losses and expenses 
including attorneys' fees arising out of or resulting therefrom.  Any such verification or adaptation 
will entitle ENGINEER to further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by CITY and 
ENGINEER.  

 
7.3. Insurance.  
 

7.3.1.Commercial General Liability 
 The ENGINEER shall provide public liability insurance coverage in an amount no less than 

$500,000 covering the liability of the ENGINEER on an occurrence basis.  The insurer must be 
acceptable to the CITY. 

 
7.3.2. Automobile Liability 
The ENGINEER shall provide coverage protecting the ENGINEER against claims for bodily injury 
and/or property damage arising out of the ownership or use of any owned, hired and/or non-owned 
vehicle.  Required minimum limits:  $500,000 each accident, or a combined total of $1,000,000. 
 
7.3.3. Workers Compensation 
Before beginning work, the ENGINEER shall furnish to the CITY satisfactory proof that he has 
taken out, for the period covered by the work under this contract, full workers’ compensation 
coverage as required by state law for all persons who he may employ directly in carrying out the 

84



work contemplated under this contract, and shall hold the CITY free and harmless for all personal 
injuries of all persons who the ENGINEER may employ directly. 
 
7.3.4. Professional Liability - Errors and Omissions 
The ENGINEER shall provide Architects or Engineers Professional Liability Insurance with limits 
not less than $1,000,000, covering the liability of the ENGINEER.  The insurer must be acceptable 
to the CITY.  In the event coverage provided is claims made coverage, the insurance shall be 
maintained for a period of not less than three (3) years after completion of the contract or in lieu 
thereof purchase of tail coverage (extended reporting period) under which the CITY shall be 
afforded protection. 
 
7.3.5. Certificate(s) of Insurance 
Certificate(s) of Insurance acceptable to the CITY shall be filed with the CITY at the time the 
contract between the CITY and the ENGINEER is executed, if requested by CITY.  These 
certificates shall contain a provisions that coverage that is afforded under the policies will not be 
cancelled until at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the CITY and 
acknowledged. 
 
7.3.6. Notice of Claim 
The ENGINEER, upon receipt of notice of any claim in excess of $1,000 in connection with this 
contract shall promptly notify the CITY, providing full details thereof, including an estimate of the 
amount or loss of liability. 
 
7.3.7 Indemnification Clause 
The ENGINEER agrees to indemnify and save harmless the CITY, its officials, servants, officers, 
directors and employees from and against all expenses and judgments for personal injury or death 
or damage to property where, and to the extent caused by the ENGINEER’s negligent acts, errors or 
omissions. 

 
7.4. Controlling Law.  
 

7.4.1.  This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the State of Kansas.   
 
7.5. Successors and Assigns.  
 

7.5.1.  CITY and ENGINEER each is hereby bound and the partners, successors, executors, 
administrators and legal representatives of CITY and ENGINEER (and to the extent permitted by 
paragraph 7.5.2 the assigns of CITY and ENGINEER) are hereby bound to the other party to this 
Agreement and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and legal representatives (and 
said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations of this 
Agreement.  

 
7.5.2.  Neither CITY nor ENGINEER shall assign, sublet or transfer any rights under or interest in 
(including, but without limitation, moneys that may become due or moneys that are due) this 
Agreement without the written consent of the other, except to the extent that any assignment, 
subletting or transfer is mandated by law or the effect of this limitation may be restricted by law.  
Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment 

85



will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.  
Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent ENGINEER from employing such independent 
professional associates and consultants as ENGINEER may deem appropriate to assist in the 
performance of services hereunder. 

 
  7.5.3.  Nothing under this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits in this 

Agreement to anyone other than CITY and ENGINEER, and all duties and responsibilities 
undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of CITY and 
ENGINEER and not for the benefit of any other party.  

 
This Agreement, consisting of  pages 1 to 6, Attachment I (4 pages), Figures A-1 through A-7 (7 pages), 
Attachment II (1 page), and Attachment III (3 pages) for a total of 21 pages, inclusive, constitutes the 
entire agreement between CITY and ENGINEER and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings.  
This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, modified or canceled by a duly executed written 
instrument. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year first above written. 
 
CITY:         ENGINEER: 
City of Hays, Kansas       Wilson & Company, Inc., 
1002 Vine Street        Engineers & Architects 
Hays, KS  67601   800 East 101st Terrace, Suite 200 
  Kansas City, MO  64131 
 
           
By:          ______________________    
          Douglas G. Danaher, PE, CFM 
         Operation Manager 
         doug.danaher@wilsonco.com  
Name         
           
                  
Title and Date        Date 
 
 
 
By:          
 
 
           
Name          
 
           
Title and Date 
 

86

mailto:doug.danaher@wilsonco.com�


ATTACHMENT I 
 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

 
BASE SERVICES – Hays (Big Creek) Levee Repairs 
 
Consultant shall prepare construction documents (plan drawings, technical specifications and cost estimate) 
necessary for the City to advertise and let a construction project for repairs for the Hays (Big Creek) Levee. 
 
The City plans to utilize funds from the City’s Stormwater Utility to fund this project, therefore, City of Hays 
Design Criteria apply.  This scope provides design services and production of construction documents 
necessary for improvements to address deficiencies based on current physical condition only (opposed to 
design deficiencies).  USACE design criteria and processes will be referenced during design to address 
individual components with deficiencies detracting from the level of protection provided by the levee system.  
This project does not include updated Hydrologic, Hydraulic or Geotechnical Analysis, therefore, the actual 
level of protection provided by this levee system is unknown.  Based on the Current Effective FEMA Flood 
Insurance Study and previous studies completed by the City, the level of protection provided by the levee 
system in 2004 was less than the 100-yr interval storm event with no freeboard.  
 
Consultant shall provide construction documents sufficient for the improvements located at the six (6) 
locations as illustrated in Figures A-1 through A-7.  Improvements to be included in the construction 
documents include: 
 

1. Concrete Sill for the UPRR crossing closure 
2. Specifications to clean, prepare and paint 2 Sluice Gates (Gustad and Wiest) and 1 Flap Gate (Wiest) 
3. Clearing, Grading and Riprap improvements adjacent to three (3) structures (Wiest Inlet, S Ast St 

Outlet, S Main St Outlet) 
4. Install Headwall and Flapgate to three (3) outfall conduits (S Ash St, S Main St and S Pine St) 
5. Remove debris from two (2) conduits (Gustad RCB and Gustad RCP) 
6. Install temporary coffer, pump ponded water to accommodate video inspection of Gustad RCP conduit 
7. Install manholes (2) and RCP necessary to re-route the S Pine St outfall to a stable bank on Big Creek. 
8. Fill with flowable fill two (2) abandoned conduits (old S Main St outfall and abandoned portion of S 

Pine St outfall) 
9. Tree removal locations and details throughout the levee system within 15 feet of toe of levee.  Some 

large trees may require levee reconstruction to fill void of root ball. 
 
Consultant shall coordinate with City to accomplish: 
 

1. Video Inspection of two (2) conduits (Gustad RCP and swimming pool drain VCP) 
2. CIPP Lining of the S Ash St 24” RCP Conduit 

 
Consultant shall complete preliminary study to determine improvements necessary for: 
 

1. Abandoned S Main St outfall.  Determine how conduit was abandoned and fill will flowable fill if not 
already completed. 

2. Swimming pool drain outfall.  Determine current functionality.  It’s understood this drain is still in 
use.  Complete a video inspection of the drain and determine appropriate action, either repair outlet 
end of drain or, reroute the drain to the manhole near Main St and abandon (fill with flowable fill) the 
portion of the drain south of the valve just north of the levee. 

87



3. Provide drawings documenting proper operation of the UPRR crossing closure and the S Main St 
crossing closure. 

 
I. Engineering services shall include: 
 

a. Site Investigation:  Consultant shall visit the sites with two (2) representatives, including one Sr Civil 
Engineer, to document the following items: 

i. Location of each tree to be removed utilizing GPS coordinates in Kansas State Plane North 
Coordinate system.  Each tree to be removed will be marked with orange paint. 

ii. Coordinate with City to gain access into the manhole at the upstream end of the abandoned S 
Main St conduit (Figure A-6) to determine if abandoned conduit is accessible from this manhole. 

iii. Observe and document current conditions at all six (6) improvement sites as necessary to 
complete all tasks. 

 
b.  Field Survey Services:  Consultant shall complete field survey services necessary to complete design, as 

illustrated in Figures A-2 through A6.  All survey data shall be collected and provided in Kansas State 
Plane North horizontal coordinate system and NAVD 88 vertical coordinate system.  

 
Consultant will contact utility companies through Kansas One-Call (max two attempts).  It’s assumed 
all utilities will be marked within two weeks of the time of the locate request. 
 
Consultant shall establish and document horizontal and vertical control at each of the six (6) sites 
using 5/8” iron rods with WCI control caps.  Control points may be used as benchmarks.  Benchmarks 
may be set on existing concrete structures that are to remain. 
 
Consultant shall office process all field collected data to provide elevation, topographic and utility 
information sufficient to complete design and construction of improvements. 
 
Consultant shall provide legal boundary services to establish and provide the right-of-way along the 
UPRR for the improvements illustrated in Figure A-2.  It’s assumed for all other improvements 
included that City currently has adequate land rights necessary for design and construction.  Therefore, 
no legal boundary survey services are included for any of the other improvements.  Parcel data from 
the City GIS system will be included in the plan drawings and labeled as approximate. 
 

c.  Construction Plan Drawings:  Consultant shall develop construction plan drawings sufficient for 
construction of recommended repairs.  All Engineering services shall be completed by or under the 
direct supervision of a Professional Engineer, licensed in Kansas, experienced in dam and levee 
design. 
 
It’s estimated the following plan drawings will be required: 
 

•  Title Sheet 
•  General Notes and Quantities 
•  General Layout and Survey Control 
•  Site Plans (6 sheets) (1” = 20’ scale) 
•  Tree Removal Plans (6 sheets) (1” = 50’ scale) 
•  Miscellaneous Details (4 sheets) 
•  Temporary Erosion Control (4 sheets) 

 
It’s estimated approximately 20 plan sheet will be required. 

 
d. Construction Specifications:  Consultant shall develop technical construction specifications necessary 

for construction of recommended repairs and debris removal.  Bidding documents and other “Front 

88



End” specifications are not included.  It’s estimated the following construction specifications will be 
required: 

 
1.  Site Clearing, Disposal 
2.  Excavation 
3.  Backfilling 
4.  Flowable Fill 
5.  Concrete 
6.  Steel 
7.  Riprap and Geotextile Fabric 
8.  Soil 
9.  Seeding 
10. Paint 
11. Flap Gates 
 

e.  Quantities and Cost Estimate:  Consultant shall tabulate all bid quantities and provide a construction 
cost estimate for all improvements for the City to reference while letting the project. 
 

f.  Permitting & Coordination Services:  Consultant shall submit permit applications to:  UPRR, Kansas 
Division of Water Resources, United States Army Corps of Engineers, and the Kansas Department of 
Health and Environment, as required.  Following submittal of applications, Consultant shall provide 
necessary coordination with these review agencies, up to 24 hours.  If additional coordination time is 
required, Consultant will furnish these services as additional services. 
 

g.  Field Check Review Meeting:  Consultant shall conduct a field review with the City following 
completion of preliminary plans, to verify existing conditions and proposed improvements.   
 

h.  Consultant shall complete final plans and incorporate review comments from City, Utilities, UPRR and 
permitting agencies. 

 
i.  Consultant shall coordinate (plan, schedule, provide necessary supporting data, observe, document, etc.) 

video inspection services for the Gustad RCP and the Swimming Pool Drain. 
 

j.  Consultant shall coordinate (plan, schedule, provide necessary supporting data, observe, document, etc.) 
CIPP lining services for the S Ash St RCP conduit. 

 
 
II. Construction Related Services shall include: 
 

a.  Bidding Services:  Consultant will provide support (up to 8 hours) for bidding services such as:  
answer contractor questions during bidding and assist CITY with addenda. 

 
Should the CITY require Consultant assistance of more than 8 hours, Consultant will furnish 
services as requested by the CITY as Additional Services. 

 
b.  Consultation During Construction:  Consultant will provide support (up to 8 hours) to review shop 

drawing submittals, answer questions from CITY’s full time inspector, review and comment on 
change order requests, review and comment on inspection testing results. 

 
Should the CITY require Consultant assistance of more than 8 hours, Consultant will furnish 
services as requested by the CITY as Additional Services. 

 
c.  Final Inspection:  Consultant will complete one inspection at time of substantial completion.  

89



Consultant will provide a punch list to CITY following the inspection.  Consultant will provide 
CITY with documentation (inspection report and photos).  Consultant will coordinate with CITY’s 
full time Construction Inspector. 

 
This task is based on assumption that the CITY will provide full time construction inspection. 

 
Should the CITY require Consultant for more than 1 construction site visit, Consultant will furnish 
services as requested by the CITY as Additional Services. 

 
d.  As-Built Drawings:  Consultant will provide As-Built Record Drawings.  These drawings will be 

drafted based on “Red Lined” mark-ups and field measurements from the Contractor, Construction 
Inspector and the Consultant’s site visits.  No field survey services are included.  

 
 
The following services are not included: 
 

a. Legal Boundary services (except for UPRR - Site 1) 
b. Field survey services for As-Built Drawings 
c. Permitting Fees 
d. Video Inspection Fees for two (2) conduits 
e. CIPP cost for Gustad RCP 
f. Geotechnical investigations or analysis 

 
Assumptions: 
 

a. This project will be completed concurrently with the Bike Hays – Multi-use Big Creek Levee Trial 
project by the Consultant. 

b. City shall provide City bench marks and horizontal control points. 
c. City shall provide access necessary to complete work. 
d. City shall provide all applicable readily available resources (design standards, typical drawings, 

specifications, historical cost data, utility location info, etc.) 
e. City will submit necessary construction permits and corresponding fees, which may include:  UPRR, 

KS DWR, USACE and KDHE/NPDES.  Consultant will prepare the permit applications and provide 
to City for submittal. 

f. City will provide “up-front” construction specifications and assemble the Project Manual.  Consultant 
will provide the technical specifications. 

g. City will provide full time construction inspection and testing services necessary 
h. City will provide “red-lined” plan drawings following construction to be used to create As-Built 

Drawings. 
i. All utilities will be marked within two weeks of the time of the locate request are submitted to Kansas 

One-Call. 
j. City currently has adequate land rights necessary to design and construct all improvements, other than 

the UPRR Concrete Sill improvement.  Therefore, no legal boundary survey services are included 
other than providing right-of-way information along the UPRR for improvements included in Figure 
A-2.  Parcel data for the City GIS system will be included in the plan drawings and labeled as 
approximate.  Coordination with and approval from UPRR and Fort Hays State University will be 
required for some of the improvements. 

k. If additional design services are necessary (such as for Gustad RCP or the Swimming Pool Drain) this 
can be completed through a supplemental agreement. 

90



H
al

l S
t

Old Hwy 40 / W 8th St

W 12th St

U
S

 H
w

y 1
8

3

Fort Hays
State University

W 8th St

Old Hyw 40 / E 8th St

M
ai

n 
S

t
E

lm
 S

t

A
sh S

t

Frontier
Historical Park

US Hwy 183

P
in

e 
S

t

V
in

e
 S

t
U

S
 H

w
y 

1
8

3

UPRR

E 4th St

UPRR

SITE I
UPRR Gap

SITE 2
Gustad Dr

SITE 3
Wiest Hall Outfall

Tree Removal within
Vegetation Free Zone

SITE 4
S Ash St Outfall

SITE 5
S Main St Outfall

SITE 6
S Pine St Outfall

Hays

CITY OF HAYS
2013 Levee Impovements

Scope of Services
Overall Location Map Ü

0 1,000500

FeetJune 2013 FIGURE A-1
91



Old Hwy 40 / W 8th St

UPRR

Design Sandbag Closure

Install Concrete Sill

Field Survey Limits

Big Cr

CITY OF HAYS
2013 Levee Impovements

Scope of Services
SITE 1 Map Ü

0 4020

FeetJune 2013 FIGURE A-2

Legend
Levee Centerline

Parcel Lines

92



Remove Debris
Remove Debris,
Paint Sluice Gate

Pump Ponded Water to
Accomodate Inspection 

Install Temporary Coffer Dam

Video Inspect Conduit
Bi

g C
r

CITY OF HAYS
2013 Levee Impovements

Scope of Services
SITE 2 Map Ü

0 8040

FeetJune 2013 FIGURE A-3

Legend
Levee Centerline

Parcel Lines

Outfall Conduits - Existing

Gustad Dr

93



Old Big Cr Channel

Remove Conc Debris and Tree,
Regrade Embankment,
Armor with RipRap,
Paint Sluice Gate

Paint Flap Gate

Field Survey Limits

Big Cr

CITY OF HAYS
2013 Levee Impovements

Scope of Services
SITE 3 Map

(Wiest Hall Outfall) Ü
0 10050

FeetJune 2013 FIGURE A-4

Legend
Levee Centerline

Parcel Lines

Outfall Conduits - Existing

94



City to Line 24"x142'
RCP Conduit

Remove Trees from Channel,
Regrade Channel,
Armor Channel with RipRap,
Install Headwall and Flapgate

W 1st St

Field Survey Limits

Big Cr

CITY OF HAYS
2013 Levee Impovements

Scope of Services
SITE 4 Map

(S Ash St Outfall) Ü
0 10050

FeetJune 2013 FIGURE A-5

Legend
Levee Centerline

Parcel Lines

Outfall Conduits - Existing

95



Frontier
Historical Park

Determine Appropriate Action:
Repair Outlet End, or 
Abandon and Re-route Drain

Design Sandbag Closure

City to Line 24"x142'
RCP Conduit

Remove Trees from Channel,
Regrade Channel,
Armor Channel with RipRap,
Install Headwall and Flapgate

W 1st St Determine Configuration of Upstream End,
Remove 12' from Downstream End,
Fill Conduit with Flowable Fill,
Regrade and Seed

W
 M

ai
n 

S
t

Remove Trees adjacent to Outlet,
Regrade Unstable Slopes,
Armor with RipRap,
Install Headwall and Flap Gate

Field Survey Limits

Drainage Structure Survey

Drainage Structure Survey

Big Cr

CITY OF HAYS
2013 Levee Impovements

Scope of Services
SITE 5 Map
(S Main St) Ü

0 10050

FeetJune 2013 FIGURE A-6

Legend
Levee Centerline

Parcel Lines

Outfall Conduits - Existing

96



Frontier
Historical Park

Install Manhole (Bolted Lid)

Install 36" RCP Install Manhole (Bolted Lid)

Install 36" RCP

Install Headwall and FlapgatePlug with Flowable Fill

Field Survey Limits

Drainage Structure Survey

Drainage Structure Survey

Big Cr

CITY OF HAYS
2013 Levee Impovements

Scope of Services
SITE 6 Map
(S Pine St) Ü

0 10050

FeetJune 2013 FIGURE A-7

Legend
Parcel Lines

Levee Centerline

Outfall Conduits - Existing

97



CITY OF HAYS

BIG CREEK LEVEE REPAIRS -
ENGINEERING SERVICES

Target
Completion

Scope Item Date

Notice to Proceed Aug 23, 2013

Field Check Plans, Specs & Estimate Submittal Nov 15, 2013

Field Check Dec 20, 2013

Submit Permit Applications Dec 31, 2013

Utility Coordination (if Necessary) Dec 31, 2013

Approved Final Plans Submittal Feb 28, 2014

Advertise for Bids Mar 1,2014

Construction Letting Apr 15, 2014

Complete Construction Jun 30, 2014

PROJECT SCHEDULE

Attachment II - Page 1 of 1

98



Scope Direct Overhead Direct Task Survey Total

Item Task Description Labor Cost Cost Markup  Expense Sub-Totals Cost Fee

I. Engineering Services $10,040.40 $18,373.93 $2,273.15 $1,401.50 $32,088.98 $4,000.00 $36,088.98

II. Construction Related Services $1,669.60 $3,055.37 $378.00 $481.00 $5,583.97 $0.00 $5,583.97

III. Preliminary Engineering Studies $2,540.00 $4,648.20 $575.06 $64.40 $7,827.66 $0.00 $7,827.66

0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$14,250.00 $26,077.50 $3,226.21 $1,946.90 $45,500.61 $4,000.00 $49,500.61

USE

PROJECT TOTALS

$49,500.00

FEE SUMMARY

99



Project Intern CADD

Principal Manager Engr. Tech. Clerical Total
Task Description P6 P5 P2 PD2 OA2 Hours

I. Engineering Services 0 40 160 148 4 352

a. Site Investigation 4 12 16

b. Field Survey Services 2 2 4

c. Construction Plan Drawings (20 sheets)

Title Sheet 2 2 4

General Notes & Quantities 1 4 4 9

General Layout and Survey Control 1 2 4 7

Site Plans (6 sheets) 4 40 48 92

Tree Removal Plans (3 sheets) (1'=50' scale) 4 8 24 36

Miscellaneous Details (4 sheets) 2 12 20 34

Temporary Erosion Control (4 sheets) 2 2 6 10

d. Construction Specifications (11) 2 16 4 22

e. Cost Estimate 2 6 2 10

f. Permitting & Coordination 4 20 24

g. Field Check Review 4 12 4 20

h. Final Plans, Specifications and Estimate 4 24 32 60

i. Video Inspection Coordination (2 conduits) 2 2

j. CIPP Lining Coordination (1 conduit) 2 2

II. Construction Related Services 0 28 4 8 0 40

a. Bidding Services 8 8

b. Consultation During Construction 8 8

c. Final Inspection 10 10

d. As-Built Drawings 2 4 8 14

III. Preliminary Engineering Studies 0 20 44 16 0 80

a. Abandoned S Main St Outfall 8 16 24

b. Swimming Pool Drain Outfall 8 16 24

c. Drawings - UPRR and S Main St Crossing Closures 4 12 16 32

Totals 0 88 208 172 4 472

472

Scope
Item

100



Project Intern CADD

Principal Manager Engr. Tech. Clerical Direct Overhead Total
Scope P6 P5 P2 PD2 OA2 Total Labor Cost Markup Labor
Item Task Description $50.00 $48.50 $26.30 $25.80 $18.50 Hours Cost 1.83 8% Cost

I. Engineering Services 0 40 160 148 4 352 $10,040.40 $18,373.93 $2,273.15 $30,687.48

II. Construction Related Services 0 28 4 8 0 40 $1,669.60 $3,055.37 $378.00 $5,102.97

III. Preliminary Engineering Studies 0 20 44 16 0 80 $2,540.00 $4,648.20 $575.06 $7,763.26

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Totals 0 88 208 172 4 472 $14,250.00 $26,077.50 $3,226.21 $43,553.71
472 $43,553.71

Unit Total
Unit Cost Quantity Cost Quantity Cost Quantity Cost Expenses

miles $0.65 1,150 $747.50 580 $377.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 $1,124.50

days $30.00 4 $120.00 1 $30.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 $150.00

days $85.00 4 $340.00 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 $340.00

each $0.60 240 $144.00 40 $24.00 24 $14.40 $0.00 $182.40

LS $50.00 1 $50.00 1 $50.00 1 $50.00 $0.00 $150.00

$1,401.50 $481.00 $64.40 $0.00 $1,946.90

$4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00

$5,401.50 $481.00 $64.40 $0.00 $5,946.90Total Direct Expenses

Plotting

Lodging

DIRECT EXPENSES - ENGINEERING

Sub-Total (Direct Expenses)

Meals

Mileage

Scope Item 2

Survey Cost

LABOR COST - ENGINEERING

Item / Description
Scope Item 3Scope Item 1

Postage & Miscellaneous Costs

101



 

102



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

                 COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 10               MEETING DATE: 9-12-13 
 
 
 
TOPIC: 
 
Bike Hays – On-Street Bike Route Engineering Design Agreement 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter an agreement with CFS Engineers for the 
design of the on-street bike routes in the amount of $48,400 to be funded out of Capital 
Projects. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The 2013 budget included $400,000 in funding for the Bike Hays Plan.  In addition, the City 
was awarded a Transportation Enhancement Grant.  As the next step in the process, staff 
recommends entering into agreements with CFS Engineers for the On-Street Bike Routes 
portion of the Bike Hays Plan.  The cost for engineering design services for the on-street bike 
routes is $48,400.  The engineer’s primary objective is to provide bidding documents and 
work in collaboration with the state to ensure standards are met as required by KDOT. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
City staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to enter an agreement with CFS 
Engineers for the design of the on-street bike routes in the amount of $48,400 to be funded 
out of Capital Projects. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
n/a 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Location Map 
Agreement for Professional Engineering Services     

103



 

 

  Commission Work Session Agenda 
Memo  

 
From:  John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works 
   Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
 
Work Session: September 5, 2013 
 
Subject: Bike Hays – On-Street Bike Route & Levee Trail 

Engineering Design Agreements 
 
Person(s)  Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
Responsible: I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
 

Summary 
The 2013 budget included $400,000 in funding for the Bike Hays Plan.  In addition, the 
City was awarded a Transportation Enhancement Grant.  The project continues to evolve 
and staff will provide a greater understanding during the work session presentation.  As 
the next step in the process, staff recommends entering into agreements with CFS 
Engineers for the On-Street Bike Routes portion of the Bike Hays Plan and a separate 
agreement with Wilson Company for the Levee Trail Improvements.  The cost for 
engineering design services for the on-street bike routes is $48,400, and levee trail is 
$49,238.  The engineer’s primary objective is to provide bidding documents and work in 
collaboration with the state to ensure standards are met as required by KDOT. 
 

Background  
The Bike Hays Master Plan, developed along with the City Comprehensive Master Plan 
Update in 2012 and included a 1.5 mile multi-use path along the Big Creek Levee in 
addition to 25 miles of on-street bike lanes and shared routes throughout the City.  In 
February 2013, staff submitted an application to KDOT for Transportation Enhancement 
(TE) Grant funding to finance the construction of the Bike Hays Improvements.  
 
After the grant application was submitted, City staff was informed by KDOT the rules 
had changed and State oversight will be require.   
 
KDOT requires: 

 The City hires a professional engineering firm to design the project to Federal 
Highway Administration Standards. (MUTCD, ADA, AASHTO, etc.)  

 The cost for design is ineligible for grant funding although a proportional increase 
is inevitable due to the additional requirements to meet standards. 

104



 

 

 Implementation of the system will take longer than expected and include 
additional costs as the process of administering the grant will be ran through 
KDOT Bureau of Local Projects. 
 

KDOT has allowed the City to split the project into two separate tasks: the Levee Trail 
and the On-Street Bike Routes.  This split allows the Levee Trail to occur in conjunction 
with the Big Creek Levee improvements.  This split also allows the On-Street Bike Route 
project to move at a faster pace if possible. 
 
This process has changed from the initial grant submission and will require more time by 
KDOT for review, prolonging the project more than originally anticipated.   
 

Discussion 
The On-Street Bike Routes portion of the Hays Bike Plan includes dedicated bike lanes, 
while other streets will have signage and pavement markings indicating that vehicles are 
to share the road with bicyclists. 
 
Since the TE Grant requires the project to be designed by a licensed engineer according 
to Federal Highway Administration standards, City Staff solicited qualifications from 
professional engineering firms for the on street routes.  Five proposals were received.  A 
committee of staff members reviewed the proposals and recommended the most qualified 
firm with experience in the construction of bicycle infrastructure.  None of the other 
firms came close to matching the experience of the CFS Engineers/RDG Team.  RDG 
and CFS Engineers were the team that updated the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 
developed the Bike Hays Master Plan.  The CFS/RDG team is most familiar with the 
Bike Hays Plan, existing city infrastructure, proposed cost, and in a position to move 
forward with design quickly. 
 
CFS Engineers has prepared an Agreement for Profession Engineering Services to design 
the On-Street Bike Route improvements, provide construction documents, and 
communicate with KDOT at a cost of $48,400. 
 
The Levee Trail is intended to serve as a cap on the levee, which will provide a 10’ wide 
concrete surface to eliminate the wear and erosion currently present due to the use of the 
levee by pedestrian and bicycle use.  Since the Levee Trail Project is intertwined with the 
proposed levee improvements, it makes sense to have Wilson Company design the Levee 
Trail Project in conjunction with the Big Creek Levee Improvement Project. 
 
Wilson Company has prepared an Agreement for Profession Engineering Services to 
design the Levee Trail Improvements as well as provide construction documents, and 
communicate with KDOT at a cost of $49,238. 
 
Upon staff’s request, the KDOT Bureau of Transportation and Planning has awarded the 
City an additional $121,750 to assist with the added cost of inspection to be split between 
the two projects.  
 
If approved, the following is a tentative timeline for engineering, bidding, and 
construction of the on street system and levee cap: 

105



 

 

 
 Award Design Contract  September 12, 2013 
 Site Visit    September 2013 
 Field Check Submittal to KDOT November 1, 2013 
 Office Check Submittal to KDOT January 20, 2014 
 Final Plan Submittal to KDOT March 25, 2014 
 KDOT Bid Letting   July 2014 
 Construction    Fall 2014 or Spring 2015 

 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 
 

Financial Consideration 
At this time staff is requesting the City Commission approve the engineering agreements 
with CFS for $48,400 and Wilson Company for $49,238.  The city’s commitment amount 
is $400,000. The level of engineering required by the state was not anticipated in the 
original submitted grant.  The project is a fluid process which allows for reduction in the 
project, if necessary, to overcome unexpected costs should bidding/project come in 
higher than expected.  KDOT additional contribution will assist in offsetting inspection 
costs.    
 

Options 
The Commission has the following options: 

 
Option 1: Approve the Engineering Service Agreement from CFS Engineers for the  

design of the on-street bike routes in the amount of $48,400 and separate  
agreement with Wilson Company for $49,238. 

Option 2: Provide alternate direction to staff. 
 

Recommendation 
City staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to enter an agreement with CFS 
Engineers for the design of the on-street bike routes in the amount of $48,400 and 
separate agreement with Wilson Company for the levee trail at $49,238 to be funded out 
of Capital Projects. 
  

Action Requested 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter an agreement with CFS Engineers for the 
design of the on-street bike routes in the amount of $48,400 and separate agreement with 
Wilson Company at $49,238 for the levee cap to be funded out of Capital Projects. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
Location Map for Levee Trail 
Levee Trail Agreement for Professional Engineering Services  
Location Map for On-street Bike Routes 
On-street Bike Routes Agreement for Professional Engineering Services 
 

106



L

e

v

e

e

 

H

i

k

e

/

B

i

k

e

 

T

r

a

i

l

u

n

d

e

r

 

s

e

p

e

r

a

t

e

 

p

r

o

j

e

c

t

41st Street Mulit-use path

included in 26U-2295-01

Hays Bike Plan

On-Street Bike Routes

For September 5, 2013 Work Session

City of Hays Public Works

107



 CITY OF HAYS 

 ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 

  

 STANDARD AGREEMENT 

 FOR 

 ENGINEERING SERVICES 
  

  

  

THIS AGREEMENT, between the City of Hays, Kansas (OWNER) and Cook, Flatt & Strobel 

Engineers (ENGINEER); 

 WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, OWNER intends to provide engineering services for The Bike Hays Improvements 

(the Project); and, WHEREAS, OWNER requires certain engineering services in connection with 

the Project (the Services); and, 

  

WHEREAS, ENGINEER is prepared to provide the Services; 

  

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained in this Agreement, OWNER and 

ENGINEER agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE 1 - EFFECTIVE DATE 

The effective date of this Agreement shall be                                            . 

 

ARTICLE 2 - GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of Kansas and the codes of the City of 

Hays. 

 

ARTICLE 3 - SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY ENGINEER 

ENGINEER shall perform services listed in the scope of work in each addendum to this contract in 

accordance with applicable sections of the City of Hays design criteria and drafting standards of 

latest revision. 

 

108



ARTICLE 4 - COMPENSATION 

OWNER shall pay ENGINEER in accordance with charges listed in Attachment A, Charge out 

Rates, and amounts not to exceed specified in each addendum. 

 

ARTICLE 5 - OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

OWNER shall be responsible for all matters described in each addendum. 

 

ARTICLE 6 - PROJECT SCHEDULE 

The provisions set forth in the project schedule listed in each addendum shall be incorporated into 

this Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE 7 - STANDARD OF CARE 

ENGINEER shall exercise the same degree of care, skill, and diligence in the performance of 

Services as is ordinarily possessed and exercised by a professional ENGINEER under similar 

circumstances. 

 

ARTICLE 8 - INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 

In the following instances, ENGINEER hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 

OWNER and any of its departments, divisions, agencies, officers, and employees from all loss, 

damage, cost, or expense arising out of ENGINEER 's negligent performance of Services under this 

Agreement. 

 a. Claims, suits, or action of every kind and description when such suits or actions 

arise from the alleged negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the ENGINEER, its 

employees, agents, or subcontractor. 

 b. Injury or damages received or sustained by any party because of the negligent acts, 

errors, or omissions of the ENGINEER, its employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

ENGINEER shall purchase and maintain during the life of this Agreement, insurance coverage, 

109



which will satisfactorily insure him against claims, and liabilities, which arise because of the 

execution of this Agreement.  The insurance coverages are as follows: 

(1) General Liability Insurance, with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 for each 

occurrence and $1,000,000 in the aggregate. 

(2) Automobile Liability Insurance, with a combined single limit of $1,000,000 for each person 

and $1,000,000 for each accident. 

(3) Worker's Compensation Insurance in accordance with statutory requirements and 

Employer’s Liability Insurance, with a limit of $500,000 for each occurrence. 

(4) Professional Liability Insurance, with a limit of $1,000,000 annual aggregate. 

Prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed by OWNER, ENGINEER shall have on file with 

OWNER certificates of insurance acceptable to OWNER.  Said certificates of insurance shall be 

filed with OWNER in January of each year or may be submitted with each agreement. 

ENGINEER shall also maintain valuable papers insurance to assure the restoration of any plans, 

drawings, field notes or other similar data relating to the work covered by this agreement, in the 

event of their loss or destruction, until such time as the work has been delivered to the OWNER. 

Upon completion of all Services, obligations, and duties provided for in this Agreement, or if this 

Agreement is terminated for any reason, the terms and conditions of this Article shall survive. 

 

ARTICLE 9 - LIMITATIONS OF RESPONSIBILITY 

ENGINEER shall not be responsible for:  (1) construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, 

procedures, or safety precautions and programs in connection with the Project; (2) the failure of any 

contractor, subcontractor, vendor, or other Project participant, not under contract to ENGINEER, to 

fulfill contractual responsibilities to the OWNER or to comply with federal, state or local laws, 

regulations, and codes; or (3) procuring permits, certificates, and licenses required for any 

construction unless such responsibilities are specifically assigned to the ENGINEER in the scope of 

work. 

 

110



ARTICLE 10 - OPINIONS OF COST AND SCHEDULE 

Since ENGINEER has no control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment furnished by 

others, or over the resources provided by others to meet Project construction schedules, 

ENGINEER 's opinion of probable construction costs and of construction schedules shall be made 

on the basis of experience and qualifications as a professional ENGINEER. The ENGINEER does 

not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual Project construction costs will not vary from 

ENGINEER 's cost estimates or that actual construction schedules will not vary from ENGINEER 's 

projected schedules. 

 

ARTICLE 11 - REUSE OF DOCUMENTS 

All documents, including, but not limited to, drawings, specifications, and computer software 

prepared by ENGINEER pursuant to the Agreement are instruments of service in respect to the 

Project.  They are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by OWNER or others on 

extensions of the Project or on any other project.  Any reuse without prior written verification or 

adaptation by ENGINEER for the specific purpose intended will be at OWNER's sole risk and 

without liability or legal exposure to ENGINEER.  Any verification or adaptation requested by 

OWNER shall entitle ENGINEER to compensation at rates to be agreed upon by OWNER and 

ENGINEER.  

 

ARTICLE 12 - OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

Except as otherwise provided herein, engineering documents, drawings, and specifications prepared 

by ENGINEER as part of the Services shall become the sole property of OWNER, however, that 

both OWNER and ENGINEER shall have the unrestricted right to their use. ENGINEER shall 

retain its rights in its standard drawing details, specifications, databases, computer software, and 

other proprietary property protected under the copyright laws of the United States.  Rights to 

intellectual property developed, utilized, or modified in the performance of services shall remain the 

property of ENGINEER.  OWNER shall have the unlimited right to the use of intellectual property 

111



developed, utilized, or modified in the performance of the Services at no additional cost to the 

OWNER. 

 

ARTICLE 13 - TERMINATION 

This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon written notice in the event of substantial 

failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  The 

nonperforming party shall have fifteen calendar days from the date of the termination notice to cure 

or to submit a plan for cure acceptable to the other party.  OWNER may terminate or suspend 

performance of this Agreement for OWNER's convenience upon written notice to ENGINEER. 

ENGINEER shall terminate or suspend performance of the Services on a schedule acceptable to 

OWNER.  If termination or suspension is for OWNER's convenience, OWNER shall pay 

ENGINEER for all Services performed prior to the date of the termination notice.  Upon restart, an 

adjustment acceptable to OWNER and ENGINEER shall be made to ENGINEER 's compensation. 

 

ARTICLE 14 - DELAY IN PERFORMANCE 

Neither OWNER nor ENGINEER shall be considered in default of the Agreement for delays in 

performance caused by circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the nonconforming party.  

For purposes of this Agreement, such circumstances include abnormal weather conditions; floods; 

earthquakes; fire; epidemics; war, riots, or other civil disturbances; sabotage, judicial restraint, and 

inability to procure permits, licenses, or authorizations from any local, state, or federal agency for 

any of the supplies, materials, accesses, or services required to be provided by either OWNER or 

ENGINEER under this Agreement. 

Should such circumstances occur, the nonconforming party shall, within a reasonable time of being 

prevented from performing, give written notice to the other party describing the circumstances 

preventing continued performance and the efforts being made to resume performance of the 

Agreement. 

For delays in performance by ENGINEER, which are caused by circumstances, which are within its 

112



control, such delays, shall be documented on the ENGINEER's Project Performance Evaluation 

form.  Said form shall be completed at the conclusion of Project and acknowledged by both 

OWNER and ENGINEER.  Completed form shall be retained by OWNER for a period of five years 

and reviewed prior to consultant selection for City projects. 

In the event ENGINEER is delayed in the performance of Services because of delays caused by 

OWNER, ENGINEER shall have no claim against OWNER for damages or contract adjustment 

other than an extension of time. 

 

ARTICLE 15 - COMMUNICATIONS 

Any communication required by this Agreement shall be made in writing to the address specified 

below: 

  Engineer: Cook, Flatt & Strobel, Engineers, P.A. 

    2930 SW Woodside Drive 

    Topeka, KS  66614 

  

  Owner:  City of Hays 

    Engineering Department 

    1002 Vine Street 

    Hays, KS   67601 

  

Nothing contained in the Article shall be construed to restrict the transmission of routine 

communications between representatives of ENGINEER and OWNER. 

 

ARTICLE 16 - WAIVER 

A waiver by either OWNER or ENGINEER of any breach of this Agreement shall be in writing.  

Such a waiver shall not affect the waiving party's rights with respect to any other or further breach. 

 

ARTICLE 17 - SEVERABILITY 

The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement or the occurrence 

of any event rendering any portion or provision of this Agreement void shall in no way affect the 

validity or enforceability of any other portion or provision of this Agreement.  Any void provision 

113



shall be deemed severed from this Agreement, and the balance of this Agreement shall be construed 

and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular portion or provision held to be void.  

The parties further agree to amend this Agreement to replace any stricken provision with a valid 

provision that comes as close as possible to the intent of the stricken provision.  The provisions of 

this Article shall not prevent this entire Agreement from being void should a provision which is of 

the essence of this Agreement be determined void. 

 

ARTICLE 18 - INTEGRATION 

This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between OWNER and ENGINEER.  

All prior and contemporaneous communications, representations, and agreements by ENGINEER, 

whether oral or written, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement are hereby incorporated into 

and shall become a part of this Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE 19 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

OWNER and ENGINEER each binds itself and its directors, officers, partners, successors, 

executors, administrators, assigns, and legal representatives to the other party of this Agreement and 

to the directors, officers, partners, successors, executors, administrators, assigns, and legal 

representatives of such other party in respect to all provisions of this Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE 20 - ASSIGNMENT 

Neither OWNER nor ENGINEER shall assign any rights or duties under this Agreement without 

the prior written consent of the other party.  Unless otherwise stated in the written consent to an 

assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any obligation under this 

Agreement.  Nothing contained in this Article shall prevent ENGINEER from employing 

independent consultants, associates, and subcontractors to assist in the performance of the Services; 

however, other agreements to the contrary notwithstanding, in the event ENGINEER employs 

independent consultants, associates, and subcontractors to assist in performance of the Services, 

114



ENGINEER shall be solely responsible for the negligent performance of the independent 

consultants, associates, and subcontractors so employed. 

 

ARTICLE 21 - THIRD PARTY RIGHTS 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone other than 

OWNER and ENGINEER. 

115



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, OWNER and ENGINEER have executed this Agreement. 

  

  

  

  

CITY OF HAYS                                                     Cook, Flatt & Strobel, Engineers   

Owner Engineer 

  

  

                                                                                      

By Toby Dougherty By  

  

  

City Manager                                                           Vice President                                                            

Title Title          

  

  

                                                                                                   

Date Date  

  

  

  

  

Attest:                                                                            Attest:  

  

  

 

116



 

 

Contract No. 

 
 

A-1 

 

 

BIKE HAYS IMPROVEMENT 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

TO 

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

Owner:       City of Hays, Kansas 

Engineer:       Cook, Flatt & Strobel, Engineers, P.A. 

Project Number & Name:     COH Project 20012-13 Bike Hays Improvements  

  

 SCOPE OF SERVICES 

I. BASIC SERVICES 

 

The scope of Basic Services for this project is as follows:  Work under any particular phase if 

applicable will not proceed until owner authorizes Engineer in writing to proceed. 

 

A. Engineering Design Phase: 

 

1. Initial visit to City (2 day) 

a. Conduct coordination meeting 

b. On-site preliminary workshop including field reconnaissance 

c. Public presentation 

 

2. Additional visit to the City (2 days)  

a. Meeting with City and stakeholders 

b. On-site work session 

c. Public open house/presentation 

 

3. Develop field check plans for KDOT review 

a. One site visit for field check 

 

4. Develop office check plans and specifications for KDOT review  

5. Develop final check plans and specifications for KDOT letting 

 

 Contractor Solicitation Phase: 

 

1. This project will let by KDOT 

2. Address contractor questions and review appropriate addenda during the bid preparation 

period. 

 

 

117



 

 

Contract No. 

 
 

A-2 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL SERVICES 

 

Any work requested by the Owner that is not included in the Basic Services will be classified as 

Supplemental Services.  Supplemental Services shall include, but are not limited to the following. 

 

1. Changes in the general scope, extent, or character of the project or its design, including but not 

limited to changes in size, complexity, Owner's schedule, character of construction or method 

of financing; and revising previously accepted studies, reports, or design documents when such 

revisions are required by changes in laws, regulations, ordinances, codes, or orders enacted 

subsequent to the preparation of such studies/reports/documents or designs or due to any other 

causes beyond the Engineer's control. 

 

2. Construction Engineering Phase: 

 

a. Attendance at pre-construction conference. 

b. Review all shop drawings and submittals. 

c. Attend progress meetings 

d. Construction observation 

 
3. Topographic, ALTA, or boundary surveys.  Plans will be based on aerial imagery and 

approximate field measures.  

 
4. Legal descriptions or right of way plans.  Easement and/or right of way acquisition are not 

anticipated for this project. 

 
5. Utility Coordination and/or utility plans.  Utility conflicts and relocations are not anticipated.  

 
6. Geotechnical investigation 

 
7. Additional presentations or on-site visits not listed under the basic services.  

 
 

 

 

118



 

 

Contract No.              

    
 
 

B-1 

 

 

BIKE HAYS IMPROVEMENT 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

TO 

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

Owner:       City of Hays, Kansas 

Engineer:       Cook, Flatt & Strobel, Engineers, P.A. 

Project Number & Name:     COH Project 20012-13 Bike Hays Improvements  

  

 COMPENSATION 

 

For the services covered by this Agreement, the Owner agrees to pay the Engineer as follows: 

 

A. For the Basic Service described in Attachment A, an hourly rate plus mark-ups and 

expenses as defined below not-to-exceed forty-eight thousand four hundred dollars 

($48,400.00).   

 

B. Payments shall be made to the Engineer by the Owner based on the Engineer's 

statement. Payments shall be made monthly in amounts which are consistent with the 

amount of engineering services provided, as determined by the Engineer. The entire 

amount of each statement shall be due and payable upon receipt by the Owner. 

 

 Payments shall be full compensation for salary costs, overhead, profit, expenses and 

all other costs required in performing the work described herein.  Overhead costs, 

including fringe benefits, shall be defined by the Engineer’s rate schedule, see 

Attachment F.  Hourly charge rates are subject to adjustment annually on January 1.  

Overtime, when authorized by the Owner, will be billed at 1.5 times the rates listed 

(non-engineer time only). 

 

D. It is understood and agreed that a delay, for any reason or cause, in the start of 

services by the Engineer shall not entitle the Engineer to additional compensation. 

 

    

E. It is understood and agreed: 

 

1. That the Engineer shall start the performance of Services within 10 days of 

receipt of a notice to proceed and shall complete the work in accordance with 

the contract times set forth in Attachment E, Project Schedule. 

 

2. That the Engineer shall keep records on the basis of generally accepted 

accounting practice of costs and expenses which records shall be available for 

inspection at all reasonable times. 

119



 

 

Contract No.              

               

 
 

C-1 

 

 

BIKE HAYS IMPROVEMENT 

 

ATTACHMENT C 

TO 

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

Owner:     City of Hays, Kansas 

Engineer:       Cook, Flatt & Strobel, Engineers, P.A. 

Project Number & Name:     COH Project 20012-13 Bike Hays Improvements  

  

 

 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

 

The Owner will furnish, as required by the work and not at the expense of the Engineer, the 

following items: 

 

1. Right of way maps, plats, and deeds.  

2. Aerial, street and utility maps. 

3. Provide meeting space for meetings, presentations, design workshops, and public 

presentations.  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

120



 

 

Contract No.              

               

 
 

D-1 

 

BIKE HAYS IMPROVEMENT 

 

ATTACHMENT D 

TO 

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

Owner:     City of Hays, Kansas 

Engineer:       Cook, Flatt & Strobel, Engineers, P.A. 

Project Number & Name:     COH Project 20012-13 Bike Hays Improvements  

  

 

 SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS 

 

 

Owner and Engineer agree that the following communications, representations, and 

agreements by Engineer, whether oral or written, relating to the subject matter of the 

Agreement are hereby incorporated into and shall become a part of the Agreement as set 

forth in ARTICLE 19 - INTEGRATION. 

 

1.  

 

2.  

 

3.  

 

4.  

 

5.  

 

6.  

 

7.  

 

8.  

 

9.  

 

10.  

 

 

 

121



 

 

Contract No.              

               

 
 

E-1 

 

BIKE HAYS IMPROVEMENT 

 

ATTACHMENT E 

TO 

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 

Owner:     City of Hays, Kansas 

Engineer:       Cook, Flatt & Strobel, Engineers, P.A. 

Project Number & Name:     COH Project 20012-13 Bike Hays Improvements  

 

 PROJECT SCHEDULE 

 

Owner and Engineer recognize that time is of the essence of the Agreement and that Owner 

will suffer financial loss if the work is not completed within the times stipulated herein, plus 

any extensions thereof.  Accordingly, Engineer has established time intervals, in calendar 

days, for submittals at various stages of the project as detailed below.  As each actual 

submittal date occurs, if requested, Engineer shall meet with Owner to discuss the progress 

of the work and the actual submittal date shall be documented.  If project is behind schedule, 

the reason shall be recorded.  Engineer shall not be responsible for the time required by 

Owner's representative to review Engineer's submittal.  When review is complete, Owner 

shall, in writing, authorize Engineer to proceed to the next submittal date.  After final 

submittal date, if requested, Engineer and Owner shall meet to evaluate Engineer's 

performance with regard to design schedule.  

 

1. Schedule.  Engineer will make plan submittals to Owner based on the following 

schedule: 

 

a.   The project submittal schedule will generally follow the KDOT schedule for a 

letting in September 2014.  The engineer will work to expedite the schedule and 

letting for this project, if possible. 

   

b.   Engineering services will begin 10 calendar days after Notice to Proceed by owner 

including scheduling the first design visit.   

 
c.   First visit will be scheduled in September 2013 if the City is available.  Second visit 

will be scheduled before December 2013, also based on City’s availability. 

 

d.   Field check plans will be submitted 40 calendar days after completion of second 

visit to Hays for design workshop and presentation.  

 
e.   Office check plans and specifications will be submitted 40 calendar days after on-

site field check. 

 

122



 

 

Contract No.              

               

 
 

E-2 

 

f.   Final plans and specifications will be submitted 30 calendar days after receiving 

commons back from the City and KDOT on the field check plans.  

 

123



 

124



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

                 COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 11               MEETING DATE: 9-12-13 
 
 
 
TOPIC: 
 
Bike Hays – Levee Trail Engineering Design Agreement 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter an agreement with Wilson Company for the 
design of the Levee Trail in the amount of $49,238 to be funded out of Capital Projects. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The previous agenda item regarding the Bike Hays – On-Street Bike Routes Engineering 
Design Agreement presented the details regarding Engineering Design Services for Levee 
Trail as well as the On-Street Routes.  The cost for Levee Path Engineering is $49,238. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
I.D. Creech, Director of Public Works 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
City staff recommends authorizing the City Manager to enter an agreement with Wilson 
Company for the design of the levee trail in the amount of $49,238 to be funded out of Capital 
Projects. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
n/a 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Location Map 
Agreement for Professional Engineering Services     

125



Hays Bike Plan

Levee Trail

For September 5, 2013 Work Session

City of Hays Public Works

Levee Mulit-use Path

126



 AGREEMENT 
 FOR 
 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
 
THIS IS AN AGREEMENT, made as of     , 2013, between the City of Hays, 
Kansas (CITY) and Wilson & Company, Inc., Engineers & Architects (ENGINEER).  ENGINEER shall 
provide to CITY Profession Engineering Services for the   Bike Hays –Multi-Use Big Creek Levee 
Trail    project.  ENGINEER shall design and develop construction documents necessary to construct the 
hike / bike trail improvements along Big Creek from 8th Street south to Allen Street as illustrated in Figure 
1 of this agreement.  The trail and appurtenances shall be designed in accordance with current FHWA, 
AASHTO and MUTCD standards.  This project will be completed per Kansas Department of 
Transportation, Bureau of Local Projects project administration processes. 
 
The purpose of this project is to provide design services needed to construct the “Big Creek Trail, Main-
8” segment of Route 2 – Main” as defined in the BIKE HAYS MASTER PLAN document, completed 
in 2012. 
 
A secondary benefit of this trail project will be to increase the level of protection provided by the 
segments of the Big Creek Levee System on which the new trail will be constructed, by adding height 
(equal to the trail pavement thickness) to the levee embankment.  This project does not include updated 
Hydrologic, Hydraulic or Geotechnical Analysis, therefore, the level of protection provided by the levee 
system is unknown.  Based on the Current Effective FEMA Flood Insurance Study and previous studies 
completed by the City, the level of protection provided by the levee system in 2004 was less than the 100-
yr interval storm event with no freeboard. 
 
 
SECTION 1 - BASIC SERVICES OF ENGINEER 
 

 ENGINEER shall provide the Services described in Attachment I, Scope of Services. 
 
 
SECTION 2 - ADDITIONAL SERVICES OF ENGINEER 
 
2.1.  Services Requiring Authorization in Advance.  
 

If authorized in writing by the CITY, the ENGINEER shall furnish or obtain from others Additional 
Services of the types listed in paragraphs 2.1.1 through 2.1.4, inclusive.  These services are not 
included as part of Basic Services.  These Additional Services will be paid for by the CITY as 
indicated in Section 5. 

 
2.1.1.  Services resulting from significant changes in the general scope, extent or character of the 
Project or its design including, but not limited to, changes in size, complexity, CITY's schedule, 
and revising previously accepted studies, reports, design documents or Contract Documents when 
such revisions are required by changes in laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes or orders 
enacted subsequent to the preparation of such studies, reports or documents, or are due to any 
other causes beyond ENGINEER's control. 
 

127



2.1.2.  Furnishing services of independent professional associates and consultants for other than 
Basic Services for customary civil engineering, surveying, and geotechnical design; and providing 
data or services when the CITY employs the ENGINEER to provide such data or services in lieu 
of furnishing the same. 
 
2.1.3. Providing any engineering services other than Basic Services included in Section 1.  
 
2.1.4.  Additional services in connection with the Project, including services which are to be 
furnished by the CITY in accordance with Section 3, and services not otherwise provided for in 
this Agreement. 

 
2.2. Required Additional Services.  No additional services have been identified at this time.  If 
additional design services are requested by the CITY, they will be completed under a supplemental 
agreement. 
 
 
SECTION 3 - CITY'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
CITY shall do the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services of ENGINEER: 
 
3.1.  Designate a person to act as CITY's representative during the project. 
 
3.2.  Provide all pertinent requested data to ENGINEER from City records, as described in Attachment 1. 
 
3.3.  Review submittals and provide feedback to ENGINEER as necessary to be complete task items 
included in this agreement. 
 
3.4.  Provide access to all facilities as necessary to complete the task items in this contract. 
 
3.5.  Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this Section 3. 
 
 
SECTION 4 - PERIODS OF SERVICE 
 
4.1.  The provisions of this Section 4 and the various rates of compensation for ENGINEER's services 

provided for elsewhere in this Agreement have been agreed to in anticipation of the orderly and 
continuous progress of the Project.  ENGINEER's obligation to render services hereunder will 
extend for a period which may reasonably be required.  If specific periods of time for rendering 
services are set forth or specific dates by which services are to be completed are provided and if such 
dates are exceeded through no fault of ENGINEER, all rates, measures and amounts of 
compensation provided herein shall be subject to equitable adjustment. 

 
4.2.  ENGINEER shall complete services described per Attachment II, Project Schedule, following 

execution of this agreement and Notice to Proceed. 
 
ENGINEER shall not be held responsible for delays by others, uncontrollable by and at no fault of 
the ENGINEER, such as by USACE and KSDWR. 

128



SECTION 5 - PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER, COST PLUS METHOD OF PAYMENT 
 
5.1. Methods of Payment for Services and Expenses of ENGINEER.  
 

5.1.1.  For Basic Services.  CITY shall pay ENGINEER for Basic Services rendered under 
SECTION I on cost plus basis as detailed in Attachment III. 

   
  Cost Plus 
 

Payments for those services outlined in SECTION I of this Agreement are to be based on 
direct labor cost times the current labor multiplier, plus reimbursable direct expenses.  The 
labor multiplier includes overhead (currently 1.831) and profit (12%), and is currently 3.171. 
The labor multiplier is subject to review and change annually, based on changes in overhead 
rates.  Charges for services and expenses incurred under SECTION I will be based on the 
rates and charges in effect at the time services are performed and expenses are incurred. 
 
The maximum Cost Plus fee of     $49,238.00     shall not be exceeded without prior written 
approval from CITY.  Supporting Fee Data is included as Attachment 2. 

 
5.1.2. If ENGINEER’s Scope of Services is revised, under Section 2, the maximum amount 

of Cost Plus Fee payable to ENGINEER shall be revised accordingly. 
 

5.1.3. ENGINEER may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases of 
the work noted herein to be consistent with services actually rendered, but shall not 
exceed the total estimated compensation amount unless approved in writing by the 
CITY. 

 
5.2. Other Provisions Concerning Payments.  
 

5.2.1.  In the event of termination by CITY under paragraph 7.1 upon the completion of any phase 
of the Basic Services, progress payments due ENGINEER for services rendered through such phase 
shall constitute total payment for such services.  In the event of such termination by CITY during 
any phase of the Basic Services, ENGINEER will be paid for services rendered during that phase on 
the basis of ENGINEER's completion percentage.  In the event of any such termination, 
ENGINEER will be paid for all unpaid Additional Services. 

 
 
SECTION 6 - OPINIONS OF COST 
 
6.1. Opinions of Cost.  
 

6.1.1.  Since ENGINEER has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or services 
furnished by others, or over the Contractor(s)' methods of determining prices, or over competitive 
bidding or market conditions, ENGINEER's opinion of probable Construction Cost provided for 
herein are to be made on the basis of ENGINEER's experience and qualifications and represent 
ENGINEER's best judgment as an experienced and qualified professional engineer, familiar with 
the construction industry; but ENGINEER cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or 

129



actual Total Project or Construction Costs will not vary from opinions of probable cost prepared by 
ENGINEER.  If prior to the Bidding or Negotiating Phase, CITY wishes greater assurance as to 
Total Project or Construction Costs, CITY shall employ an independent cost estimator.  

 
 
SECTION 7 - GENERAL CONSIDERATION 
 
7.1. Termination.  
 

7.1.1. The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be terminated by either 
party upon thirty days' written notice in the event of substantial failure by the other party to perform 
in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party. 

 
7.2. Reuse of Documents.  
 

7.2.1.  All documents prepared or furnished by ENGINEER (and ENGINEER's independent 
professional associates and consultants) pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of service in 
respect of the Project and ENGINEER shall retain an ownership and property interest therein 
whether or not the Project is completed.  CITY may make and retain copies for information and 
reference in connection with the use and occupancy of the Project by CITY and others; however, 
such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by CITY or others on 
extensions of the Project or on any other project.  Any reuse without written verification or 
adaptation by ENGINEER for the specific purpose intended will be at CITY's sole risk and without 
liability or legal exposure to ENGINEER, or to ENGINEER's independent professional associates 
or consultants, and CITY shall indemnify and hold harmless ENGINEER and ENGINEER's 
independent professional associates and consultants from all claims, damages, losses and expenses 
including attorneys' fees arising out of or resulting therefrom.  Any such verification or adaptation 
will entitle ENGINEER to further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by CITY and 
ENGINEER.  

 
7.3. Insurance.  
 

7.3.1.Commercial General Liability 
 The ENGINEER shall provide public liability insurance coverage in an amount no less than 

$500,000 covering the liability of the ENGINEER on an occurrence basis.  The insurer must be 
acceptable to the CITY. 

 
7.3.2. Automobile Liability 
The ENGINEER shall provide coverage protecting the ENGINEER against claims for bodily injury 
and/or property damage arising out of the ownership or use of any owned, hired and/or non-owned 
vehicle.  Required minimum limits:  $500,000 each accident, or a combined total of $1,000,000. 
 
7.3.3. Workers Compensation 
Before beginning work, the ENGINEER shall furnish to the CITY satisfactory proof that he has 
taken out, for the period covered by the work under this contract, full workers’ compensation 
coverage as required by state law for all persons who he may employ directly in carrying out the 

130



work contemplated under this contract, and shall hold the CITY free and harmless for all personal 
injuries of all persons who the ENGINEER may employ directly. 
 
7.3.4. Professional Liability - Errors and Omissions 
The ENGINEER shall provide Architects or Engineers Professional Liability Insurance with limits 
not less than $1,000,000, covering the liability of the ENGINEER.  The insurer must be acceptable 
to the CITY.  In the event coverage provided is claims made coverage, the insurance shall be 
maintained for a period of not less than three (3) years after completion of the contract or in lieu 
thereof purchase of tail coverage (extended reporting period) under which the CITY shall be 
afforded protection. 
 
7.3.5. Certificate(s) of Insurance 
Certificate(s) of Insurance acceptable to the CITY shall be filed with the CITY at the time the 
contract between the CITY and the ENGINEER is executed, if requested by CITY.  These 
certificates shall contain a provisions that coverage that is afforded under the policies will not be 
cancelled until at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the CITY and 
acknowledged. 
 
7.3.6. Notice of Claim 
The ENGINEER, upon receipt of notice of any claim in excess of $1,000 in connection with this 
contract shall promptly notify the CITY, providing full details thereof, including an estimate of the 
amount or loss of liability. 
 
7.3.7 Indemnification Clause 
The ENGINEER agrees to indemnify and save harmless the CITY, its officials, servants, officers, 
directors and employees from and against all expenses and judgments for personal injury or death 
or damage to property where, and to the extent caused by the ENGINEER’s negligent acts, errors or 
omissions. 

 
7.4. Controlling Law.  
 

7.4.1.  This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the State of Kansas.   
 
7.5. Successors and Assigns.  
 

7.5.1.  CITY and ENGINEER each is hereby bound and the partners, successors, executors, 
administrators and legal representatives of CITY and ENGINEER (and to the extent permitted by 
paragraph 7.5.2 the assigns of CITY and ENGINEER) are hereby bound to the other party to this 
Agreement and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and legal representatives (and 
said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations of this 
Agreement.  

 
7.5.2.  Neither CITY nor ENGINEER shall assign, sublet or transfer any rights under or interest in 
(including, but without limitation, moneys that may become due or moneys that are due) this 
Agreement without the written consent of the other, except to the extent that any assignment, 
subletting or transfer is mandated by law or the effect of this limitation may be restricted by law.  
Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment 

131



will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.  
Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent ENGINEER from employing such independent 
professional associates and consultants as ENGINEER may deem appropriate to assist in the 
performance of services hereunder. 

 
  7.5.3.  Nothing under this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits in this 

Agreement to anyone other than CITY and ENGINEER, and all duties and responsibilities 
undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of CITY and 
ENGINEER and not for the benefit of any other party.  

 
This Agreement, consisting of  pages 1 to 6, Attachment I (4 pages), Figure 1, Attachment II (1 page), and 
Attachment III (3 pages) for a total of 15 pages, inclusive, constitutes the entire agreement between CITY 
and ENGINEER and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings.  This Agreement may only be 
amended, supplemented, modified or canceled by a duly executed written instrument. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year first above written. 
 
CITY:         ENGINEER: 
City of Hays, Kansas       Wilson & Company, Inc., 
1002 Vine Street        Engineers & Architects 
Hays, KS  67601   800 East 101st Terrace, Suite 200 
  Kansas City, MO  64131 
 
           
By:          ______________________    
          Douglas G. Danaher, PE, CFM 
         Operation Manager 
         doug.danaher@wilsonco.com  
Name         
           
                  
Title and Date        Date 
 
 
 
By:          
 
 
           
Name          
 
           
Title and Date 
 

132

mailto:doug.danaher@wilsonco.com�


ATTACHMENT I 
 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

 
BASE SERVICES – Bike Hays – Multi-Use Trail Big Creek Levee 
 
Consultant shall prepare construction documents (plan drawings, technical specifications and cost estimate) 
necessary for the City to advertise and let a construction project for the 1.5 miles of BIKE HAYS Multi-use 
Hike / Bike Trail along the Big Creek Levee from 8th Street south to approximately Allen Street. 
 
This project is being partially funded by a Kansas Department of Transportation Transportation (KDOT) 
Enhancement Grant and therefore will be designed to applicable standards (FHWA, AASHTO and MUTCD).  
The project will be administered by the City, coordinated with KDOT Bureau of Local Project (BLP), therefore 
will be subject to the KDOT BLP standard project procedures and schedule (field check, office check, final 
plan, etc.).  This scope provides design services, production of construction documents and permitting services 
necessary to construct the levee trail as part of the planned improvements included in the BIKE HAYS 
MASTER PLAN completed in 2012.  The trail improvements included in this project will be designed in 
compliance with the BIKE HAYS MASTER PLAN, City Criteria, FHWA, ADA/AASHTO, MUCTC, KDOT 
BLP.  USACE KC shall be consulted to ensure the trail improvements are completed in a manner that does not 
decrease the level of flood protection provided by the levee system.  This project does not include hydrologic / 
hydraulic analysis of Big Creek, or geotechnical analysis of the levee embankments. The actual level of 
protection provided by the levee system is unknown.  The level of protection provided the levee system will be 
equal to existing conditions or increased with the improvements included in this project.  Based on the Current 
Effective FEMA Flood Insurance Study and previous studies completed by the City, the level of protection 
provided by the levee system in 2004 was less than the 100-yr interval storm event with no freeboard.  
 
Consultant shall develop one bid package (construction documents) sufficient for the trail improvements 
located along the Big Creek Levee as illustrated in Figure 1.  Improvements to be included in the construction 
documents include: 
 

1. Concrete Trail (10’ width, 6” thick, compacted subgrade, 2’ earth shoulders). 
2. Alignment will be along top of levee unless required width of trail and supporting embankment 

requires significant fill (such as along more narrow levee section east of Main St) and results in costs 
greater than the project budget, in which case the trail will be located adjacent to the levee 
embankment.  Alignment will consider utilities, trees, right-of-way limits, impacts to Big Creek 
channel capacity, fill volume, bridge clearances (horizontal and vertical), embankment conduit end 
treatments, sluice gate wells, drainage conditions, scenery, bicyclist and pedestrian safety and 
convenience, park amenities (frisbee golf, signs, access roads, shelters, etc.). 

3. Thickness of the trail pavement will be added to the height of the levee embankment. 
4. Trail connection to 8th Street.  May include minor pavement improvements, striping, signing and 

vehicle access control) 
5. Gustad Drive crossing and connection to Bike Hays Route D.  May include curb cuts, ramps, striping, 

signing and vehicle access control. 
6. Trail along the newly constructed Dwight Drive from 8th Street south past the pedestrian bridge.  The 

trail may need to be in Dwight Drive or along the river side toe of the levee, due to potential 
insufficient clearance (8 ft minimum) from the top of trail to low steel of the bridge. 

7. Coordination with Fort Hays State University and up to two additional connections / ramps to campus 
trails. 

133



8. Main Street crossing and connections to Bike Hays Route 2 (going northeast on Main St) and Route 1 
(going west on 1st St).  May include curb cuts, ramps, striping, signing and vehicle access control.  
Consultant will investigate aligning the trail through the Main Street bridge opening. 

9. Trail connection to Allen Street / Ball Park Rd cul-de-sac and Bike Hays Route 3 (going northeast on 
Allen St), adjacent to Glassman Ballfields.  May include curb cuts, ramps, striping, signing and 
vehicle access control. 

 
Consultant will coordinate with UPRR to investigate potential methods of extending the trail north across the 
UPRR tracks, just north of 8th Street.  Potential crossing alignments include an at-grade crossing along levee 
crest or through the rail bridge opening underneath the bridge deck. 
 
I. Engineering services shall include: 
 

a. Site Investigation:  Consultant shall visit the site with two (2) representatives, including one Sr Civil 
Engineer, to observe current conditions, confirm preliminary alignment and document site constraints 
or obstacles.  Consultant will be accompanied by a City representative and a Fort Hays State University 
representative to review and comment on preliminary alignment.   

 
b.  Field Survey Services:  Consultant shall complete field survey services necessary to complete design.  

Survey extents will be 100 feet wide for the extents of and centered on the “Proposed Levee Trail” 
line illustrated in Figure 1.  All survey data shall be collected and provided in Kansas State Plane 
North horizontal coordinate system and NAVD 88 vertical coordinate system.  

 
Consultant will contact utility companies through Kansas One-Call (max two attempts).  It’s assumed 
all utilities will be marked within two weeks of the time of the locate request. 
 
Consultant shall establish and document horizontal and vertical control at each end using 5/8” iron 
rods with WCI control caps.  Control points may be used as benchmarks.  Benchmarks may be set on 
existing concrete structures that are to remain. 
 
Consultant shall office process all field collected data to provide elevation, topographic and utility 
information sufficient to complete design and construction of improvements. 
 
It’s assumed that City currently has adequate land rights necessary for design and construction.  
Therefore, no legal boundary survey services are included for any of the trail improvements.  Parcel 
data from the City GIS system will be included in the plan drawings and labeled as approximate. 
 

c.  Construction Plan Drawings:  Consultant shall develop construction plan drawings sufficient for 
construction of recommended trail improvements.  All Engineering services shall be completed by or 
under the direct supervision of a Professional Engineer, licensed in Kansas, experienced in hike / bike 
path and KDOT design. 
 
It’s estimated the following plan drawings will be required: 
 

•  Title Sheet 
•  General Notes and Quantities 
•  General Layout and Survey Control 
•  Typical Cross Sections 
•  Plan and Profile Sheets (14 sheets) (1” = 20’ scale) 
•  Signing and Striping Plans (6 sheets) (1” = 50’ scale) 
•  Standard Details (3 sheets) 
•  Miscellaneous Details (4 sheets) 
•  Temporary Erosion Control (4 sheets) 

134



It’s estimated approximately 35 plan sheets will be required.  Cross Section Sheets are not 
included. 

 
d. Construction Specifications:  Consultant assemble technical construction specifications necessary for 

construction.  Bidding documents and other “Front End” specifications are not included.  It’s 
estimated the following construction specifications will be required: 

 
1.  Site Clearing, Disposal 
2.  Concrete Paving and Incidental Items 
3.  Embankment 
4.  Excavating 
5.  Backfilling 
6.  Concrete Materials 
7.  Steel Materials 
8.  Soil Materials 
9.  Seeding  
10. Temporary Erosion Control 
11. Final Grading 
12. Pavement Markings 
13. Signing 

 
KDOT Standard Constructions Specifications shall be utilized. 

 
e.  Quantities and Cost Estimate:  Consultant shall tabulate all bid quantities and provide a construction 

cost estimate for all improvements for the City to reference while letting the project. 
 

f.  Field Check Review Meeting:  Consultant shall conduct a field review with the City, KDOT and FHSU 
following completion of preliminary plans, to verify existing conditions and proposed improvements. 
 

g.  Consultant shall complete Office Check plans and incorporate review comments from City, KDOT and 
FHSU.  Consultant shall submit office check plans to City, KDOT, Permitting Agencies and Utility 
Companies.  Consultant shall coordinate utility conflicts with the utility companies as necessary for 
timely progression of project. 

 
h.  Permitting & Utility Coordination Services:  Consultant shall submit permit applications to:  Kansas 

Division of Water Resources, United States Army Corps of Engineers, and the Kansas Department of 
Health and Environment, and utility companies as required.  Following submittal of applications, 
Consultant shall provide necessary coordination with these review agencies, up to 24 hours.  If 
additional coordination time is required, Consultant will furnish these services as additional services. 
 

i.  Consultant shall complete final plans and incorporate review comments from City, KDOT, Utilities and 
permitting agencies. 

 
 
The following services are not included: 
 

a. Legal Boundary services 
b. Field survey services for As-Built Drawings 
c. Permitting Fees 
d. Geotechnical investigations or analysis 
e. Construction Related Services 

 
 

135



Assumptions: 
 

a. This project will be completed concurrently with the Hays Levee Safety Repairs project by the 
Consultant. 

b. City shall provide City bench marks and horizontal control points. 
c. City shall provide access necessary to complete work. 
d. City shall provide all applicable readily available resources (construction plans for new street and 

parking project, design standards, standard drawings and specifications, cost data, utility info, etc.)  
Consultant will utilize on-line City GIS data available. 

e. City will submit necessary construction permits and corresponding fees, which may include:  KS 
DWR, USACE and KDHE/NPDES.  Consultant will prepare the permit applications and provide to 
City for submittal. 

f. City will provide “up-front” construction specifications and assemble the Project Manual.  Consultant 
will provide the technical specifications. 

g. City will provide full time construction inspection and testing services necessary. 
h. City will provide “red-lined” plan drawings following construction to be used to create As-Built 

Drawings. 
i. All utilities will be marked within two weeks of the time of the locate request are submitted to Kansas 

One-Call. 
j. City currently has adequate land rights necessary to design and construct all improvements.  Therefore, 

no legal boundary survey services are included.  Parcel data for the City GIS system will be included 
in the plan drawings and labeled as approximate.  Coordination with FHSU is necessary. 

136



H
al

l S
t

Old Hwy 40 / W 8th St

W 12th St

U
S

 H
w

y 1
8

3

Fort Hays
State University

W 8th St

Old Hyw 40 / E 8th St

M
ai

n 
S

t

E
lm

 S
t

A
sh S

t

Frontier
Historical Park

US Hwy 183

P
in

e 
S

t

UPRR

E 4th St

UPRR

Glassman
Ball Fields

Treat
Park

Larks
Park

City
Park

Lewis
Field

Wiest
Hall

Tiger
Field

Gross
Memorial

Wooster
Place

FHSU
Alumni

Association

Connection to 8th Street

Gustad Drive Crossing and
Connection to Bike Hays Route D

Newly Constructed Dwight Drive

Pedestrian Bridge

Main Street Crossing and
Connection to Bike Hays Routes 1 and 2 (north)

Connection to Allen Street cul-de-sac and
Connection to Bike Hays Route 3

A
lle

n 
S

t

M
iln

er
 S

t

E 4th St

E 5th St

Gustad Dr

Big Cr

Lin
co

ln 
Dr

aw

Big Cr

Route D

Ro
ute

 1

Ro
ute

 2

Ro
ute

 3

CITY OF HAYS
Bike Hays -

Levee Trail Impovements
Overall Location Map Ü

0 600300

FeetAug 2013 FIGURE 1

Legend
Proposed Levee Trail

Bike Hays Routes (Initial Phase)

137



Target
Completion

Scope Item Date

Notice to Proceed Aug 23, 2013

Preliminary Plans and Public Meeting Nov 14, 2013

Field Check Plans, Specs & Estimate Submittal Dec 31, 2013

Field Check Jan 31, 2014

Office Check Plans, Specs & Estimate Submittal Mar 17, 2014 

Submit Permit Applications Mar 31, 2014

Utility Coordination (if Necessary) Mar 31, 2014

Final Check Plans & Cost Estimate to BLP & Saline County May 30, 2014

Approved Final Plans Submittal Jun 30,2014

Permits Received, Utilities Cleared (if applicable) Jun 30, 2014

Advertise for Bids Jul 1, 2014

Construction Letting Aug 15, 2014

RECOMMEND PROJECT SCHEDULE

138



Scope Direct Overhead Direct Task Survey Total

Item Task Description Labor Cost Cost Markup  Expense Sub-Totals Cost Fee

I. Engineering Services $12,611.00 $23,078.13 $2,855.13 $500.00 $39,044.26 $10,194.00 $49,238.26

0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

$12,611.00 $23,078.13 $2,855.13 $500.00 $39,044.26 $10,194.00 $49,238.26

USE

PROJECT TOTALS

$49,238.00

FEE SUMMARY

139



Project Intern CADD

Principal Manager Engr. Tech. Clerical Total
Task Description P6 P5 P2 PD2 OA2 Hours

I. Engineering Services 0 40 186 224 0 450

a. Site Investigation 4 8 12

b. Field Survey Services 2 2 4

c. Construction Plan Drawings (58 sheets)

Title Sheet 2 4 6

General Notes & Quantities 1 4 4 9

General Layout and Survey Control 2 4 6

Typical Cross Sections 1 2 2 5

Plan and Profile Sheets (14 sheets) 6 40 60 106

Signing and Striping Plans (6 sheets) 2 8 12 22

Standard Details (3 sheets) 1 12 12 25

Miscellaneous Details (4 sheets) 2 12 20 34

Temporary Erosion Control (4 sheets) 1 4 8 13

d. Construction Specifications (13) 2 8 10

e. Cost Estimate 2 8 4 14

f. Field Check Review 4 8 4 16

g. Office Check Plans, Specifications and Estimate 6 24 40 70

h. Permitting & Utility Coordination 2 20 16 38

i. Final Plans, Specifications and Estimate 4 24 32 60

Totals 0 40 186 224 0 450

450

Scope
Item

140



Project Intern CADD

Principal Manager Engr. Tech. Clerical Direct Overhead Total
Scope P6 P5 P2 PD2 OA2 Total Labor Cost Markup Labor
Item Task Description $50.00 $48.50 $26.30 $25.80 $18.50 Hours Cost 1.83 8% Cost

I. Engineering Services 0 40 186 224 0 450 $12,611.00 $23,078.13 $2,855.13 $38,544.26

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Totals 0 40 186 224 0 450 $12,611.00 $23,078.13 $2,855.13 $38,544.26
450 $38,544.26

Unit Total
Unit Cost Quantity Cost Expenses

miles $0.65 100 $65.00 $0.00 $65.00

days $30.00 2 $60.00 $0.00 $60.00

days $85.00 1 $85.00 $0.00 $85.00

each $0.60 400 $240.00 $0.00 $240.00

LS $50.00 1 $50.00 $0.00 $50.00

$500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00

$10,194.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,194.00

$10,694.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10,694.00

Survey Cost

LABOR COST - ENGINEERING

Item / Description
Scope Item 1

Postage & Miscellaneous Costs

Total Direct Expenses

Plotting

Lodging

DIRECT EXPENSES - ENGINEERING

Sub-Total (Direct Expenses)

Meals

Mileage

141



 

142



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

                 COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 12            MEETING DATE: 9-12-13 
 
 
 
TOPIC: 
 
Refuse Trucks Lease/Purchase Buyout 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Authorize City Staff to issue a 30-day written notice of the City’s intent to exercise its option to 
purchase the refuse trucks and authorize the expenditure in the amount of $207,735.16 to be 
funded from the Solid Waste reserve fund. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
October 18, 2013 is the first available call date of the lease/purchase agreement on the three 
2008 Bridgeport refuse trucks.  The City can realize an interest savings of $16,236.04 if a 
buyout were completed on the date mentioned.  The City Commission will be asked to 
approve an expenditure of $207,735.16 from the Solid Waste reserve fund to buyout the 
lease/purchase agreement on the three refuse trucks. 
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approval 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
n/a 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 

143



Commission Work Session Agenda  
Memo  

 
From:  Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 
 
Work Session: September 5, 2013 
 
Subject: Refuse Trucks Lease/Purchase Buyout 
 
Person(s)  Kim Rupp, Director of Finance 
Responsible: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 
 

Summary 
October 18, 2013 is the first available call date of the lease/purchase agreement on the 
three 2008 Bridgeport refuse trucks.  The City can realize an interest savings of 
$16,236.04 if a buyout were completed on the date mentioned.  The City Commission 
will be asked to approve an expenditure of $207,735.16 from the Solid Waste reserve 
fund to buyout the lease/purchase agreement on the three refuse trucks. 
 

Background  
In 2007 the Solid Waste division purchased three Bridgeport Ranger 24 cubic yard 
automated side load refuse bodies mounted to three 2008 American LaFrance Condor 
chassis.  These were purchased from Downing Sales & Service Inc and financed by an 
equipment lease/purchase agreement with Municipal Services Group, Inc.  On or after 
October 18, 2013 the agreement provides for the option to purchase the equipment upon a 
30 day written notice to Municipal Services Inc.  The agreed upon purchase price of the 
equipment is the principal now owing plus accrued interest. 
 

Discussion 
Based on the poor interest rate environment on idle funds, the available cash in the Solid 
Waste reserve account and the projected interest savings it would be in the best interest of 
the City to exercise this option to purchase.   
 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 
 

Financial Consideration 
The total purchase price of the three refuse trucks was $458,553.  Payments due each 
April and October beginning 10/18/2007 are $27,996.40 for total annual payments of 

144



$55,992.80 each year. The principal balance now owing is $203,243.48 and accrued 
interest due on 10/18/2013 is $4,491.68 for a total buyout of $207,735.16. This buyout 
would save $16,236.04 in future interest payments. The current balance of the Solid 
Waste Reserves is $481,451.  All things remaining equal, there is a transfer to reserves 
budgeted for 2013 in the amount of $242,839.  That transfer will be completed by year 
end 2013.  Therefore this expenditure for the buyout would be replenished fairly quickly.   
 

Options 
Several options exist for the City Commission to consider. 

1) Direct City Staff to issue a 30 day written notice of the City’s intent to 
exercise its option to purchase the refuse trucks in the amount of $207,735.16 
to be funded from the Solid Waste reserve fund. 

2) Do nothing 
3) Provide staff with further direction 
 

Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Commission direct City Staff to issue a 30 day written notice of 
the City’s intent to exercise its option to purchase the refuse trucks in the amount of 
$207,735.16 to be funded from the Solid Waste reserve fund. 
 

Action Requested 
Authorize City Staff to issue a 30 day written notice of the City’s intent to exercise its 
option to purchase the refuse trucks and authorize the expenditure in the amount of 
$207,735.16 to be funded from the Solid Waste reserve fund. 
 

Supporting Documentation 
N/A 

 

145



 

146



CITY OF HAYS 
AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 

 
 

              COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO. 13              MEETING DATE: 9-12-13 
 
 
 
TOPIC: 
 
Addendum to the Memorandum of Agreement with the Hays SEIU, Service Employees 
International Union, Local 513 for 2014 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: 
 
Staff requests that the Hays City Commission authorize the Mayor, City Manager, as well as 
Directors of Parks, Public Works and Utilities to sign the 2014 Addendum to the 2013 thru 
2015 SEIU Contract. 
 
NARRATIVE: 
 
The SEIU contract contains annual openers for Section 15, Health Insurance, if conditions 
are met, and Section 29, Wages and Administration of the Pay Plan.  The City of Hays and 
the SEIU, Service Employees International Union, Local 513 have an agreement for fiscal 
year 2014, Wages and Administration of the Pay Plan.  The agreement states the City will 
provide members of the SEIU bargaining unit with a 1% merit increase starting the first 
payroll in 2014, and the City will continue the current pay ranges.   
 
PERSON/STAFF MEMBER(S) MAKING PRESENTATION: 
 
Toby Dougherty, City Manager  
Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
 
ADMINISTRATION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
City staff recommends that the City Commission approve the Addendum to the contract for 
2014 with the Hays SEIU, Service Employees International Union, Local 513. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Staff Memo 
Addendum to Agreement between the City of Hays and the SEIU, Local 513. 
 
 

147



  Commission Work Session Agenda 
Memo  

 
From:  Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
 
Meeting:  September 12, 2013 
 
Subject: Addendum to the SEIU Local 513 Union Contract 
 
Person(s)  Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager 
Responsible: Toby Dougherty, City Manager 
 

Summary 
The City of Hays and the SEIU Local 513 have an agreement for fiscal year 2014 Wages, 
and Administration of the Pay Plan.  The agreement states the City will provide members 
of the SEIU bargaining unit with a 1% Merit increase with the first payroll in 2014 and 
the City will continue the current pay ranges.   
 

Background  
The SEIU contract contains annual openers for Section 15 Health Insurance, if conditions 
are met, and Section 29 Wages and Administration of the Pay Plan.   

   

Discussion 
The City and SEIU began the meet and confer process in April of 2013 to discuss the 
openers for the 2014 contract.  Four meetings were held including mediation.  Both 
parties tentatively agree to the attached proposal.  

 

Legal Consideration 
There are no known legal obstacles to proceeding as recommended by City Staff. 
 

Financial Consideration 
The City of Hays will budget a 1% merit increase with the first payroll in 2014 and the 
City will continue the current pay ranges. 
 

Options 
The City Commission has the following options; 

1.   Adopt the agreement between the City of Hays and the SEIU,   
      Service Employees International Union, Local 513. 
2. Reject the agreement between the City of Hays and the SEIU, Service 

Employees International Union, Local 513. and give staff further direction 
3. Take no action 

 

148



Recommendation 
Staff recommends the agreed upon language for the 2014 addendum between the City of 
Hays and SEIU, Service Employees International Union, Local 513. 
 

Action Requested 
Staff requests that the Hays City Commission authorize the Mayor, City Manager, 
Directors of Parks, Public Works and Utilities to sign the 2014 Addendum to the 2013 
thru 2015 Union Contract. 

 
Supporting Documentation 

Addendum to Agreement between the City of Hays and the SEIU, Service Employees 
International Union, Local 513 

 
 

 

149



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

CITY OF HAYS 
AND 

HAYS SERVICE EMPLOYEES 
LOCAL 513, AFL-CIO 

 
 
 This addendum to agreement executed on this 12th day of September, 2013, 
between the City of Hays, Kansas, herein after referred to as the “City”, and Hays 
Service Employees Local 513, AFL-CIO 2119, hereinafter referred to as the “SEIU”, is 
intended to be attached to and made a part of the existing Memorandum of Agreement 
between the City and the SEIU that expires December 31, 2015.  This addendum is in 
effect from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014.  All portions of this agreement 
are incorporated therein by reference unless specifically altered or changed by the 
provisions of this Addendum 
 
Section 29. WAGES / ADMINISTRATION OF THE PAY PLAN 
 
For fiscal year 2014 the City will make the following adjustments: the City will provide 
members of the SEIU bargaining unit with a 1% Merit increase with the first payroll in 
2014 and the City will continue the current pay ranges. 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the SEIU have hereunto set their hand 

this 12th day of September, 2013. 

 
 
FOR THE SEIU    FOR THE CITY 
 
___________________________ ____________________________ 
Unit Chairman    Mayor 
 
___________________________ ____________________________ 
Unit Vice-Chairman    City Manager 
 
___________________________ ____________________________ 
Business Representative    Director of Public Works 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Director of Parks 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Director of Utilities 

150



  

COMMISSION INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM 
TO: City Commission 

FROM: Toby Dougherty, CPM 
 City Manager  

 

DATE: September 5, 2013 

 
 

Attached are the following items: 
  

1. The minutes of the April 16, 2013 meeting of the Hays Convention & Visitors Bureau 
Advisory Committee. 
 

2. The minutes of the July 15, 2013 meeting of the Hays Area Planning Commission. 
 
3. The minutes of the July 17, 2013 meeting of the Hays Recreation Commission Board. 

 
4. The minutes of the July 29, 2013 meeting of the Hays Housing Authority Board.  

 
5. The Great Lakes On-Time Report for August 2013. 

 
If you have any questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
ab 

City of Hays 
Office of the City Manager 

151



 

152



HAYS CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU 
MINUTES 

 
Tuesday, April 16th, 2013 

Lunch Meeting 
 

Welcome Center Conference Room 
 

PRESENT 
           
Stacey Smith       Andy Stanton  
Sabrina Symns       Greg Walher 
Lorraine Howerton      Connie Schmidt 
Margie Dansel       Don Westfall 
 
ABSENT 
Jane Matlock       Reese Barrick 
 
 
Staff 
Jana Jordan       Janet Kuhn 
Ruben Schuckman 
 
       
The Hays Convention and Visitors Bureau Advisory Committee Meeting was called to 
order by Past-Chair Sabrina Symns.  
  
APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE FEBRUARY MEETING – Sabrina 
Andy made a motion to accept the February Meeting minutes. Lorraine seconded the 
motion. 
Motion carried. 
 
ELECT CHAIR & VICE CHAIR OFFICERS – Sabrina 
Jane Matlock had served as Vice-Chair and has agreed to move to the Chair position. 
Andy Stanton volunteered to serve as Vice-Chair. Lorraine made a motion to select the 
slate of officers, Stacey seconded the motion. 
Motion carried. 
 
2014 PROPOSED BUDGET – Jana 
Jana went over the Proposed 2014 Budget that is due at City Hall the end of the month. 
The following reviews 2012 Actual, 2013 Budget, 2013 Estimate and 2014 Budget 
Revenues and Expenditures. 
Sabrina made a motion to support the 2014 Proposed Budget and Lorraine seconded the 
motion. 
Motion carried. 
 
Staff Reports 
Janet talked about Meet Kansas activities and the upcoming Susan G Komen “Race for 
the Cure”, May 11th. 
 

153



Ruben visited with the group about brochure distribution and historical data. He also 
talked about the upcoming Sampler Festival and the Sunrise Tour and Mystery Tour he 
has planned. 
 
Jana told the group about Historic Fort Hays change in hours and at this time there are 
no plans to replace Bob. We are still in need of an at-large position on the Board if any 
one has any suggestions. 
 
 
Adjournment – Vice-Chair 
Sabrina made a motion to adjourn and Lorraine second the motion. 
Motion carried.  
 

154



 1

HAYS AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  
CITY HALL IN COMMISSION CHAMBERS  

JULY 15, 2013 
MINUTES  
6:30 P.M.  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:      The Hays Area Planning Commission met in regular 
session Monday, July 15, 2013 at 6:30 p.m. in Commission Chambers at City Hall.   
 
Roll Call: 
  
Present:       Larry Gould         Terry Claycamp             Jim Fouts             Travis Rickford  
                     Paul Phillips         Tom Denning                  Pam Rein               
Absent:       Lou Caplan         Jake Glover  
 
Chairman Larry Gould declared that a quorum was present and called the 
meeting to order. 
 
City Staff in attendance:  John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works, Jesse Rohr, 
Superintendent of Planning, Inspection and Enforcement, Nick Willis, Stormwater 
Superintendent and Administrative Secretary Linda K. Bixenman.  
 
2.      MINUTES:  There were no additions or corrections to the minutes from the June 
17, 2013 that were approved by consensus. 
 
3.         CITIZEN COMMENTS:  - There were no comments.   
 
4.    CITY/COUNTY COMMISSION ACTION & PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT ISSUE 
UPDATES:   Larry Gould and Jesse Rohr introduced Travis Rickford, the new member 
appointed to the  Planning Commission to fill  Emery Jennings unexpired term.   
 
Travis Rickford stated that he works as a health educator for the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment.  He works in the communities of Northwest 
and Southwest Kansas on health assessment. 
 
5.    PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER CHANGES TO THE STORMWATER REGULATIONS 
AND RELATED ZONING AND SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS:  Jesse Rohr explained that 
this is a continuation of discussion from the last several meetings on the 
consideration to adopt the stream buffer ordinance and changes to stormwater 
best management practices within the zoning and subdivision regulations to 
protect the areas identified as having streams in the City and 3 mile zone.  The 
drafts include the recommended changes by the Planning Commission and the 
City Attorney. 
 
Nick Willis presented each of the purposes of the proposed ordinance for 
economic, environmental and resilience.  This ordinance establishes overlay zoning 
districts for stream setbacks from natural streams that are defined by the 
Geographical Data Survey.  He presented the map reflecting the stream corridors 

155



 2

on the overhead visual.  The environmental benefit is to protect water quality and 
recharge of the aquifer and have community resilience for droughts and floods.  
 
He explained that this ordinance would stand alone in Chapter 71 in the zoning 
regulations as part of development within the City and the three mile zone.  An 
illustration in the ordinance spells out the potential uses of inner zones and outer 
zones of a stream corridor.    The inner zone is the most protected.   The outer zone 
can be used for recreational areas, campgrounds, etc.   The widest buffers would 
be along Chetolah Creek and Big Creek.  Chetolah Creek and the northern 
regions of Lincoln Draw are identified as open space. 
 
For economic purposes, it is important not to be short term smart and long term 
dumb on stormwater projects.  The Lincoln Tunnel is an example of a short term 
development that is not economically designed to be rebuilt or replaced.  
 
Having development in a flood prone region could disrupt important economic 
functions and disrupt transportation corridors in the event of a flood.   It could 
reduce disaster response and risk life and property.  The federal subsidies for flood 
insurance are being phased out.   
 
He was open to any questions.  He urged the commission to consider 
recommending this ordinance to be adopted by the governing body.   
 
Pam Rein asked if man-made ponds stop the stream to Big Creek.   John Braun 
answered that ponds are good to recharge the aquifer.  There are state 
regulations that apply for a man-made pond. 
 
Terry Claycamp asked how the stream setbacks would apply within the City Limits 
where neighboring lots could be affected.  Robert Readle, member of the 
audience, asked how to define the stream buffer setbacks and if platted 
properties are grandfathered in.  Nick Willis answered that the stream buffer 
setbacks apply with the plat and not the land.  Jesse Rohr added that the stream 
buffer would be captured in the development process.   He gave an example of 
the drainage dedication through the platting process from 45th to 41st Street 
maintained by the City. 
 
John Braun explained that this ordinance by itself does not relieve any property 
owner from not maintaining compliance on their property.   
 
Terry Claycamp inquired, as per Chapter 59, about the statement that utilities are 
not to be run overhead parallel with the drainage channel, although they can run 
under the main channel.  Mr. Readle inquired about the uses of the drainage 
areas.   Nick Willis answered that the drainage areas could be a nice amenity with 
trees and a park area for the public.   It would prevent the areas like Chetolah 
Creek.  Jesse pointed out that this was direction per the comprehensive plan.   
 
Tom Denning asked about the existing overhead utilities north of town running 
parallel to the channels and other overhead lines to oil wells.  Jesse Rohr explained 

156



 3

that development of the land would trigger the compliance to the storm water 
regulations.   The oil and gas industry has their regulations.   
   
Tom Denning asked how the ordinance would apply to the Ellis County Landfill of 
an unused parcel that is within an identified stream.  Nick Willis answered that they 
would have to comply with the ordinance if they were to expand.   
 
Mr. Readle noted that the rules are changing for developers that need to be 
aware of this change.  Larry Gould voiced concern that there were no developers 
or audience other than Mr. Readle attending the public hearing. 
 
There was other discussion particularly In reference to Section 71-758 “pervious 
surface is encouraged”.  Pam Rein and Larry Gould, strongly recommended that 
statement be more specific.  City Staff suggested a reference to the “Stormwater 
Best Management Practices” manual.    Robert Readle suggested specific 
examples too. 
 
Travis Rickford asked if there had been a comparison with ordinances from other 
cities on their development requirements for pervious/impervious surfaces. 
 
Paul Phillips asked if 71-760 was redundant covering the same information as 
Section 71-758.   
 
Robert Readle asked if the public had access to the same material as the Planning 
Commission.  Tom Denning voiced concern if the ordinance was not accessible to 
the public before the public hearing.  
      
The City Staff and the City Attorney have reviewed the requirements.  It has gone 
before the Utility Advisory Committee.  After discussion and questions at this 
meeting, City Staff recommended for approval as revised to the City Commission 
or table it.    
 
Paul Phillips moved, Pam Rein seconded to recommend to the governing body to 
approve the changes to Chapter 59 and 71, Subdivision and Zoning Regulations 
relative to the storm water regulations and add the Stream Buffer Ordinance to 
Chapter to 71 to include the revisions from the public hearing.   
 
Vote: AYES:     Larry Gould         Terry Claycamp             Jim Fouts          Travis Rickford  
                         Paul Phillips         Tom Denning                  Pam Rein      
 
Robert Readle asked the commission that the stream buffer ordinance and 
changes to the zoning and subdivision regulations be accessible to the public 
before it goes before the City Commission.   Larry Gould strongly stressed that the 
public be informed within the media outlets and city web page for the changes 
and new ordinance to be accessible to the public. 
 
Per request by Mr. Readle, they would e-mail him the proposed ordinance. 
 

157



 4

6.    CASE #13-06Z – SET THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR A REQUEST OF CHANGE OF 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION FROM “C-2” COMMERCIAL & SERVICE DISTRICT TO “C-3” 
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT FOR ALL OF BLOCK 5 & VACATED PINE STREET BETWEEN 
BLOCK 4 AND BLOCK 5 & SOUTH HALF OF BLOCK 4 EXCEPT LOT 15 & 17 OF H.P. 
WILSON ADDITION – (GENERAL LOCATION 200 AND 300 BLOCK E 7TH STREET):  
 
Jim Foutz moved, Terry Claycamp seconded to set the public hearing for a request 
of change of zoning classification from “C-2” Commercial & Service District to “C-
3” Central Business District for all of Block 5 & vacated Pine Street between Block 4 
and Block 5 & south half of Block 4 except Lot 15 & 17 of H. P. Wilson Addition 
(General Location 200 and 300 block of  7th Street).  
 
Vote: AYES:     Larry Gould         Terry Claycamp             Jim Fouts          Travis Rickford  
                         Paul Phillips         Tom Denning                  Pam Rein      
 
7.    DISCUSS FUTURE CHANGES TO THE ZONING/SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS AND THE 
POSSIBLE NEED FOR OUTSIDE CONSULTATION SERVICES: Jesse Rohr explained the 
need for modifications and updates to the zoning/subdivision regulations that 
were written on or before 1973 with some modifications to it.  He asked for their 
thoughts on the possible need for outside consultation services to amend or rewrite 
the zoning and subdivision regulations.         
  
He asked the Planning Commission to consider a recommendation to the City 
Commission to solicit for an outside consultant for these services.  City Staff and the 
Planning Commission would be involved in the process.     
 
Several points touched on included required parking spaces and the high cost to 
meet the parking stall requirements in a commercial development.   Nick Willis 
used Google Earth to present an aerial view of the Mall parking lot in different 
years and times to reflect the growth or non-growth over time and overage of 
unused parking spaces.   
 
Tom Denning pointed out that to have a nice entrance, there must be adequate 
parking.  If not enough parking is provided, they will park somewhere else on the 
property.    
 
Paul Phillips noted that in the downtown area there is not enough close parking. 
 
Travis Rickford suggested there may be a need for more accessible public 
transportation.   
 
Terry Claycamp moved, Travis Rickford seconded to recommend that the City 
Commission consider the hiring of an outside consultant to 
rewrite/revise/modifications to the  zoning and subdivision regulations .  
 
Vote: AYES:     Larry Gould         Terry Claycamp             Jim Fouts          Travis Rickford  
                         Paul Phillips         Tom Denning                  Pam Rein  
     

158



 5

8.    CONSIDER REVIEWING AND ADOPTING UPDATED HAYS AREA PLANNING 
COMMISSION BY-LAWS:  The Planning Commission reviewed the draft by-laws and 
pointed out changes and additions to be considered for the final draft.   
 
Tabled motion: 
Pam Rein moved, Paul Phillips  seconded to recommend that the City Commission 
to adopt the Hays Area Planning Commission by-laws with the recommended 
changes and additions. 
 
Jesse Rohr explained that they could review a final draft based on the 
recommended changes and additions at the next meeting.   
 
Larry Gould stated that since this was a nondebatable motion they could table the 
motion.  The motion was tabled by consensus.  
 
9.    OTHER:  EDUCATION/TRAINING FOR PLANNING COMMISSIONERS:  Jesse Rohr 
explained that the City Manager has budgeted $15,000.00 for education/training 
for the members of the Planning Commission.  He also invited the commission to an 
upcoming Kansas American Planning Association conference in October.    
 
Larry Gould suggested training through a webinar so they could watch it on their 
computer.         
   
10.    OTHER:  43rd & VINE:  Pam Rein asked what was going in at 43rd and Vine west 
of the new Wendy’s.  Jesse Rohr answered that a structure is being built that would 
be occupied by  Hibbits. 
 
11. OTHER:  Possible Convention Center:  Larry Gould stated that a private 
developer indicated an interest in the development of a new Convention Center.  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:20 p.m. 
 
Submitted by:  Linda K. Bixenman, Administrative Secretary, 
                          Planning, Inspection and Enforcement  

159



 

160



HAYS RECREATION COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

July 17, 2013 
 

Chair called the meeting to order at 12pm. 
Roll Call   
Chair   Todd Lynd 
Vice-Chair  Jeff Briggs 
Secretary  Mark Junk 
Commissioner  Lynn Maska 
Superintendent Roger Bixenman 
 
Commissioner Nancy Jeter was absent.    
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Mark Junk to approve the agenda.  Second by Lynn Maska.  Motion 
carried 4-0. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Motion by Lynn Maska to approve the minutes of the regular meeting for June 
19, 2013.  Second by Jeff Briggs.  Motion carried 4-0. 
Motion by Lynn Maska to approve the minutes of the special meeting for July 1, 
2013.  Second by Jeff Briggs.  Motion carried 4-0.   
 
Audience Participation 
Melissa Romme-ABB&B discussed with the board the financials year to date.  
 
Written Communication 
Thank you letters were shared with the board.   
 
Finances 
Financial Statement 
Motion by Mark Junk to approve the financial statement for June 2013.  Second 
by Lynn Maska.  Motion carried 4-0.    
 
 Staff Reports 
Sports Director 
Information was shared with the board concerning sports. 
Program Director 
Information concerning all programming was shared with the board.  
Aquatics Director 
Information was shared with the board concerning aquatics. 
Wellness Director 
Information was shared with the board concerning wellness. 
Sports Complex Director 
Information was shared with the board concerning the sports complex.    
 

161



 
 
Superintendent 
Information was shared with the board concerning information items which 
included progress on facility planning, and an additional maintenance building at 
the Bickle/Schmidt sports complex.   
 
Unfinished Business 
No Unfinished Business 
 
 
New Business 
Approval of 2014 Budget 
Motion  by Mark Junk to open the Budget Hearing for the 2014 Budget.  Second 
by Jeff Briggs.  Motion carried 4-0. 
Motion by Jeff Briggs to approve the 2014 Budget as presented.  Second by 
Mark Junk.  Motion carried 4-0. 
Motion by Mark Junk to close the 2014 Budget Hearing and re-open the Regular 
Board Meeting.  Second by Jeff Briggs. Motion carried 4-0.   
 
Mark Junk left the meeting! 
 
Election of Officers 
Motion by Todd Lynd to appoint Jeff Briggs-Chair; Lynn Maska-Vice Chair and 
Mark Junk-Secretary. Second by Lynn Maska. Motion carried 3-0. 
 
Appointment of Board Member at Large 
Motion by Jeff Briggs to appoint Clint Albers to a four year term beginning August 
1, 2013 for HRC at Large Board Member position.  Second by Lynn Maska.  
Motion carried 3-0. 
 
   
Board Member Reports 
Todd Lynd was awarded a certificate of appreciation for his years of service on 
the HRC board as the Member at Large Position.  His term officially ended on 
July 31, 2013.    Todd thanked the HRC Board and Staff for the time spent on the 
board and all that has been accomplished during his tenure on the board.   
 
Other Action 
None 
 
Executive Session  
None 
   
 
 

162



Adjournment 
Motion by Jeff Briggs to adjourn the meeting.  Second by Lynn Maska.  Motion 
carried 3-0.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Roger Bixenman CPRP 
Superintendent 

163



 

164



165



166



Great Lakes Airlines On-Time Report

 
 

Aug-13 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Under 
15 Min   

On-Time

15-44 
Min 
Late

45-74 
Min 
Late

75 -104 
Min 
Late

105 
Min 
Late 
or 

more Canceled

Mon-Fri
630 C x C C L L x C x C x x x x x x x x x x x x 68% 9% 23%
645 C x C C L L x C x C x x x x x x x x x x x x 86% 5% 5% 23%

1016 x L L x L C L x x C x x x x x x x x L x x x 68% 14% 5% 5% 9%
1026 x L L x L C L x L C L L x x x x x x L x x x 55% 23% 9% 5% 9%
1311 L x x L L L x L x x x L L x x x x x x x x x 68% 18% 9% 5%
1321 L L x L L L x L x x x L L L x x x x x x x x 59% 23% 9% 9%
1425 L x L x L L x C L x x L L L L x x L x x x x 50% 27% 14% 5% 5%
1435 L x L L L L L C L x x L L L L x x L x x x x 41% 36% 14% 5% 5%
1626 C x L C C L L x x x x x x x x x x x x x L x 68% 14% 5% 14%
1636 C x L C C L L L L L x x x x x x L x x x L x 50% 27% 5% 5% 14%
2156 L x L C x L L L x x x x x x L L x x x x x x 64% 18% 9% 5% 5%
2206 L C L C x L L L L x x x x x L L x x x x x x 55% 14% 18% 5% 9%

Saturday
715 C x x x x 80% 20%
725 x x x x x 100%

1250 C x x x x 80% 20%
1300 C L L x x 40% 40% 20%
1406 C x x x x 80% 20%
1416 C x L x x 60% 20% 20%
1931 L x x L C 40% 20% 20% 20%
1941 L x x C C 40% 20% 40%

Sunday
845 x x x C 75% 25%
855 L x x x 75% 25%

1250 L x L x 50% 50%
1300 L x L x 50% 25% 25%
1626 L x L x 50% 50%
1636 L x L x 50% 50%
2156 L C L L 50% 25% 25%
2206 L C L L 50% 25% 25%

Average 59% 19% 7% 3% 1% 11%
No time logged =na
Late=L Total Flights - 336 197 64 25 9 5 36
On Time=x
Canceled=C Percentage of flights delayed or canceled 41%

On time means </= 15 minutes

167


	9-12-13 City Commission Meeting Agenda 
	8-22-13 City Commission Meeting Minutes
	Mayoral Appointment Recommendations
	2013 Uniform Public Offense Code for Kansas Cities
	2013 Standard Traffic Ordinance for Kansas Cities
	Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition - Resolution to Establish Benefit District (Danby Lane)
	Golden Belt Estates 5th Addition - Engineering Services Agreement (Danby Lane)
	Levee Improvements - Egineering Design Services Agreement
	Bike Hays - On-street Bike Route Engineering Design Agreement
	Bike Hays - Levee Trail Engineering Design Agreement
	Refuse Trucks Lease/Purchase Buyout
	Addendum to the Memorandum of Agreement with the Hays SEIU, Service Employees International Union, Local 513 for 2014
	Commission Informational Memorandum
	4-16-13 Hays CVB Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes
	7-15-13 Hays Area Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
	7-17-13 HRC Board Meeting Minutes
	7-29-13 Hays Housing Authority Board Meeting Minutes
	Great Lakes Airlines On-time Report - August  



